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rent programme life-cyde The aeroTrent programme in our civil business,exemplifies
ind technology benefits

Research and Development

We continue 1o place significant emphasis

on research and development. Our long-term
vision for this activity is set out in a structured
approach over five, ten and 20-year time frames.

Trent 772

Trent 763
Trent 875
Trent 877

Teent 584
Trent 892

Trent 895

Trent 556
Trent 353

Trent 900

our ability to maximise our research and development
investments. We seek to invest once in creating technologies
and methods but use these many times. We have spin-off
programmes from the Trent in our defence, marine and
energy businesses.

Technology spin-offs a0t Years

Wide chord swept fan

Low NOx combustors

Low noise intakes

3D compressor designs

New high temperature allcys
Advanced predictive methods

Advanced single-crystal blades

f_,
Year of antryinto service &




Aftermarket services

After a gas turbine enters service it can be

in use for 40 years or more and as such the
aftermarketis an extremely important area of
cur customer relationship. Our services activity
is growing, with a global overhaul network ~
the latest addition to which is our joint venture
with Lufthansa - and innovative e-business
products being introduced.Qur TotaiCare
packages are winning major contracts from
key customers,

Product spin-offs from the Trent programme
MT30 Marina Trent

JSFengine
Detived frorn the Trent 800, The F136interchangeable engine
this marine engine ran for for the Joint Strike Fighter (JSF)

the first time in 2002, embodies world-leading

technology drawn from the Trent.

MT50 Marine Trent Fuel cells

This SOMW gas turbine Is ideal Civil aerospace technology

for large high-speed transports from the Trent programme

or large naval ships. is also being used to develop
gorld—leading fuel cell teﬁchnology

Industrial Trent r the environrmenitally friendly

The world's most powerfU generation of electricity.

and efficient aero derivative
gas turbine for power generation.




Company profile

Rolls-Royce is a global company providing
power for land, sea and air. The company
has a balanced business portfolio with
leading positions in civil aerospace,
defence, marine and energy markets,

There are now some 54,000 Rolls-Royce
gas turbines in service and these

generate high-value services throughout
their operational lives. Rolls-Royce is a
technology leader,employing some 37,000
people and operating from 48 countries.

Group financiat highlights

For the year ended December 31, 2002 2002 2001
Group turnover £5,788m £6,328m
Underlying profit before taxation® £255m £475m
Firm order book £16.2bn £14.4bn
Return on capital employed 10.5% 19.3%
Equity shareholders' funds £2,035m £2068m
Earnings per ordinary share:

Underlying* T1.10p 2020p
Bagic 3.29p 667p
Dividend per ordinary share 8.18p 818p

* excluding exceptional and non-trading items, defined in note 2.
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Group turnover

£255m

Underlying profit*

£171on

Order book {firm and 2nnounced)

£1090mM

Average net debt

£595m

Year end net debt




lis-Royce at a glance

Group Civil aerospace

olls-Royce is well placed to manage
e uncertainties of the short term

nd to secure shareholder value.

ur achievements in the past decade
ave been formidable.

£5/88mM£2,/739m

Rolis-Royce strategy
- Addressing four global markets a7

- Investing in techHOIOgy, Capablllty
and infrastructure Face

Overview Overview
o Rolls-Royce operates in four global - Deliveries of engines were down
: markets and invests in technology but we maintained our market share

and capabilities that can be exploited  at 30 per cent. This consolidated
— in each of these sectors, QU position as a strong number
Developing a comy etltuve hofth ositon as: o
prod uct po r‘tfo| O = ¥, The Group order book is strong and twoin civil engines,
the guidance we gave following Highlights
. S A A the events of September 11 was - Installec base of engines
— (Growi ng market Share SRR 4 broadly correct. We have made increasad to 9,900,
' significant improvements in delivery - Youngest engine fleet in service,
| 1 i performance manufacturing lead — Trent 500 entered service on
Cagturmg substantial aftermarket il A0 B0D.
N rvi a,> 1 T - 1,000th Tay engine deliverad,
d SErVICE OppOrtunltleS ljl[?:;lltg:f:esctivdy with the - Trent family continues to win
NEW CUSLOMETS,
_ i%g??ﬁ;igﬁ;vfnsfggnmdber - ~ More TotalCare business secured.
order bock at record levels. ~ Total flying hours down two per

cent but Rolls-Royce fleet flying

- Prudent financial management. hours uUp seven per cent.

MikeTerrett
President — Civil aerospace
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Defence

Marine

Energy

£13/6m £984m £639m

Overview

Rolls-Royce has established its
position as the number two defence
aero engine rmanufacturer, We have
a key presence in two of the world's
largest combat aircraft programmes.

Highlights

- UK selects short take-off and
vertica! landing F-35 aircrait

~ Mission Ready Management
Solutions (MRMS) continues
to win business,

~ Production of MTR390 helicopter
engine started.

- Company received awards for
perforrmance in the US,

Colin Green
President - Defence asrospace
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Overview

We have a world-leading position
in cruise, fast vessel, naval and
offshore markets. The matine
business delivered steady growth
during the year.

Highlights

- MT30 gas turbine for commercial
and naval markets made successful
first test run.

~ Over 400 orders now achieved
for the UT700 series ship design.

- Submarine business gave
-strong performance.

— Blectrical systems capability
enhanced.

- Developing & new high speed
cargo vessel in Europe.

Dr SautLanyado
President - Matine

Overview

Our oil and gas business performed
strongly. Offshore appiications
dominated the year's order intake.

Business in power generation
was slow,

Highlights

— Traditional markets were strong
and new markets were secured
in off and gas,

— The Trent 60 now being marketed
for sale.

— New Long-Term Service
Agreernents secured.

~ Business re-structured and cost
reduction processes introduced.

Tom Curley
President - Energy




1airman’s statement

Euan Baird
Chairman

‘he unstable political situation in the Middle
ast,concerns about the spread of terrorism and
e deteriorating economic environment in the
S and Europe combined to make 2002 a very

ifficult year for our civil aerospace customers.
nless the lraq crisis can be resolved quickly and
leanly, 2003 will be equally challenging. In this
ugh environment our company has managed
produce very credible results,which were in
ne with the forecasts we gave to the markets
st after the events of September 2001. This
markable consistency, achieved in such a
rbulent business environment, is a credit
the dedication and professionalism of the
mployees of Rolls-Royce.

Rolls-Royce plc Ay S S0

2002 was also a year of change insice the cornpany.
First, Sir Ralph Rabins annaunced his retirernent from
the company after 47 years.| believe it is no exaggeration
to say that the company owes its very existence to his
courage and leadership. During his term as Chairmar,
Sir Ralph has led the company’s transformation into

a leading global gas turhine business.| know you will
alt join me in wishing him and his family all health

and happiness in the future. Second, Andrew Shilston
was appeinted Finance Director on January 1,2003.
Ardrew was previously Finance Director of Enterprise
Qiland he replaces Paul Helden who, after ten years

of invaluable service, left the company to become CEG
atthe engineering group FKLFinally, Group Marketing
Director Richard Tumer retired in June 2002 after

more than 30 years with the company.On behalf

of the Board | would like to wish him a long and
happy retirement,

My appaointment as non-executive Chairman became
effective on February 1,2003.Previously, | had been
with Schlumberger Ltd for more than 40 years and
was its Chairman and CEQ for 16 years.| have had the
enormous satisfaction of being cne of the principal
architects behind turning a small family-ownead
company, with very specialised technology, into the
global leader of its industry with 80,000 employess
working in more than 100 countries. An impressive
growth story achieved with negligible dilution of

the original shareholders.

| am very respectful of the legacy and opportunities
that the Ralph Robins generation has bequeathed to
Rolls-Royce The company has established an enviable
positicn in the markets it serves.Our top priority isto
convert these strengths into shareholder value.

We were all delighted that John Rose’s achievements
were appropriately recognised in the Queen’s 2003
New Year's Honours list and | am looking forward

10 helping Sir Johm and ris team as they work 1o
improve further the performance of the company.

Euan Baird
Chairman
March 3,2003




Chief Executive's review

Sir John Rose
Chief Executive

In 2002, despite challenging conditions

in civil aerospace we delivered in line with
our guidance and continued to position
the company for growth, We can report
a sound order book, excellent progress
with our restructuring programme and
strong operating cash performance.
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Qur risk management process proved effective, Charges
in respect of financing obligations and asset impairment
were contained within guidance and we have taken

a prudent approach in the area of provisions and

charges We ended the year with high levels of liquidity
and reserves,

Following the tragic events of September 11,2001,

we had to adjust expectations radically, particularly in
the civil aerospace sector,and respond 1o the changed
circumstances.With the benefit of nearly 18 months
hindsight, it is clear that the planning assurnptions that
underpinnec our guidance, first issued on October 19,
20071, were broadly correct for 2002,

Since October 2001, two additional factors have
increasingly influenced our assumptions about future
performance: first, the uncertainties asscciated with the
situation in frag and secondly, the impact of depressed
financial markets and actuarial assumptions on the
funding reguirements for our pension funds.We are

1aking all reasonable actions to mitigate the impact
of both,

Encouragingly, order intake at £8.7 billion remained
strong during 2002 The firm order book was

£16.2 biflion (2001 £14.4 billion) at the year-end, with

a further £0.9 billion of business announced. Turnover
at £5,788 million was nine per cent less than in 2001
and underlying profit at £255 rmillion* was in fine

with guidance The year-end net debt balance was
£595 million (2001 £501 million) with an average

net debt balance of £1,090 million (2001 £990 millian),

Operational performance

Since October 2001, we have resized the business to
balance load and capacity. Despite the major changes
in load and mix and the consequent rescheduling,
we have achieved significant improvements in
delivery performance, rmanufacturing lead time

and operating cost.

The successful implementation in 2001 of our new
Enterprise Resource Planning systern, SAR has provided
a very effective tool for managing changes in demand.
We have continued 1o restructure our suipply chain and
successfully completed pilots which confirm significant
inventory reduction is achievable Working capital was
controlled effectively in 2002, reducing as a proportion
of sales from 10.5 per cent tc 6.8 per cent.

The company has implemented the restructuring
programme announced in 2001, achieving a net
headcount reduction of 4,500 during 2002, with

a further 200 employees due to leave in the early part
0t 2003.The company is on target to achieve annual
cost savings of £250 miliion from this pregramme. The
headcount is expected to be reduced to around 35000
by the year-end, with further restructuring charges of
approximately £50 million in 2003.0Overall, operating
€osts were ten per cent lower and overtime levels were
significantly reduced compared to 2001.

* excluding exceptionat and non-trading itermns, defined in note 2.




ief Executive’s review

this activity was completed without any industrial
ruption and with only temporary reductions
productivity.

iank all our employees for thelr continued
yrwork, commitment and cooperation during
s difficult period.

1siness model

ls-Royce operates in four globa! markets and invests
technology and capabiity that can be exploited in
ch of these sectors to create a compatitive range
products and services,

e success of these investments is demonstrated by

Ir gains in market share aver recent years.We now

we an instalied base of 54000 gas turkine engines in
rvice across all our businesses. The knowledge based

Jestments In product, capabllity and infrastructure
gain this market position, have created high barriers
entry. Successful implementation of the company’s
rvice strateqy has enabled it to increase its aftermarket

~venues by 60 per cent {including joint ventures)

Jer the last five years.

Te large installed base of engines will generate an
sured aftermarket demand for the provision of

sare parts and services. Our strategy continues to

= to maximise aftermarket revenues through the

=velopment of a comprehensive services capability.

e installed base of engines, represents an annuity
the business and provides visibility as to future

tivity levels. Aftermarket services revenues, at

5 billion,accounted for 44 per cent of sales in 2002,

rther visibility is provided through the substantial
ward crder book, which represents approximately
ree years of Group sales.

lanced business

e benefits of our consistent strategy were evident in
02 as we continued to develop each of our businesses
d position Rolls-Royce for long-term growth.

civil asrospace, despite the difficulties in the sector,
continued to broaden cur customer base and were
couraged by the continuing level of orier activity.
e have established ourselves as a clear number two
the gichal civil aerc-engine market, having won

per cent of the market over the past three vears.
e have a well balanced civil business benefiting from
e acquiisition of the Allisen Engine Company,in 1995,
hich established cur strong presence in the regional
line sector. Despite the two per cent drop in the overall
bal fleet flying hours in 2002, the Rolls-Royce fleet
ing hours increased by seven per cent. Qur young

d growing installed base of civii engines provided
edictable aftermarket revenue in 2002 and will
nerate an increasing revenue contribution with
2 continuing growth and maturity of the engines
service This reflects the recent deliveries and the
year average age of the inservice flest.

olle-Raoyce plg Ao i poss 0

We have established a strong position in the defence
aerospace sector.We serve 160 customers workdwide
and are well placed on many of the world’s major new
programmes.The US Department of Defense is now our
largest customer in this sector and we participate in five
of its top nine aero programmes. The integrated nature of
our busingss activities enables the transfer of capabilities
frorn one sector to another.Our success in the Joint Strike
Hghter is in no small part due to technology developed
in the Trent programime and alse builds on our strong

US presence following the Allison acquisition.

Qur defence customers are benefiting from products
and services that have been developed inthe civil
aerospace sector. Building on the success of TotalCare
packages, sirong progress hias been made on jong-term
contracting for product support (Mission Ready
Management Solutions) in the defence market.

The marine sectar continues ta build on the acquisition
of Vickers to offer a more complete propulsion system
capability than any competitor Thare is alsg growing
and tangible evidence of the benefits of our increased
scope of supply in both naval and cornrmercial markets.
For instance, sales of Kamewa propulsion products
into the naval sector have quadrupled. Aerospace
technology is also being exploited in the marine sector.
The marinisation of the Trent has been a successful
programme, generating strong interest in naval and
commercial marine markets. The MT30 has 80 per cent
commaonality, by parts count, with the Trent 800 civil
aero engine and has recently been chosen by the US
Navy for the Engineering Development Medel of their
DD(X) destroyer programme It is also nominated for
the UK Carrier programime and generating interest in
the commercial marine sector.

We expect our energy business to return to profitability
in 2003.The cil and gas sector remained strong in 2002,
based on the well-proven industrialised RB211 and

our successful acauisition in 1999 of the Caoper Energy
comprassor business, The fiinancial performance of

the enetgy business in 2002 was dominated by the
significant additional costs of development work on
the industrial Trent and Allen 5000.The industrial Trent
situation was exacerbated by the consequential costs
associated with the failure 1o mest in-service operational
criteria We now have a compliant and competitive
product and are retro-fitting existing Trent facilities.

Aftermarket

All the company’s businesses provide significant
aftermarket services opporunities, with 54,000 gas
trbines in service We have continued to expand the
scope of our services from traditional support, such as
spara parts supply, to enhanced services such as engine
health monitoring and predictive maintenance. Our
competitive advantage in the provision of these services
s derived from our unigue knowledge of cur products
and the proprietary technology we have embedded

in them.This has enabled us to offer tailored support
packages, such as TotalCare and Mission Ready
Management Solutions.
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In 2002 we announced £2 billion of long-term

support contracts and we have recently announced
the 150th customer for aerornanager.com,our engine
maintenance e-business portal. Aftermarket sales,
inclucing joint ventures, have increased from £1.9 billion
to £3 billion over the last five years, benefiting from our
growing installed base of engines and the successful
acquisition in 1999 of National Airmotive and its
integration into our extensive global network of

repair and overhaul facilities and joint ventures.

Fotus

During the year, we have continued to dispose of non-
core activities. This process will be largely complete by
the end of 2003.The most significant disposal during
2002 was that of Vickers Defence Systams (VDS} to
Alvis, Overail VDS made a much better than anticipated
contritution 1o both profit and cash flow during the
period of ownership The Vickers acquisition is now
wholly focused on marine activities and has enabled
us to create value by building a world-leading marine
propulsion business.

We have continued to develop the senior management
team and introcluce new talent from outside the
cornpany. During the year, we recruited senior people
from,ameng others, Alstom, EADS, Enterprise Cil, and
GlaxoSmithKline. Forty per cent of the Group Executive
have joined us from other companies in the last five
years.In total, we now employ 37,300 people, of which
approximately 22,000 are in the UK and 15,000 overseas.
Our workforce comprises 40 nationalities in 48 countries.
Sustainability

We are clear about our obligations to the environment,
our workforce, our communities and to society in general,
Perhaps the most significant irmpact we can make is to
run a successful business that supports 37,300 employees
and spends £1.5 billion on salaries and benefits for

its employees and £3 billion on purchases from 7,000
suppliers.Through the multiolier effect, one job in
Rolls-Reyce sustains a further 4.5 jobs worldwide.

We therefore participate financially and through

our encouragement of the individua! efforts of our
workforce who contribute their time and expertise

in the communities in which we are presant. A high
proportion of Rolls-Royce employees takes advantage

of the opportunity we offer to make charitable
danations through payrol-giving.

Rolis-Royce products provide relizble, affordable power
and play an imporant role in a sustainable society. Our
as turbine engines are integral to commercial air travel
which underpins global trade and business, and benefits
economies throt:gh increased tourism.In global defence
markets our engines contribute to the security of nations
and support humanitarian missions. Our products
provide heat light and power to developed and
developing countries and our marine products support
more than 20,000 commerdial and naval vesselsin
awide number of industries, We are investing in new
technologies, such as fuel cells which will offer significant
efficiency and greenhouse gas advantages for the
distributed generation of electricity.
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Ourenvironmental record is a good one and

is underpinned by our investments in research
and technology to ensure we continue to improve
product and operational performance,

For several years, Rolls-Royce has been actively
participating with the HRH Prince of Wales Business
in the Environment Programme which explores
solutions for business 1o respond to the sustainability
challenge. As a measure of our own pregress in this
area, | was particularly pleased that in 2002 we were
admitted to the Dow Jones Sustainability Index.

Prospects and priorities

Rolls-Royce is well placed to manage the uncertainties
of the short term and to secure shareholder value Cur
achievements in the past decade have been formidable,
They have been founded on the significant investments
in technology, praduct, capability and capacity which
have enabled us to access long-term global markets and
develop a substantial and diverse installed base Qur
opportunity in the next decade will be influenced by
decisions taken in the last.In this respect, 1 would like to
pay tribute to Sir Ralph Robins who led the company
through this period of transformation and laid the
foundations of cur future success.

Over the next decade the emphasis of our investment
will inevitably change, We will continue to focus our
expenditure on technology acguisition, which we have
doubled in the past decade, and in support of new
product development and in-service improvements.
The pace of new product developrent has slowed,
particularly in civil aerospace where fewer new aircraft
are now being developed While we will continue to
develop new products that deliver vaiue, the priority
has therefore shifted to unit cost reduction, development
of derlvatives, improvement of in-service operation and
the creation of capabilities which increase the scope
and value of our service activities.

Rolls-Royce is in a sound financial position. At the year
end, gearing stood at 29 per cent and total commitied
borrowing facilities amounted to £2.6 bilion. The
company’s foreign exchange hedging policy minimises
the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates.Total

US dollar cover currently armounts to five years' net

US dollar income.

For 2003, our priority is to manage uncertainty,in
particular the consequences of any action in lrag,

and mitigate the impact of additional pension funding
requirements.To do so we will build on the experience
of 2001/2002 and continue our rationalisation activities
with a particular focus on unit cost reduction, quality
and supply chain restructuring We will continue to refine
our information technology platform to ensure that it

is an effective and affordable enabler of our business,

both operationally and in support of our portfolio of
service products.

Qur performance in 2002 has reinforced our confidence
in the business mode! and our ability to manage
the unexpected.

Rolls-Royce strategy at work

Addressing four global markets
The markets in which we operate are
global and we continue to develop
our pesition of strength in each:

Civil aerospace

World number two,cansistently
gaining over 30 per cent of the
available business.There are
9900 large Rolls-Royce jet
engines in service,

Defence aerospace

World number two with 26 percent
of military engines currently instalied.
We have a leading position in Europe
and have a 25 per cent share of the
planned US Department of Defense
aero engine plrchases.

Marine

World number ore'in marine
propulsicn with the widest range
of marine products on the market,
We provide fully integrated systems
and have an extensive global sales
and customer support network.

Energy

World leader in provision of power to
the ofl and gas industry.We continue
o develop new products to address
the power generation market.
Advanced low emissions technaology
on latest versions of the RB211 and
on the industrial Trent.




serations

i performance in 2002 was characterised by sharply
praved control in an environment where factory loads
d product related procurement volumes were more
an 30 per cent below the previous year Operating
sts were successfully reduced and significant
iprovements in delivery performance, manufacturing
d procurement kead times and product unit costs
2re delivered. Operations were re-sized to match
pacity with post-September 11 load and further
ogress was made in the imglementation of our
ake/buy strategy.Changes were implemented faster
an ever before and witheut any industrial disruption,
this context | wish to pay tribute to the teamwork
our entire workforce.

_ir new Enterprise Resource Planning system (SAP)
a5 central to our new capabilities. 2002 was fts first
ft year of operation in the UK and it is now universal
our gas turbine operations. Scheduling can now be
¥ected rapidly and parts delivery performance has
=en transformed. Lead times have been reduced
"d this is leading to improved inventory performance,
2002, preduction inventories fell by sorme 19 per cent
d inventory turns improved by 23 per cent.

“ogress was made in the rationalisation of facilities,
=riicuiarly in the UK Some srnaller facilities were
->sed whilst construction work commenced on a
=w factory at Inchinnan near Glasgow to replace
2 ageing Hiington faciity. Operations will commence
inchinnan in the spring of 2003 with significant
provements in working practices. These have been
—nieved through agreernent with the workforce
bgether with process flow design which has been
=ded by Toyota Machine Works.

number of significant new agreements were reached
ith our workforce in 2002. These generally combine
Exibility with team based working and are key 10
—hieving our targeted productivity levels.
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We introduced the Rolls-Royce Production System,

a new standard set of principles and processes which
will ensure greater consistency in our manufacturing
eperations around the world,

Akey priority in 2002 has been the realisation of cost
reduction programmes in the global supply chain,
including the consolidation of major global commodity
groups,cost improverment workshops and early supplier
involvernent in new product launch programmes.We
also launched our Supply Chain Restructuring initiative,
which is aimed at simplifying the complex supply chain
that has developed over trmeThis process, which is
initially focused on the Trent 503, will reduce the number
of suppliers involved in each engine programme and
consequently the number of transactions involved in
making each engine.

Manufactuting lead times reduced in 2002 as a result
of these combined improvement inftiatives focused
upon our 40-Day Engine goal.

Our particdipation in Exostar, the aerospace and defence
industry’s electronic trading exchange, has led to the
achievement of significant improvements in the
efficiency of critical transactional processes.More than
600 suppliers are now able to access key Rolls-Royce
information, such as schedules and invoices status,

via the internet.

John Cheffins
Chief Operating Officer

In 2003 cur pricrity will be to accelerate implementation
of our improvernent initiatives in order to secure unit Cost
reductions.We will maintain a strong focus on quality
and will preserve long-term capability in the face of the
significant uncertainty in the marketplace.
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Technology

During 2002, Rolls-Royce invested £590 milion in
research and development, continuing the policy of
investing once, but using the results many times in
our different markets. As the emphasis shifts from new
product development to unit cost reduction and the
developrment of the company’s service activities, the
company will retain a fong-term vision for its research
and technology activity. This visicn has been set out in
astrategy outiining a structured approach to developing
technology for specific generations of products and
services in five, ten and 20-year time frames.

The five-year time frame, Vision5, describes the
technologies that we currently have available off-the-
shelf' These will be incorporated intc our new preducts
and services, such as the Trent 500 and the MT30
marina gas wrbine, Some existing engines, such

as the RB211-524G/H-T and the Trerit 800, will be
modified to incorparate these proven technologies
where appropriate. The introduction of new technology
into existing products is a key part of cur strategy

of keeping them constantly up to date.

The Jaint Strike Fighter is an example of ourVisions
strategy where our proven expertise in short take-off
and vertical landing technology is being applied to
the world largest fighter aircraft programme,

I miarine the emphasis will be on developing our
capability in electrical systerns and building on our
strength in hydrodynamics, while in enargy the focus
will be on reduced emissions with fuel flaxibility.

We are continuing to develop our advanced solid

oxide fuel cell technology, complementad by our gas
turbine technology, systems integration skills and routes
to market, Such fuel celis offer significant efficiency

and greenhaulse gas advantages for the distributed
generation of electricity.We are currently running a
programme to demonstrate our capability of installing
a 1MW generator within a standard shipping container.

The ten-year time frame is outlined in Vision1 6 which
describes the range of technologies currently at the
validation stage and which will eventually be included
in aur range of products and services. Significant
demonstration: programmes are aimed at reducing
naise and emissions from civil aircraft engines.

One suchis the Affordable Near Term Low Emissicons
(ANTLE) engine which is being developed as part

of a European Union programme led by Rolis-Royce
and also supported by the UK Government ANTLE will
incorporate a range of technologies such as engine
health monitoring and a lean bum combustor, validated
on a Trent 500-style engine, and will be available for
commercial use by 2008,
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In defence aerospace, work is continuing on the
development of propulsion systerns for unmanned
aerial vehicles, which are seen as the likely successors
te today’s military aircraft.

Advanced waterjets, which cffer high-efficiency
performance aver a broad opertating range, are
being developed for marine applications.

Vision20 describes the range of technologies aimed

at the 20-year time frame.These technclogies are
currently at the strategic research stage and include
emerging or as yet unproven technologies such as
advanced materials and intelligent systems for engine
health monitoring. This focused approach promotes
the research and development of specific technologies
through our extensive research base.

This includes our network of University Technology
Centres (UTCs) which was expanded in 2002 with the
opening of a new centre at Chalmers University in
Sweden for research into hydrodynamics. Since then

we have opened the first UTC in North Arnerica at Purdue
University in Indiana which will research technologies

for future aircraft that use high Mach propulsion systems
to travel as fast as seven times the speed of sound,

CurVision20 technologies will make a major contribution
towards achieving the Advisory Coundil for Aeranautic
Research in Europe (ACARE) goals. This European initiative
is aimed at halving the current perceived noise levels
created by aircraft; halving the amount of CO produced
per passenger kilometre;and cutting by 80 per cent the
amount of NOx preduced by aircraft.

Inthe marine business Vision20 will include further
advances in electric technologies. This will lead to high
efficiency electric systems combined with clean gas

turbines, providing very high levels of energy recovery
through regeneration,

Dr Michael Howse
Director - Engineering
and Technology
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vil aerospace

Civil aerospace we have established ourselves as the

ar number two aero engine manufacturar, having

on 30 per cent of the market over the past three years,
2002, we were encouraged by the continuing level
order activity among our customer base, aithough the
pressed performance of the US airline sector continues
impact sentiment and orders. The overcapacity in the
arket must be resclved before we return to the level
engine deliveries that we achieved in 2001,

2002, we deliverad 856 engines (2001 1,362 engines)
56 alrlines and 93 corporate custamers. Whilst engine
jiveries were dewn by 37 per cent against 2001,the
stalled base of civil iet engines in service grew to 9,900
_r aftermarket sales were in line with our forecasts,
£1.25 biflion with long-term contracts worth £2 billion
ned with 50 customers. Despite the two per cent
o in overall flying hours, the Rolls-Royce fleet flying
DUrs increased by seven per cent, This reflects the
—ent deliveries and the 8.2 year average age of the
—service fleet,

- the end of 2002 there were 2,000 parked ajrcraft,
“which 19 per cent were Rolls-Royce powered,

"e expect approximately half of these Rolls-Royee
Swered aircraft 1o return to service,

"e Trent family continues to be successfulin the high-
rust segment with nearly 1,600 engines ordered by
otal of 39 customers. New Trent customers included
nya Airways for the Trent 800 on their Boeing 777s

nc Middle East Alrlines who chose Trent 700s for

&ir new Airbus A330 fleet.
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The Trent 500 made its maiden development flight
on the ultra-long-distance Airbus A340-500 before
entering commercial service on the higher-capacity
Airbus A340-600 with Virgin Atlantic in August.

At the year-end, preparations were well advanced for
first build of the Trent 900 being developed for the
Airbus A280 superiumbo The Trent 900 is lead engine
for the Alrbus A380 and has secured 57 per cent of
firm and cption orders announced to date.

In the corporate sector,we delivered the 1,000th
Tay engine for the 500th Gulfstream GV,

We continued to develop our services activity, The
recently announced joint venture with Lufthansa will
further expand our Trent repair and overhaul network.
This followed our success in winning orders for the
Trent 500, 700 and 900 to power Lufthansa’s new

fleet of wide-bodied aircraft,

We introduced CorporateCare, the equivalent of
TotalCare packages for the corporate aircraft sector
and signed our 150th customer for aeromanagercom,
aure-business partal for engine services.

Rolls-Royce strategy at work

Investing in technology,
capability and infrastructure

We have developed Trent civil aerc
technology for the new MT30 and
MT50 marine gas turbines. These are
wiorld-class products, offering us new
capabilities in the maripe market.

Rolls-Royce is developing its position
as the customers' partner for marine
systern solutions.The company offers
the widest product range on the
market, matched with in-service
support through over 30 offices

in our global service netwaerk,

As well as gas turbine, diesel and
nuciear prime mavers, Rolls-Reyee
marine equipment Includes:
propefiers, thrusters, steeting gear,
stabilisers, watetjets, bearings,deck
machinery, automated control and
monitoring systems,and cocmplete
vessel designs,

This extensive product portfotio,
service infrastructure and integrated
systems mean we can provide a
complete solution for customers
from concept studies to design,
eguipment selection, interface
rmanagement and in-service support.




Powering 39 out of the
world’s top 50 airlines

TheTrent aera engine family is the
most successful large engine family
avatlable today. Trent engines are
the market leaders on the new
generation of widebody aircraft.

The latest membzer, the Trent 500,
entered service in 2002 and the
Trent 900 for the new Airbus A380
is currently in development.
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fence aerospace Rolls-Royce produces one of the broadest helicopter Rolls-Royce strategy at work
lls-Rayee further consolicated its position asthe angine ranges available in the warg, with 18000 R -

mber two defence aero engine manufacturer turboshaft engines in civil and military service and Df::i(:}t)mgr?fgﬁr:petltwe
ough its strong positions on many of the world's 160 million flying hours accumulated. Milestones in the WE'n cindu s't)ri 3 RRI11 fas been

w programmes, covering sectors from combat helicopter market in 2002 included dalivery of the first ubaraded with the introduction of
d trainer aircraft to transport, unmanned aerial production MTR390s to Furgcopter and the completion ng\?\r Teent technoloay This engine
rveillance, maritime patrol and helicopters. of the initial two flights of the first Fire Scout unmanned oW rated at 33 Mvccfge??s oinc or%orétes
> are a key partner in two of the world's largest helicopter powered by the Model 250. the latest DLE {dry low emissions)
mbat programmes, the Joint Strike Fighter (JSF) The defence business has a total of 34,000 aeroengines  combustors achieving 25vppm,

d the Eurofighter, in service, representing a significant aftermarket NOxand CO levels,

lis-Royce has unigue experlence of vertical take-off opportunity We continted our focuss on the provision

, o ihe Our industrial Trent engine will
“hnoioay and is respongible for the shost take-off and of services, bullding upon the capabilities that we have 9

; o also provide low emissions and
tical landing (STOVL) capability for JSF-We anticipate developed in other sectors. A number of Mission Ready

; . is the most powerful and efficient
oduction revenue of approximately USS3 billion from Management Solutions (MRMS) contracts were signed aeroderivative gas turbine on

5uCCessfgl UK/US JSF STOVL prod uction programme. ]annéog 5 ' ;I\%C;gl(?g Elger;?-lrgi fgé?:?gg;:vﬁ;ﬂﬁeu&wlc’[) the market,

é??éﬂ:g : g;og;agegiégmgg’)a;ﬂ;iﬁﬁggéﬁaﬁomgen Marine Corps in support of its growing KC-130) fleet. We are strong in ofl and gas and well
ke upto 1 SOySTOVL £.35 JSF aircraft We are also The US Navy announced its selection of Rolls-Royce as placed to grow our power generation
10 per cent partner in the interch ang aable main the provider of fu_il cantractor logistic support and engine  business as this market recovers.
opulsion engine, the F136.The JSF design embaodias ?} jlsn;ﬁzfar;tce for its F405 (Adour) engines fitted to its These advanced products, coupled

ortd-leading new technologies, including some of with the capabilities we have in
ose originally developed for the Trent civil aero engine,  Our continuing drive for operational improvement was  producing gas compressors,control
Nis pragramme will keep Rolis-Royce at the forefront recognised by our custorners. The US Defense Contracts  systems and innovative senvices

“advanced propuision development and maintain Managerent Agency (DCMA) honoured thecompany  such as Long-Term Service

i leadershigy in this market. Developrrent work during — with the inaugural Hubert Homer Award, given to the Agreements, mean that Rolls-Royce
e year met all goals. defense contractor who cemenstrates the highest has a comprehensive capability
lis-Royce is also a major parner in the European level of performance improvement while exhibiting in the energy market.

. o : - desired teaming bebhaviours. For the sixth time . .
flaboration which is responsible for the FJ200 engine . o e Services activities in our other
¢ Eurofighter The first production Eurofighter Typhoon Rolls-Royce received the prestigious US Collier Trophy,

_ . ) businesses are also growing.For
mcraft flew powered by production £/200 engines. g;lsstgm?{:asni rﬁﬁ;g?i:ro ;SP;ES;@L?CE?%E@S?E?H example, new e-business products
"e expect engine deliveries to grow over the next ; - such as aeromanagercom are

v years. 1586 Program Office as Supplier of the Year for

operating in the civil area and
through Data Systems & Solutions,
our joint venture software company,
we are providing engine health
monitoring systems on Eurofighter
. for our defence business.

significant operational achievements.
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The power behind
160 armed forces

The company has unrivalled experience
in vertical take-off technology which is
being employed cn programmes such
as the F-35 JSF aircraft. The JSF dasign
incorporates world-leading new
technologies including some of those
originatly developed for the Trent civil
aero engine.
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= matine business continued to deliver steady growth
3 competitive global marketplace. Cur world-leading
sition in cruise, fast vessel, naval and offshore oil

d gas markets is based on the core strengths of the
siness. We have a highly-skilled worldorce, world-class
“hnological expeartise and a comprehensive range
products and capabiities.

e offshore oll and gas sector,which operates in cycles
ated to oil and gas prices, held up well in 2002.Orders
the UT700 series of offshore support vessels reached
0. The ability to both design and equip these ships with
i1 power, propulsion and motion control equipment
J85 US a unique systems capability.

e MT30 gas turbine is the first marine engine
lls-Royce has developad for applications across bath
mmercial and naval markets. Based on the successful
=t 800 aero engine the MT30 has accurulated 200
hurs of successful testing and Is already attracting
“ong interest from potential customers. The engine
=35 recently chosen by the US Navy for the Fngineering
=velopment Model of their DD destroyer
“ogramme and is nominated for the UK Carrier
-ogramme.In additicn we announced the joint
=velopment of a new European High Speed Cargo
=ssel with the Spanish shipbuilder and designer, Izar,
e proposed monchull is intended to be powered
two Rolls-Royoe MT30 gas turbines and Rolls-Royce
mewa waterjets.
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The submarine propulsion business performed strongly
and partnering with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD)

is delivering joint benefits We have been able to develop

new long-term support and service conttacts with the
MoD using experience gained in the civil aerospace
business in providing TotalCare packages.

During 2002, the company’s diesel business was
restructured to allow it to play a full role In the supply
of prime maovers 1o a wide range of customers,

In line with regional shifts in shipbuilding, the marine
business has continued to develop new markets in
Asla while also pursuing new opportunities tc grow
our existing business in the United States.

During 2002 the marine organisaticn was further
rationalised, a new President of the commercial sector
was appointed and we formed a marine electrical
systerns group in order to further develop our power
electronics and automation control capabilities for
more electric vessels.

Rolls-Royce strategy at work

Growing market share

As the number two defence aero
engine manufacturer in the world,
we are a leading player in the
defence arena.

Cur range of defence aerc products,
strength In major markets such as
the US and our developing service
offering through Mission Ready
Management Solutions (MRMS) is
growing the Rolls-Royce position in
this market sector. Through MRMS
we are assisting customers by
providing services tailored to thelr
financial and operational needs.

Rolls-Royce has established strong
positions on leading aircraft platforms
in transport, trainer,combat, UAY

and helicopter markets.

We have custormners in 160 armed
forces around the world.

We have also grown cur market
share in civil aerospace to establish
ourselves as the number two in
this rnarket.

In marine systems we are an
established number one andin
energy we have a leading nosition
in oil and gas and are growing

in power genearation.




World number one in
marine propulsion systems
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ergy

02 was another strong year for cur oit and gas business.

fshore applications dominated the year's order intake
th R8211, Avon and 501 power and compression
ckages sold to traditional markets such as Europe,
rth America and Asia-Pacific. We also continued to
“rease our giobal installed base with sales to frentier
and gas areas such as the Caspian Sea,West Africa

d offshore Newfoundland These ermerging markets
il play an important role in the worldwide oif and

S industry.

. expected, 2002 was a slow year for independent
ower generation, The industry is still weathering the
armath of the Septermber 11 tragedy, followed by

e collapse of several major energy provider companies.

swever we have effectively used this time of slower
arket activity to restructure our business, streamline
ir business processes and reduce the cost and lead
mes of our product offerings. This positions cur
Jsiness not only for the realities of today but also

e anticipated market recovery

=velopment of the industrial Trent 60 WALE {Wet Low
nissions) product was cormpleted,and good progress
=35 achieved on the retrofit programme for the new
=nt 50 OLE (Ory Low Emissions) industrial gas turbine,
ath the first unit now in service The Trent is the most

Hwerful and efficient aeroderivative gas turbine product

the world and will play a significant role in the future
owth of our power generation business, Although
= whelesale electricity prices are very depressed, it is

Rolls-Royce ple e

Nticipated that they will recover aver the medium-term,

We are continuing to develop our advanced solid
oxide fuel cell technaology,complemented by aur
gas turbine technology, systems integration skills
and routes to market.

In 2002, we continued our focus on service business
growth by estaklishing a new unit focused on
developing and marketing engineered equipment
upgrades for all of our products.We also increased
ourfocus on long-term service agreements which
enable customers to achieve improved system
availability. Technclogies such as rerncte monitoring
and diagnostics help ensure the success of these
contracts.In 2002, revenues from such agreements
increased by 52 per cent,

Qur challenge for 2003 Is to continue to drive cost
reduction and improve processes in order to return
the Rolls-Royce Energy business to profitability. We

will capitalise on a currently strong oil and gas market,

effectively position our power generation Dusiness,
and continue to build our aftermarket business.

Rolis-Royce strategy at work

Capturing aftermarket

and service opportunities
AUSS200 miilion service agreement
with South African Airways took the
total civil engine service business
signed in the 12-month pericd, 1o
January 2003, to nearly £2 billior.

These TotalCare packages allow
aitlines to select fromn a menu of
aftermarket services on an agreed
scale of costs per flight hour.ln
these deals Rolls-Royce maintains
the airline’s engines on a planned
maintenance basis on behalf of
the customer.

Four Trent 500 TotalCare agreernents
have been signed so far,with China
Fastern, Lufthansa, South African
Airways and Virgin Atlantic.The
value of the contracts is US$840
million.TotalCare dezls were also
signed last year with Air Canada and
Cathay Pacific involving Trent 700
engines for their Airbus A330 fleets,
These agreements were worth an
acditional 53780 million.

The company has a similar offering
inthe business jet market called
CorporateCare, This is the most
comprehensive engine care
programme in corporate aviation
and during 2002 orders totalling
US$124 million were received
from 34 new customers.

Our defence business customer
sepvice package is known as
Mission Ready Management
Solutions (MRMS) and in energy
and marine we are providing
Long-Term Service Agreements,




Clean energy using low
emissions technology

We have low-emissions combustion
systems for our latest industrial gas
turbines. New products such as the
industrial Trent also benefit from the
latest technology derived from Trent
aero engine programmes.
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Andrew Shiiston
Finance Director

1 2002 we met our targets in spite of
ificult market conditions. We ended

e year in a sound financial position,
vith gearing of 29 per cent,committed
borrowing facilities of £2.6 billion, a
=cord order book and US dollar cover
mounting to five years net US dollar
ncome. Our risk management systems
broved to be robust and a prudent
pproach has been taken in the area

of provisions and charges.
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Results for the year

Underlying profit before tax was £255 million*, compared
o £475 million in 2001.

Underlying earnings per share were 1110p*(2001 20.20p).

Group turnover reduced by nine per cent to £5,788

million, largely as a result of the predicted decline
in the civil aerospace sector.

- Chvil aerospace engine deliveries declined by
37 per cent 10 856 engines and the civij aftermarket
was relatively stable, in line with our guidance.

~ Defence turnover reduced somewhat as a result
of declining sales in Vickers Defence Systerns (VDS),
due to the completion of the large Challenger 2
contract.VDS was sold to Alvis during the year,

- Marine sales grew by 19 per cent, reflecting the
continuing strength of the offshore ¢if and gas
support market sector.

- Energy sales increased by five per cent, reflecting
a strong year for the ol and gas sector.

The Group is increasingly broadening its business base
with eéngine deliveries in civil aerospace now accounting
for only 25 per cent of turnover.

The company reinforced its position as a global business,
with 85 per cent of sales to customers outside the UK.

Underlying trading margins, before risk and revenue
sharing partner receipts and nat research and
developrment, reduced from 99 per cent to 7.5 per cent,
as a result of the difficult trading conditions in the civit
aerospace sector and a number of charges against asset
values. All of the businesses continue to be focused on
impraving productivity, through factory rationalisation,

changes in working practices and further outsaurcing
of production.

The net interest charge reduced from £119 million to
£107 million. This reflected a higher proportion of fioating
rate debt compared to fixed interest rate debt.

Group interest was covered 4.1 times, based upon
underlying profit before interest, excluding joint ventures,

The company has implemented the restructuring
programme announced in 2001 without industrial
disruption. At the end of 2002, the company headcount
was 37,300, representing a net reduction of 4300 during
the year As part of this programme a further 200
ermployees are due 1o leave in the early part of 2003.
The company is therefore on target to achieve annual
cost savings of £250 million from this restructuring
exercise. The headcount is expected to be reduced

o around 35,000 by the year-end, with further

restructuring charges of approximately £50 million
in 2003.

* excluding exceptional and non-trading items, defined in note 2.
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The Group made an underlying profit before tax
of £255 million (2001 £475 million).

After charging exceptional and non-trading items,
profit before tax was £105 million (2001 £192 million).

Net working capital reduced as a percentage of sales,
from 105 per cent to 6.8 per cent.

Afinal cividend of 5.0p per share is proposed, making
a total of 8.18p per share for the year, {2001 8.18p).The
dividend is covered 1.3 times by underlying earnings
and 04 times after exceptional and non-trading iterns,

Included within underying eamings were a number
of charges taken against asset values:

~ In the civil aerospace sector, charges against the
profit and loss accournit in respect of aircraft values
and an increase inthe custorner inancing provision,
amounted to £50 mitfion. A further £23 million charge
related to a financial guarartee to AFT, which is part
of Pembroke Group, the company’s aircraft leasing
joint verure.

— In the energy sector,charges of £31 million were taken
against the Allen 5000 diesel engine,

- 'nthe financial services sector, impairment charges
of £30 miffion were taken against industriat Trent power
projects, reflecting current depressed electricity prices.
In addition,z £12 million charge was taken relating to
AFT's fleet of 29 Folker alrcraft,

Order book

The order book was £16.2 billion (2001 £14.4 billion).

ltems are included in the order kock when a signed
CONtract exists.

In civil aerospace itis cornmon for a customey to take
options for future orders in addition to firm orders placed.
Such options are excluded from the order book until they
become firm, signed orders.

In defence aerospace, long-term programmes are often
ordered for only one year at a time. In such circumstances,
even though there may be no aiternative engine choice
available to the customer,only the contracted business

is included in the order bock.

Long-Term Service Agreements,inciuding TotalCare
packages for aftermarket services, represenied 21 per
cent of the order book These are long-term contracts

where only the first seven years'revenue is incluced
in the order boolk,

Business which has been announced but for which
contracts have not yet been signed is excluded from
the order book This amounted to a further £2.9 billion
atthe year end (2001 £2.3 killion).
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Aftermarket services

The company has been successful in selling TotaiCare
packages, covering long-term support for customers’
engines.This is leading to an increase in long-term
contracts where the engine maintenance agreement
is linked to,and eritered into, at the same time as the
ofiginal equipment sale. in such cases, the original
equipment sale and support activities,including the
sale of spare parts, will form part of the same long-term
contract.The pricing of such contracts differs from
conventional engine sales and reflects the long-term
nature of the contract. Profit is taken progressively

on & prudent basis resulting in a net asset of £384 million
on the balance sheet.

Cash

The Group cash flow statement is shown on pages
42 and 43 of the fimandial staternents.

Net debt for the year increased by £94 miflion, to £595
millior {2001 £501 million), after assuming £133 million
additional debt reiating to the purchase of six aircraft in
connection with sales financing activities. The average
net debt level increased by less than originally forecast
from £590 million to £1,090 million.

The average net debt is expected 1o remain refatively
level in 2003 This reflects the expected full year impact
of the increased rumber of aircraft on the kalance sheet.

Net cash flow from operating activities was £778 miflion,
before £167 million which was expended on restructuring
activities (2001 £504 million). Major uses of funds were
capital expenditure including the acquisition of aircraft,
Taxation

The overall tax charge on the profit before tax was

£52 million (2001 £86 million), a rate of 50 per cent

(2001 45 per cent), This relatively high overall Group tax

rate was primarily due 1o the impact of goodwill charged
against profits for which no tax relief is available,

The rate was also affected by losses in certain overseas
businesses for which tax relief will only be avaitzble
against future profits in the same jurisdiction. No relief
has been taken for such losses in the accounts.

The tax charge was reduced by £6 million in respect
of the anticipated benefit of the Uk researchand
development tax credit that was introduced with
effect from Aprii 1,2002

The tax charge on underlying profits was £76 million
(2001 £154 million),a rate of 30 per cent (2001
32 percent).

Acquisitions and disposals

During the year,the Group disposed of its interests in
Vickers Defence Systems (see note 32).This is subject
10 agreement of the completion accounts,which
may result in an adjustment to the disposal proceeds
received. The Group also made a number of smaller
acquisitions and disposals during the year.
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nsions

hough the full implementation of FRS 17 (Post
tirernent Benefits) has been deferred pending the
roduction of International Accounting Standards,
rtain disclosures are required {see note 30). As for

= 2001 accounts, this includes the value of pension
yermne assets and liabilities using the new rules
ecified by FRS 17.Under this standard a snapshot is
«en of pension fund assets and liabilities at a specific .y o
it in time. Thus, movements in equity m arke'?s and which included the purchase of six aircraft,

SCOUNt rates are expected to create volatility in the Partnerships

Iculation of scheme assets and lisbilities Additionally  The development of effective partnerships continues

r 2002,a memorandum analysis of the prefitand loss - to be a key feature of the company's long-term strategy.
arge under FRS 17 is required. Major partnerships are of two types:joint ventures and
Y this basis, at Decemibber 31,2002, and after taking risk and revenue sharing partners.

count of deferred taxation, for the UK schemes, there Joint ventures
55 a nel shorifall of assets over respective liabilities

QOver the next decade the pace of new product
developrment will slow, particularly in civil aerospace
where fewer new aircraft are now being developed.

The emphasis will be on unit cost reduction,
development of derivatives,improvement of in-service
operation and the creation of capabilitizs which increase
the scope and value of the company’s service activities.

Capital expenditure, was £344 million (2001 £221 million),

neunting to £1,117 mitlion (2001 £284 million). This
=ficit Ras been assessed &t a pointin time whien eqguity
arkets are depressed and discount rates are low, both
“which have a material impact on scheme vajuations,

Joint veriures are an integral part of our business. They
are involved in engineering and manufacturing, repair
and overhaul,and financial services. They share risk

and investment, bring expertise and access 1o markets,
and provide external objectivity, Qur joint ventures have
become substantial businesses, as shown in the table

Joint ventures Rolls-Royce share &m

Rpwyd  Hnmesl Enginecting ]
wrhal e aret
kR

Gross assets 119 620 427 1,166

Debxt 5oy (511 55 B16)

1e deficit has had noimpact on 2002 funding. The

Other liabilities  (34)  (57) (264) (355)
-oug’s funding requirements for the schemes are

Gross liabiliies  (84) (568) (319) (971

opposite. A major proportion of the delt of the joint
~rived from triennial actuarial valuations, the next zggiu fr?is::rfg ﬁig:_igs&?gigggﬁﬁépgg '\(S
which is due to commence in March 2003.While P . AT yee pic. Net assets 35 52 108 1%
. . . The recourse financing obligations total £35 million
& company intends to continue to provide a defined and are included in contingent liabilities (see note 28)
=nefit scheme, it has commenced consultations with 9 ’

Tployees over a number of cther mitigating actions Investment in the aircraft leasing and management
connection with the provision of pension benefits. joint venture, Pembroke, amounts to £30 millicn
e objective of these actions is to contain the additional  and substantially all of its delbt is non-recourse to
nding costs within the guidance provided in 2002. Rolls-Royce plc. The investment in a subsidiary of

Permbroke, AFT,a company owning and leasing
e shortfall, net of deferred tax, on overseas schemes e ! .
ounted 10 £158 million (2001 £113 millon),which T Okker aircraft was written off during the year.
der current accounting standards, is substantially
vered by existing provisions on the balance sheet,

vestments
e Group continues to subject all investments
rigorous examinaticn of risks and future cash flows
ensure that they create sharehoider valua. All major
estments require Board apgroval, business to individual product risk.The primary financial
e Group has a portfolio of projects at different gene]ﬁg sa err?td(URglljo)n (;fth%i;zrd%nnof rfiearrchrsni’] ec
ges of their life cycles. Discounted cash flow analysis Tﬁve ﬂmd R&D N Fc)ﬁn e oxmoms d ?hog rch '
“the remaining life of projects is performed ona € reae EXPENCILUTE IS expensed through the
. i . profit and loss account and the receipts from partners
ular basis. Sales of engines in production are assessed Is ded in the orofit and loss account as othe
ainst criteria in the original development programme dfe asorecodea In Ine profit anctass Uk as r
ensure that overall vakue is enhanced. operating Income.

oss research and development investment amounted RRShP agrﬁements area Istzndard fﬁ rml:()) f co%peraftlton
£590 million (2001 £636 million).Net researchand 7 U Vil aéro-engine indlustry. They bring benefits
velopment was £297 million (20‘01 £358 million) tothe engine manufgcturer and the partner.for t_he

e reduction was largely attributable to the mix 01" manufacturer they bring some or all ofthg following
oducts under development Investment in training benefits:additional financial and engineering resource;
as maintained at £26 miliion'(2001 £26 million} sharing of risk and initial programme investment

) contribution. As appropriate, the partner supplies

components free of charge and subsequently receives
a share of the long-term revenues generated by the
engine programme in proportion o its purchased
programme share.

Investment in the engine leasing joint venture,
Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance amounts £21million
and all of its debit is non-recourse 1o Rolls-Royce plc.

Risk and revenue sharing partners (RRSPs)
RRSPs have enabled Rolls-Royee to build a broad portfolio
of engines, thereby reducing the exposure of the

Rolls-Royee ple -
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The sharing of risk is fundamental to RRSP agreements.
In general, partners share financial investment in the
pragramme;they share market risk as they receive their
return from future sales; they share currency risk as their
returns are denominated in US dollars; they share sales
financing obligations; they share warranty costs;and,
where they are manufacturing or development partners,
they share technical and cost risk,

Ali receipts from RRSPs are recorded as‘other operating
income’ Payrments to RRSPs are recorded within cost of
sales.in 2002 other operating income in respect of RRSP
agreerments amounted to £158 million (2001 £239
mifliion). Payrments to RRSPs, charged in cost of sales,
amounted to £139 million (2001 £113 million). As new
prograrnme activity declines, payrnernits which relate

to existing programmes, will ultimately excead receipts
On NEW pIogrammes.

Intangible assets

The Group carried forward £868 million of intangible
assets. Purchased goodwill increased from £769 million
1o £786 million due mainly to exchange adjustments of
£68 million exceeding annual arnortisation of £52 million.

Engine certification costs carried forward amounted
1o £45 million.

Application engineering costs carried forward amounted
t0 £37 million.

Risk management

The Board has established a structured approach to
risk rnanagement. The risk committee of the Board has
accountabllity for the system of risk management and
reporting the key risks and associated mitigating actions.
The Director of Operational Risk reports to the Finance
Director The Group's policy is to preserve the resources
upon which its continuing reputation, viability and
profitability are built, in order 1o enable the corporate
objectives to be achieved through the operation of
the Rolls-Royee business processes. Risks are formally
identified and recorded in a corporate risk register,
which is reviewed and updated on a regular basis, with
risk mitigation plans identified for all significant risks.

Financial risk management

The Group uses various financial instrumenits in order

to manage the exposures that arise frorm its business
operations as a result of movements in financial markets.
All treasury activities are focused on the management
and hedging of risk It is the Group policy not to trade
financial instruments or to engage in speculative financial
transactions.There have been no significant changes

in the Group's policies In the last year.
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The principal economic and market risks continue to

be movements in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and commodity prices. The Board regularly
reviews the Group's exposures and risk management
and a specialist committee also considers these in detail,
All such exposures are managed by the Group Treasury
function,which reports to the Finance Director and
which operates within written policies approved by

the Board and within the intermnal control framework
described in the report of the directors.

The Grougs policy is 1o monitor and manage its exposure
to counterparties. Credit limits are set to cover all inancial
instrurnents for each counterparty. The Group's policy is
that it is exposed only to those counterparties that have

z long-term credit rating of A3/A- or betier,

Funding and liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture
of shareholders'funds, bank borrowings, bonds, notes
and finance leases. The Group borrows in the major
global markets in a range of currencies. It employs
derivatives where appropriate to generate the desired
currency and interest rate profile.

During 2002 the Group, through the normal course
of business, refinanced £923 million of borrowing
facilities in a number of currencies and a range of
maturities. As at December 31,2002 the Group had
total committed borrowing facifities of £2.6 billion.

in Jarwary 2003 the Group concluded the last part

of its current planned refinancing with the completion
of a £103 milfion revolving credit facility,

Assuming no further refinancing activity the Group
will have total borrowing facilities of £2.5 billion at
December 31,2003 and £1.9 billion at December 31,2004,

The terms for the recently completed refinancings are
subistantially similar 1o the Grougs previous facilities.,

There are no rating triggers contained in any of the
Group's facilities that could require the Group to
accelerate or repay any facility for a given movement
in the Group's credit rating and no material impact
on the Groups interest charge is expected to arise
from a movement in the Group's credit rating.

The Group holds financial investments and maintains
undrawn committed facilities at a level suficient to
ensure the Group has available funds to meetits
medium-term capital and funding obligations and

ta meet any unforaseen abligations and opportunities.
The Groug from time to time holds cash and short-term
investmenits which, together with the undrawn
committed facilities,enable the Group to manage

its liquidity risk.
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rrency risk

e GGroup is exposed to maovements in exchange
es for both foreign currency transactions and the
nslation of net assets and profit and loss accounts
foreign subsidiaries.

e Group does not hedge the translation effect of
change rate movernents on the profit and oss

count or Dalance sheet as it regards its interest in
erseas subsidiary companies as long-term investments.

e Group is exposed to a number of foreign currencies.
e most significant transactional curency exposure is

e S dollar followad by the Euro.US dollar income, net
axpenditure, represents 38 per cent of the UK turnover,

e Group operates a hedging policy using a variety

financial instruments with the objective of minimising
< impact of fiuctuations in exchange rates on future
ansactions and cash flows.

e permitted range of the amount of cover taken is
=termined by the written policies set by the Board,
2sed on known and forecast income levels. The forward
wer is managed within the parameters of these policies
order to achieve the Group's ohjectives, having regard
« the Group's view of long-term exchange rates. Forward
-ver extends for periods of up to eight years and is in
me form of standard foreign exchange contracts and
struments on which the exchange rates achieved
ay be dependent on future interest rates. The Group
0 writes currency options against a portion of the
hedged dollar income at a rate which is consistent
ith the Group's long-term target rate. The premium
ceived from the sale of the aptions is included in the
oup's achieved exchange rate. Total US dollar cover
proximated to five years'net US doflar income at
cernber 31,2002 (2001 five years).

e consequence of this policy has heen 1o maintain
relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rate.
ote 24, financial instrurnenits, includes the impact of
valuing forward currency contracts at market values
December 31,2002, showing an increase in value of
51 millionThis figure, which for 2001 was a reducticn in
lue of £550 million, will fluctuate over time and have no
ual impact on the resuits. The Group has entered into
ese forward contracts as part of the hedging policy,
scribed above, in order to mitigate the impact of

he Group uses fixed rate bonds and floating rate debt
funding sources.The Group's policy is to maintain
higher proportion of net debt at fixed rates of interest
aving regard 1o the prevailing interest rate outlook To
plement this policy the Group utilises a combination
finterest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
terest caps to manage the exposure.
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Commodity risk

The Group has an ongaing exposure to the price of

jet fuel arising from business operations. The Group's
objective is to minimise the impact of price fluctuations.
The exposure is hedged in accordance with parameters
contained in a written policy set by the Board, Hedging
is conducted using commaodity swaps that extend

for periods up to four years.

Sales financing

In connection with the sale of its products, the Group

will on some occasions provide financing support for

its customers. This rmay involve the Group guarantesing
financing for customers, providing asset vallle guarantees
on aircraft for a proportion of their expected future value,
or entering intc ieasing transactions.

The Group manages and monitors its sales finance
related exposures 1o custorners and products within
written policies approved by the Board and within
the internal framework described in the report of
the directors.The permitted levels of gross and net
exposure are limited in aggregate by ceunterparty,
by product type and by calendar year,

The Board regularly reviews the Group's sales inance
related exposures and risk management activities.
£ach financing commitment is subject to a credit
and asset review process and prior approval by the
Chief Bxecutive,and Finance Director The Group
operates a sophisticated risk-pricing model to assess
risk and exposure. Costs and exposures associated
with providing financing support are incorporated
in any decision to secure naw business.

The Group's exposure managerent process falls
into three phases:

1.minimising the level of exposure that is assumed by
the Group from sales finance commitments through
the use of third party non-recourse deit where
appropriate or through other arrangements;

2 reducing the level of exposure that has been assumed
by the Group through the transfer, sale, or re-insurance
of risks,;and

3.ensuring the proportionate flow down of risk
and exposure to relevant risk and revenue
sharing partners.

Each of the above forms an active part of the Group'’s
eXposure management process.

Where exposures arise, the strategy has been,and
continues to be, to assume where possible liquid forms
of financing commitment that may be sold or transferred
10 third parties when the opportunity arises.

Contingent liabilities
Note 28 to the accounts describes the Group’s
contingent liabilities under sales financing arangements.

The gross contingent liability increased to £1,093 millicn
(2001 £857 miftion),of which £35 million (2001 £78
million) relates to sales financing support provided

10 joint ventures The gross contingent liability figure

is calculated by aggregating the maximum exposure
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on all such sales financing commitments, before applying  International accounting standards

the value of the underlying security, but offsetting sums
separately insured and sums provided for in the balance
sheet.In 2002 provisions against customer financing
exposures were increased by £31 million and £48 miflion
of existing provisions were utilised. Provisions of £64
million were carried forward in respect of sales financing
commitments (see note 22),

The Group's contingent liabilities are divided
approximately 60/40 between asset value guarantees
(AVGs) and credit guarantees. They spread over many
years and relzte 10 a number of customers and a broad
product portfolio.The contingent liabilities represent
the maximum aggregate gross and net exposure that
the Group has in respect of defivered aircraft, regardless
of the point in time at which such exposures may arise.
Exposures are not reduced to a net present value for the
purposes of reporting the Group's contingent liabilities,

The Group uses Airclaims Limited as an independent
aporaiser tovalue its security pordolio at both the
haif-year and year-end. Airclaims provides spacific values
{both current and forecast future values) for each asset
in the security portfolio. These values are then used

1o assess the Group's net exposure. They incorporate

Alrclaims'assessment of the current depressed level
of aircraft values.

After taking account of the underlying security, the
Groups net contingent liability decreased to £186 million
{2001 £206 milion).The year on year movernent in
reparted contingent ligbilities reflects the utilisation of
sales finance commitments in the last year, the attrition
of existing contingent labilities through natural debt
retirement or risk transfer, and, additionally in the case of
net cantingent liabilities, the changes in the level farm,
and value of any underlying security.

In reporting the Group's contingent liability with respect
to sales financing, the Group includes a net exposure
stress test which incorporates the impact of a 20 per cent
fall in the value of all securities compared to the Airclaims
current and future values.This represents a cautious
view,as the Airclaims'values already reflect the current
depressed market. Application of this stress test

results in a net contingent liability of £251 million

(2001 £283 million),

The directors regard the possitility that there will be

any significant loss arising from these contingencies
as ramote.

Asset Value Guarantees require a period of notice to

be given before they can be exercised. No such notice
has been received that would enable AVGs to crystallise
in 2003.The company took ¢harges and made prudent
provisions against credit exposures in 2002,

23 Rolls-Royce pl A fres 20

Al European Union listed groups are required to

adopt International Accounting Standards {|AS) for
their financial statements from 2005, which will include
comparative information for 2004.The Group is currently
undertaking a detailed review of the impact of IAS on
its published financial statements. Although these
standards are themselves evolving and undergoing
improvement, a prefiminary review shows that there
may be a significant impact on the Group's accounts,
particularly in relation to the mark-to-market of financial
instruments and capitalisation of a portion of research
and development expenditure.

Share price
During the year Rolls-Royce shares fell by 36 per cent
from 166.5p to 107.0p per share,compared to a

36 per cent fall for the aerospace and defence sector
and a 24 per cent fal! for the FTSE 100.

The company’s shares ranged in orice from 95.25p
in Qctober to 203.5p in April,

The number of shares in issue at the end of the year
was 1,617 million,an increase of 16 million of which
one million related to share options and 15 milfion
related to scrip dividends,

The average nurnber of shares in issue was 1,612 million
(2001 1,589 million). Underlying eamings per share
waere 11.10p a reduction of 45 per cent over 2001.

The proposed final dividend per share will result

in a total payment of 8,18p per share,

Financial services

Rolls-Royee aims to provide its customers with a
range of services, from financing support to ongoing
maintenance and after sales support. The financial
services businesses comprise:engine leasing
(Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance), alrcraft leasing
(Perbroke) and electrical power project
development (Rolls-Royce Power Ventures),

The financial services businesses made a reduced
contribution, following asset impairment adjustments
in the aircraft leasing and power ventures businesses.

Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance, the Group's joint
venture engine leasing business,owns a portfoiio

of 257 engines with 32 customers, The proportion of
engines on lease remains high, at 98 per cent, by value,

Pembroke Group, the Group's joint venture aircraft
leasing business,cwns 58 aircraft on lease to 17
customers in 14 countries, 94 per cent, by valug, of
the owned aircraft fleet is on lease. Impairment
adjustments of £12 million were made inrespect
of the company's fleet of 29 Fokker aircraft.

Rolls-Reyce PowerVenturas, the Group's power project
developer, has 13 power generation projects in operation
and seven in construction or commissioning.The
business is being restructurad, reflecting the general
weakness in power generation markets.Impairment
adjustments of £30 million were made against the
company's portfolio of industrial Trent power projects,
reflecting the current weaknass in electricity prices.
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an Baird MA, DSc Non-executive Chairman

pointed to the Beard in 2002 and appeinted non-executive Chairman in
bruary 2003.He is a director of Areva (France), Saciété Geénérale (France),

d a non-executive director of Scottish Power ple (UK). He was formerly
airman and Chief Executive Officer of Schlumberger Limited {France and
A, 2 director of Bangue Paribas from May 1994 until October 1999 and a
in-executive director of The BOC Group pic from July 1995 until January
99, He is a membber of the Advisory Commitiee of Banque de France and
e Prime Minister's Counci! of Science and Technclogy. He is a trustee of the
rnegie Institution of Washington. Age 65.

r John Rose Chief Executive

pointed to the Board in 1992.He joined Rolls-Royce in 1984 and was
anaging Director — Aerospace Group from 1995 to 1996 when he was
yoointed Chief Executive. He is a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society

d a Counctl Mermber of The Prince’s Trust as Chairman of the Prince’s Trust
1siness. Age 50,

ord Moore of Lower Marsh PC, BSc Non-executive Deputy Chairman
1d Senior Independent non-executive director

Hpointed to the Board in 1994 and appointed Deputy Chairman in 1996.

= is European Chairman of Monitor Company Ing, a director of Marvin &
almer Inc.and a member of the board of directors of Private Client Bank AG.
=is aformer President of the Energy Saving Trust. Age 65.

2ter J Byrom BSc, FCA Non-executive director

—-pointed to the Board in 1997, He was a director of N M Rothschild & Sons

nited fram 1977 to 1996.He is Chairman of Darmino Printing Sciences plc

d of Molins PLC, and a non-executive director of Wilson Bowden plc.He s a
flow of the Royal Aeronautical Society. Age 58.

hn P Cheffins BSc, Ing, FREng, FRAeS Chief Operating Officer

pointed to the Board in 2001 He joined Rolls-Royce in 1967, became
‘esident and Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce Industries Canada Inc.in

91, Director, Civil Engine Business in 1693, President - Civil Aerospace in

98 and Chief Operating Officer in 2001.He is a Fellowy of the Royal Acadeny

Engineering and of the Royal Aercnautical Society. He is a member of the
stitution of Electrical Enginsers and of the Crder of Engineers of Quebec.

e 55,

lin H Green BSc, CEng, FREng, FiMechE, FRAeS

sident - Defence Aerospace

pointed to the Beard in 1996.He joined Rolls-Royce in 1968, became
rector — Millitary Engines in 1989, Executive Vice President — Business
perations Allison Engine Company,Inc.in 1995, Managing Director -

rospace Group in 1996, Director - Operations in 1998 and was appointed
esident ~ Defence Aerospace in 2001.He is a non-executive director of

pic.He is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering, the Royal

ronautical Society and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers,He is also

e President of the Society of British Aerospace Companies and

airman of the UK Council for Electronic Business. Age 54.

mes M Guyette BSc President and Chief Executive Officer of
s-Royce North America inc.
opointed 1o the Board in 1998.He became President and Chief Executive
cer of Rolis-Royce North America inc, in October 1997.Until 1584 he was
ecutive Vice President, Marketing and Planning of United Airlines. He serves
the United States National Research Council Aeronautics and Space
gineering Board and he is a director of the Private Bank and Trust Company
Chicago. lllinois. Age 57.

Rolis-Royce ple v

ANy
7 NN
BNV E

Dr Michael G JW Howse OBE, FREng, FIMechE, FinstP, FRAes, CEng, PhD
Director - Engineering and Technology

Appointed to the Board in 2001.He joined Rolls-Royce in 1968 and has held a
variety of positions within Engineering, including Chief Development
Engineer RB211 Davelopment, Head of Advanced Engineering for the
Aerospace Group, Director of Engineering and Technology — Civil Astospace.
He is a Fellow of the Royal Acadermy of Engineering, Royal Aeronautical
Society, institution of Mechanical Engineers and the Institute of Physics,a
former Chairman of the Technical Board of the Society of British Aerospace
Companies and Visiting Professor in the School of Mechanical Engineering at
Cranfield University. Age 60,

Sir Robin Nicholson FREng, FRS Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1986.Until 1896 he was an executive director of
Pilkington plc. He is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering,a Fellow of
the Royal Society,a nor-executive director of BP plcand heisa
Pro-Chancelior of UMIST. He was a member of the UK Government's Council
for Sclence and Technology from 1ts incepticn in 1993 untit 2600, Age 68.

Andrew B Shilston MA, ACA, MCT Finance Director

Appointed to the Board as Finance Director in January 2003, having joined
Rolls-Royee in 2002, He was Finance Director of Enterprise Ol ple from 1893
until 2002, He is a non-executive director of AEA Technology plc. Age 47.

Carl G Symon BS¢, MSc Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1999.He was previousty Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, IBM UK He held numerous executive positions in IBM Carp.
in Canada, USA, Latin America and Asia during a 32 year intemational career.
He is Chairman of a number of private companies, Vice-Chairman of Cross
Atlantic Capital Pariners, and Managing Director, Global Business
Development and Alliances, DiamendCluster International Inc.He is also a
nor-executive director of BT Group plc. Age 56.

Sir John Weston KCMG Non-executive director

Apnointed 1o the Board in 1298, During his Diplomatic Service career he has
fived and worked in Europe, the USA and Asia.In London he was Deputy
Secretary to the Cabinet and Political Director in the Foreign Office. He served
as British Ambassador 1o NATO 1992 1o 1995,and subsequently as British
Ambassador to the United Nations in New York until July 1998 Formerly a
non-executive director of BT Group ple from 1998 1o 2002.He is currently a
non-executive director of Hakluyt & Co Ltd, Hon President of the Community
Foundation Network (UK), Chairman of Governors of Sherborne School and
Haonorary Fellow of Worcester College Oxford. Age 64,

Charles Blundell MA Company Secretary

He joined Rolls-Royce in 1993 and was appointed Company Secretary
in 1995.Age 51.

Membership of prindipal Board committees:

Audit committee -

2 J Byrom (Chairmany, Lord Moore of Lower Marsh and Sir Robin Nicholson.
Remuneration committee -

C G Syrmon (Chairman} and all non-executive directors,

Nominations committee -

D E Baird (Chairman), Sir John Rose and all non-executive directors.
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Report of the directors

The directors present their report and the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended December 31,2002,

Principal activities

The Greup's principal activities are described in the Company profile on
page 1.

Results for the year

The Chairrnan's staternent, the Chief Executive’s review and the Finance

Director’s review describe the year's operations, research and development
activities and future prospects.

The divectors recommend a final dividend of 5.00p a share With the interim
dividend of 3.18p a share, paid on January €,2003, this will make a total
dividend of 8.18p a share for the year. Subject to the approval of the
recommended final dividend by shareholders, the tota cost of dividends for
2002 is £133 million. If approved, the Company will pay the final dividend on
July 7,2003 to shareholders registered on April 25, 2003.

New holding company
On March 4, 2003, the Company will announce its intention e intreduce a

new hoiding company for the Grouip using a Scheme of Arrangement under
Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985.

At flotation in 1987, the Group's business was primarily focused on the
aerospace sector. Since then, whilst rernaining a focused power systems
company, the Group has developed its operations, particularty following a
series of acguisitions, so that it now operates globally in a nurnber of
complementary markets — civil aerospace, defence, marine and energy. As the
Group’s corporate structure has remained largely unchanged since flotation,
there Is,increasingly,  divergence between the existing corporate structure
and the operationa! and reporting structure commonly put in place for the
management of an international business. The directors believe that the
proposed non-trading, holding company structure with cperating
subsidiaries underneath will provide flexibility for the Group to align its
corporate structure more closely with that of its operational divisions and
maragement reporting lines.In addition, the new structure will place the

Group in a better position to address operational, accounting and legal
issues which may arise in the future.

The Company will issue a circular to shareholders containing full detafls of
this proposal at the same time as the annual report and will be seeking
shareholder approval for it at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

If approved, it is expected that the change will become effective on
June 23,2003.

Directors

Directors who held office during 2002 are listed on page 24, with the
exception of Mr RT Turmer who retired from the Board with effect from

May 30,2002 and Mr P Heiden who resigned from the Board with effect from
December 31,2002, Mr D E Baird was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect frorn Novernber 1,2002 and, as non-executive
Chalrman, with effect from February 3,2003.Mr A B Shilston was appointed as
a director of the Company with effect from January 1,2003,

Under the Company’s Articles of Association,one third of the directors are
subject to re-election every vear, with each director also being subject to
re-glection at intervals of not more than three years. Any director appointed
during the year is required to retire and seek re-election by the shareholders
at the next Annual General Mesting The Board has recently reviewed its
policy with respect to the re-election of directors and has concluded that all
the directors should retire each year and be subject to re-election, The Board
intends to pursue this policy at the 2003 Annual General Meeting.
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Corporate governance

The Group is committed to the highest standards of corporate governance.
This report (and, where appropriate, the Directors' remuneration report)
describes how it applies the principles, and complies with the provisions, of
the Combined Code. The Board will be considering its response to the
recomnmendations contained in the Higgs and Smith reports which are
expected to come into effect in July 2003,

Compliance

The 8oard confirms that in 2002, the Company camplied with all the
pravisions of the Combined Code,

The Board

The Board comprises a non-executive chaitman, a chief executive, five other
executive directors and five non-executive directors. Biographies of the
directors appear on page 24.Lord Moare of Lower Marsh has held the
position of non-executive Deputy Chairman since 1996 and is the Group's
Senior Independent director. All the non-executive directors are considered
by the Board to be Independent of management and free of any relationship
which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement. They are appointed by the Board for specified terms on the basis
of recomrnendations put to the Board by the nominations committee.

The Board meets regularly throughout the vear. It considers all issues relating
1o the strategy, direction and future development of the Group. thas a
schedule of matters reserved to it for decision, which is regularly updated The
requirement for Board approval on these matters is understood and
cormmunicated widely throughout the Group.

To enable the Board 1o function effectively and the directors to discharge

their responsibilities, full and timely access is provided 1o all relevant
information.

ThereIs an agreed procedure for directors to take independent professionai
advice at the Company's expense.This is in addition to the access every
director has to the Company Secretary and to the General Counsel Where
appropriate, training Is offered to newly appointed directors,

The Group Executive

The Grougp Executive is respensible for the running of the Company within
the strategy determined by the Board.

The Group Executive is chaired by Sir John Rose, Chief Executive.
Its other members are:

Mr A Arendt, Chairman ~ Rolls-Royee Deautschland Ltd & Co KG
Mr J P Cheffins, Chief Cperating Officer

MrET Curley, President - Energy Business

MrC H Green, President - Cefence Aerospace

Mr J M Guyette, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Rolls-Royce North America Inc.

Mr C J Hole, Director of Procurement

Dr MG JW Howse, Director - Engineeting and Technology

Dr Stanyado, President ~ Marine Business

M1 A Loyd, Managing Director ~ Aero Repair and Overhaul

Dr M Lloyd, Director — Gas Turbine Operations

Mr I R Rivers, Director — Human Rescurces

Mr A B Shilston, Finance Director

Mr M J Terrett, President - Civil Aerospace
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ard commitiees

e Board has delegated certain powers and duties to Board committees,
of which operate within defined terms of reference. In 2003, the Board will
undertaking a review of the operation and membership of Board
mmittees in light of the recommendations contained in the MHiggs and
lith reports.

rninations comritiee

e nominations committee makes recommendations to the Board on the
peintment of executive and non-executive directers, During 2002 the
mmittee was chaired by Sir Ralph Robins who retired as its Chalrman

lowing his retirernent from the Company on January 31,2003.Mr D £ Baird

35 subsequently appointed by the Board as Chairman of the nominations
rnrnittes with effect from Feboruary 1,2003.The other mermbers of the
minations committee are Mr P J Byrom, Lord Moore of Lower Marsh,

- Robin Nicholson, Sir John Rose, Mr C G Syrnon and Sir John Weston,

runeration committeg

12 remuneration committee’s membership and principal terms of reference

= set out in the Directors remuneration report on pages 31 to 39.

it committee
e gudit committee has responsiility for reviewing the Grougs financial
porting, including its accounting policies. It is also responsible for the

omipany’s refationship with the external audiiors and for the business
surance function.

e committee, which consists exclusively of independent non-executive
rectors,is chaired by Mr P} Byrom and its other members are Lord Moore
~Lawer Marsh and Sir Robin Nicholson. It rmeets three times a year, with the

=ternal auditors also in attendance.

ring the year the committee’s role in relation to the external auditors has
n widened in order 1o meet evelving corporate governance
uirernents and recommended best practice.

e committee is responsible for recommending to the Board the
pointment of the auditors. It is also respensible for reviewing the scope of

e audit,approving the audit fee and, on an annual basis, satisfying itself that

e auditors are independent,

order to safeguard auditor independence and abjectivity, the following

licy is applied in respect of the non-audit services pravided by the auditors:

dit refated services — These are undertaken by the auditors, as it is work that

ey must, or are best sulted, to perform. It includes formalities relating to
rrowings, shareholder and other circulars, risk managerment services,

rious reguiatory reports and work in respect of acquisitions and disposals.

¥, accounting and mergers and acguisitions — The auditars are used for this
rk where they are best suited to undertake it. All other significant
nsulting work in these areas is put out to tender,

{other advisory services/consulting - The auditors are generally prohibited
m providing these services,

addition, the committee monitors throughaout the year the cost of
n-audic work undertaken by the auditors and is therefore in a position to

ke action if it believes at any time that there is a risk of the auditors’

dependence being undemined through the award of this work.

e committee reviews and approves the Company's business assurance
ork programmes and ensures that the business assurance functicn is

equately resourced and that its work is coordinated with the work of the
ternal auditors.
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Risk committee

The risk committee is accountable for the Company’s risk management and
for reporting key risks and the asscciated mitigating actions to the Board.
The committee is chaired by Sir John Rose and its other members are

Mr J P Cheffins,Mr CH Green,Mr J M Guyette, Dr M G JW Howse and
Mr A B Shilston.

Health, safety and environment committee

The health, safety and environment committee is chaired by Mr J P Cheffins
and its other members are Mr P J Byrom, Mr C H Green, Mr } M Guyette and
Dr M G JW Howse, The committee is responsible for policy development and
assurance; setting Group chjectives and targets; performance review,
management system review;and reporting. Further information on Its work is
set out in the Group's Environmenta! Report.

Nuclear propulsion assurance committee

The nuclear propulsion assurance committee is responsible for the health,
safety and envircnment aspects of the Company's nuclear facilities, During
2002 the committea was chaired by Sir Ralph Robins. Other members of the
committee are Dr M G JW Howse, Sir Robin Nicholson and Sir John Rose.

Community investment committee

The cornmunity investrnent cormnmitiee is responsible for administering the
Company’s policy on charitable donations, The commitiee is chaired by

Sir John Weston and its other memtbers are Sir Robin Nicholson and

Mr J R Rivers, Director — Human Resources. The policy pursued by the
comrmittee when considering charitable appeals is set out on page 29.

Political donations

in line with its established policy, the Groug made no political contributions
in 2002.

Communication with shareholders

The Company attaches great importance 1o the effectivenass of its
communication with shareholders. It publishes a concise annual review and
summary finandial statement as well as a full report and accounts and there is
a separate envirenmental report. There is regular dialogue with Individual
institutional shareholders as well as general presentations after the interim
and preliminary results. All shareholders can gain access to these
presentations,as well as to the annual report and other information about the
Group, through the Group's website at wwwiralls-royce.com. They may alse
attend the Company’s Annual General Meeting at which the key business
developments during the financial year are highlighted and at which they
have an opportunity to ask guestions.

internal controls and risk management

Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for
maintzining and reviewing its effectiveness from both a financial and
operational perspective. The system of intermnal control is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reasonable but not absclute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Group's approach to intemal cantrol is

based on the underlying principle of ine management’s accountability for
control and risk management.

In reviewing the effectivenass of the system of internal control the Board has
taken account of the results of the work carried our to audit and review the
activities of the Group.
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There is an on-going process o identify, assess and manage risk,including
those risks affecting the Company’s reputation and corporate social
responsibility. This process is subject to continuous improvement and has

been in place throughout the financial vear to which these statements apply
and up to the date of their approval.

The Board has reviewed the process in 2002 and confirms that it complies
with the Turnbull Committee Guidance on internal Control issued in
September 1999,

The Board has established a risk committee, chaired by the Chief Executive,
with specific accountability for the system of risk management and for
reporting key risks and their associated mitigating actions to the Board.
Detalls of the membership of the committee are set out at page 26.

Organisation

The Group has a ciearly defined organisation structure within which
operational management have detalled responsibilities and levels of
authorisation, supported by written job descriptions and operating manuals,
The Group also has a code of business conduct.

The risk management system

The risk management system is an integral part of management’s approach
to defivering business objectives and is a systemnatic process designed to
identify, assess, treat, manage and communicate risks. It also provides a
method of escalation and delegation to the appropriate level within the
organisation and ensures actions are owned, defined, resourced and effective.

Management are responsible for the ongeing identification and evaluation
of significant risks within the'r areas of responsibility and, using a common
process, for the operation of suitable controls or mitigation actions. Risks may
arise from a variety of internal and external sourcas They may e associated
with regulations, customer requirements,and competitor actions or could
result from the capability of the processes used to execute our business or
from external and largely unpredictable events such as terrorist activity
orwar. All risks, irrespective of source, are managed through processes
operated by project and functional teams.Management report requiarly to
the risk cornmittee on their view of risks and how they are managed, so

that the Board can then consider and review these risks in terms of their
potential impact.

During 2002, the communication and understanding of risk have continued
1o be enhanced throughout the business, including the on-geing
developrent of plans to address the risks identified in areas such as business
continuity. Management have centinued to perform comprehensive risk
reviews for all key projects, programmes and business change plans.

Allthe processes operated by the Company are subject to continuous
improvement activity. However, during 2002, particular attention has
continued to be paid to four key processes:

Planning the business: in a changing world, it is essential that the methods
used to plan the business are robust and flexible. In 2002, the planning and
review process has been strengthened and risk principles embedded into
the Company’s strategic plans and short and long-term forecasts.

Resourcing the business: batter communication of objectives 1o employees
and their representatives and irnproved recriitrment, training, benchmarking,
deployment and development of people. A commen health, safety and
envircnment (HS&E) policy implemented across Rolls-Royce and all parts of
the business, with HS&E management systems in place.

Fulfiling custormer orders: impravement initiatives in areas such as quality,
strategic sourcing and preduction plarning and control.
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Creating customer sofutions: risks identified across a number of projects
are being mitigated by rigerous application of a standardised gated

product development process, which takes due account of technical and
businass issues.

Systems of internal control

The general managers of individual businesses are aware of their
responsibility to operate systems of internal control which provide
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
information and compliance with laws and regulations. In addition, financiaf
managers are required 1o acknowledge in writing that their routine financial
reporting is based on reliable data and that their results are properly stated in
accordance with Group reguirerments,

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting systern with an annual budget
approved by the Board. Revised forecasts for the year are reported at least
quarterly. Actual results are reported moenthly against budget and variances
reviewed in view of the long-term nature of the business, the Group also
prepares,annually, a detailed five year plan which is also reviewed by the
Board. The activities of the Group are subject to review by the risk
management organisation and the assuwrance functions of health, safety and
environment, quality, engineering and business assurance. These functions

operate 1o work programmes agreed by the approgriate Board mermber or
Board committee.

The business assurance function, which works closely with the external
auditors, undertakes a programme agreed by the audit committee covering
all Group activities. The programme includes independent reviews of the
systems of internal control and risk management. Findings are reported

to the zaudit committee three times a year and o the risk committee,
twice ayear.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Groug attaches great importance 1o the pursuit of excellence as a
corpotate citizen in its operations throughaout the world,

Rolls-Royce continues to develop its approach to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR), recognising it as a key issue in the way it conducts its
business. By far the greatest contribution which Rolls-Royce makes in this area
comes from the wealth creation and the maintenance of highly skilled jobs
which are underginnad by our business activities. The Group believes that
progress in this area will deliver competitive advantage and will contribute to
long-term success. Since the publication of last year's annual report, the Board
has reviewed the conciusions of a Company-wide working group established
by the Board to further strengthen our approach in ensuring that CSRis
integral to the way in which we conduct our business activities.The Group
has well developed policies on issues such as health, safety and erwironment,
charitable donations, community involvernent, employment policy and
employee learning and development. Details of these policies are set out on
pages 28 to 30.The Board will continue to keep shareholders informed of
progress in this area.

During the year the Board also cenfirmed the procedures for managing risks
associated with CSR.It is important that significant risks with a potential
impact on shareholder value are promptly drawn to the Board's attention,
with proposals for mitigating action. As described on this page, the Group
already has in place effective procedures for identifying, assessing and
managing risk, which are fully in line with the requirements of the Turnbull
Committee Guidance on irternal Controls.These procedures ensuie that risk:
associated with CSR are regularly reported to the Board.

As an integral part of the corporate risk process, the Board has comrmissionad
further work on CSR risk management to provide a framework for structured

decision making and increased focus on thase activities which contrioute o
shareholder value.
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pply chain

:ring the year, the Group's supply chain has been engaged in improvement
tivities stimulated by the Rolls-Royce Supnplier Advanced Business
quirements system (SABRe). The SABRe system enables approved
Hls-Royce suppliers to understand the key performance criteria required
them. These standards embrace:the need to comply with legal and
Julatory requirements; acceptabile supplier performance levels;and

provement toolkits'to assist suppliers in strengthening their business
rformance.

veral joint Rolls-Royce/supplier improvernent initiatives have also been
rried out 1o identify business and environmental improvements.Examples
clude the introduction of a dedicated parts collection service reducing
ansportation mileage, the increased use of re-usable packaging and joint
provement activities in areas such as energy consumption and the wider
e of recycling material.

=alth, safety and environment (HS&E)

e HS&E committee (see page 26) is responsible for policy development
d assurance; setting Group objectives and targets; performance review;
anagement system review;and reporting,.

e Group's HS&E policy, was reviewed, updated and re-issued in April 2002,
- was the HS&E management system standard which defines how HS&E
ili be managed in all Group companies.

e corporate HSEE audit programme provides an independent assessment
~the level of implemenitation of the Group's HS&E management system.

=veral Ho&E audits were completed including five UK-based businesses and
~ operational sites in North Amertica.Good prograss continues 1o be made

" the implementation of the Group-wide standard for an integrated HS&E
anagement system.

ring 2002,an internal audit of HS&E performance reporting data systems
s undertaken to obtain an independent assessment of the accuracy and
mpleteness of reported data,

rinitial external report on the environment Powering a better world,
blished in 1999, set a range of HS&E targets to be achieved by the end of
3.Good progress has been made although the target to reduce waste has
oved particularly chalienging. Work will continue during 2003 with the aim
meeting or exceeding these targets.

7 update of Powering a better world, containing operational perdormance
ta for 2002 for all Rolls-Royce businesses worldwide, will be published on
e Company's website in 2003,

Is-Royce conducts nuclear licenced operations in Derby, closely regulated
both the Nuclear installations inspectorate and the Environment Agency.
e continue to maintain a very goed safety record. Health, safety and
wironmental issuies are managed as an integral part of our activities and an
proving trend has been seen in all key HS&E measures.

e Group has made significant investments throughout 2002 in order to
date plant and equipment and improve waste management practices in
nuclear sperations.This has resuited in a reduction of 50 per centin the
lume cf waste disposed compared to previous years.

atth and safety management

e Group experienced no fatalities during 2002 and lost-time injuries were
nificantly below the engineering-sector average. The increasing

plication of a structured risk-rmanagement approach to safety should
able further improvernents in performance to be made,
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The safety review programme for 2002 cavered machinery safety, with
attention also being given to the close-out of the previous year's review of
axygen gaseous fuel systems, Other initiatives included an assessrment of
training, measures to improve contractor management and the integration of
safety aspects into the design process for facilities'plant and equipment.
Specific training was provided in incident investigation and in the control of
substances hazardous to health.

Environment

The Grougs businesses are certified to the interational standard 15C 14001
and it is Company policy that any newly acquired business should achieve
certification within two years of acquisition.Implementation programmes are
currently under way in the UK, the Nerdic countries, Poland and North
America. During 2002 certification was awarded 1o Ralis-Royce Power
Ventures Ltd and to the Commercial Marine operations in Brattvaag and
Ulsteinvik, Norway.

In 2002, Rolls-Royee was placed first in its business sector amongst those
companies completing the Business in the Ervironment index of corporate
environmental management and 39th out of 192 total participants. This
favourable result demonstrates our commitment to addressing
ervironmental issues through an integrated management system approach.

As well as monitering and setting environmenital targets for its operational
activity, the Group has also set targets for the environmentat performance of
its products. For example, the Trent 500, our tatest aero engine to enter service,
nas significantly improved fuel effidency, noise and ernissions petformance.
Challenging long-term product targets were initially set out in the Groups
first external environmment report.

During 2002, Rells-Royee joined the UK Emissions Trading Scheme. Undler this
initiative, the Group accepted targets for the reduction of carbon dioxide
ermissions from its operations in the UK

The Environmental Advisory Board includes externat members who are
respected authorites in their fields and it reviews and makes independent
recommendations on the environmental and sustainability aspects of
Roils-Royce activities.

Occupational Health

The Group operates a modern preventative Occupational Health service with
a strategy emphasising our approach to managing key health issues,
manitoring key targets and the training of people.

Weil considered policies and supporting guidelines demonstrate a
responsible approach to employee health. There are Occupational Health
facilities at malor locations werldwide. Health promotion campaigns on
managing workplace pressure, cancer awareness, alcchol and substance
misuse were delivered in 2002.0ur approach o training on workplace
pressure, with the use of a stress risk assessment toolkit, has received
international recognition.Managers have also received awareness tralning in
support of our alcoho! and drugs policy.

An annual Occupational Health report is produced based on the results of
health surveillance surveys against set Company targets. Active rehabilitation
and support for employees with disabilities or these whao require workplace
adjustrment, has led to a 20 per cent rediuction in total absence in the UK over
the last three years. A working group, chaired by the Director of Engineering
and Technology - Operations, was set up by the Company HS&E committee
and has been promoting the use of engineering measures to reduce
employee exposure to potentially harmful fevels of vibration.

The Group considers health research is important and supperts @ Medical
Research Committee chaired by the Group's Chief Medical Officer.
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Employment policy

The number of Group employees at the end of the year was 37,255
{2001 43,500).

The Groupss employrent policies and practices support overzit business
objectives by motivating and developing employees to meet the
requirernents of the business and its customers. Policies continue to be

reviewed and developed to suppoert the changing needs and international
nature of the business.

A strong emphasis is placed on effective worldwide employee
communications and each businass has its own programme of
communication adapted to its particular needs,

The Group consulis with employees and employee representatives on a
wide range of topics relating to fts overall business objectives. Regular

meetings are neld in each business to discuss opportunities and ssues of
cemmon interest.

Over the past two years, senior employee representatives have worked
closely with management to improve the guality of consuitation and
communication, resulting in a jointly agreed framework A Company and
Union Forum is now held at least twice a year involving senior management

and ernployee representatives from across the Group foliowed by supporting
communication in each business.

Considerable efforts have been made 1o mitigate the impact of job
reductions in the businesses and the Company has established a network of

Resource Centres dedicated 10 support the redeployment and training of
affected employess,

The Company has long had an equal opportunities policy and recognises
the importance of developing a diverse and inclusive workforce. A new
glebal policy on'equality and diversity'has been developed and will be

intraduced during 2003, supported by an ongoing pregrarmme of
comrnunication and training.

It is the Groug’'s policy, wherever possitle to provide employmant, training
and development opportunities for disabled people. It is also committed to
supporting empioyees who become disabled and to helping disabled
employeas make the best possible use of their skifls and potential.

Learning and development
It is a fundamentat value of the Company that achieving business
performance and promoting individual development go hand in hand.

The Company invests in improving individual and business capability by
offering training programmes and development opportunities which ensure
effective businass learning and continuous professional development.We
have enhanced the framewcrks for leadership, professional and business
management development by strengthening their global application.
Woerking with academic partners around the world, we have a broad range of
programmes including managerial, technical and operating skilisn 2002,
Rolls-Royce spent £25.7 million on the education and training of employees
and recruited 150 graduate trainees and 99 modermn apprentices.n addition,
there have been 268 undergraduate students in the Group for training
pericds of between two and 12 months. At the end of 2002 there were

298 gradiuates on formal training programmes and 400 apprentices and
technicians warldwide.

Working on local community projects forms a key part of our development
programmes for employees on trainee ard management schemes. These

community projects involve working with our external partners in education,
the arts, the environment and regeneration.
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We offer frae places on internal training programmes to partners in our local
communities.We have actively pursued a policy of sharing Company learming
facilities and.in partnership with Cerby College, now have two | eaming

Resource Centres in Derby. They have attracted over 2,200 enroiments from
community learmers.

We work closely with schools and colieges to promote science and
technology.Cur policy is to work with government, local and national
institutions and education establishments to widen students experience of
industry and promote careers in the Aerospace, Energy and Marine
businesses. The Company supports a wide range of education projects and
initiatives, including: Open Industry; Specialist Colleges; Education Action
Zones; Arkwright Schelarships and engineering education schemes,

We continue to ke active in supporting international education, spensoring
international students wishing to work in the UK or students in the UK
wishing to broaden their international experience. Through the UK
Government’s Chevening scheme, we are currently sponsoring studenits from
China, Indenesia, Korea,Vietnam and Malaysa.

During the year, Rolls-Royce won a National Training Award for its approach to
team based working within the Aero Repair and Overhaul business,

Community investment

The Group promotes charitable donations, which make an imporzant
contribution to the Groups involvement in the community.in 2002, the
Group's total charitable donations amounted to £524,000.

In the UK, the Company’s annuzl charitalle donations budget is administered
by the community investmant committee (see page 26) and by regional site

committees. The policy the cornrrittee follows when considering charitable
appealsis set out below:

‘As a forward-looking, iInnovative and global company, Rolis-Royce plc is
committed to being a good corporate citizen in its operations throughout
the world.The Group's policy on donations s to direct its support primarily to
causes with educational,engineering and scientific objectives, as well as to

social objectives connected with the Company’s business and place In the
wider community!

During 2002, charitable donations in the UK amounted to £411,000,This
included continuing support for the Derbyshire Community Foundation and

the developrment of new refationships with both the Greater Bristol and
London Community Foundations,

Elsewhere, Rolls-Royce made charitable donaticns amounting to £513,000 i
those countries in which it has a significant presence.In North America, this
included support for the work of United Way, Habitat for Humanity and the
American Heart Asscciation. In Germany the Group supported the Federal
President’s Annual Sumrer Festival and in the Nordic countries it supported
a number of local arts-based projects.

Alist of the principal donations made in 2002 is available on written request
to the Company Secretary.

In acldition to our charitable donations, contributions in excess of £449,000
were made to projects through the Groug's corporate spansorship
committee and through education programmes.
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e Company has a long and successful history of community involvernent.
part of our commitrnent to being a good corparate citizen, Rolis-Royce
ists the commiunities in which our businesses operate and curemployees
> and work We also encourage our employees 1o play their own role in the
mmunity. Our community invelvement is designed to support our values
refiability, integrity and inncvation and is directed towards supporting
ucation, the environment, the arts and economic and social regeneration,

amples of our activities include:

onsering VIVA, an orchestra resident in Derby, through which the Company
pports congcert giving and music education programmes in schools;

tablishing a Uk-wide partnership with The Prince’s Trust to support their

lunteers and business start-up programmes;

>veloping an ervironmental education project with The National Forest

mpany;

istol-based trainees working on a community project with Business

/namics 1o develop an educational workshop;

ianapolis-based employees supporting Habitat for Hurnanity by helping
construct a home for a local family;

Ipporting the Royal Aeronautical Society’s centenary events.

ils-Royce also finances the administration of the Payroll Giving Scherme for
< employees through which, in 2002, over £360,600 of employee donations
ave been paid directly to over 200 charities of employees’ chaice This high
el of UK employee participation, in excess of 20 per cent,was highlighted
best practice in the UK Chancellor of the Exchequer’s Giving Carnpaign.

s part of our community investment activities, employees are encouraged
~take up opportunities for developrment within local community based
ojects by working with recegnised brokers who deliver a wide range of
portunities. Examples of this include:

ucation business partnerships running successful mentoring programmes
r school pupils;

viding suppert to emplayees who are school governors;

orking with organisations such as The Prince’s Trust and Young Enterprise to
ovide business mentors and advisers.

e Company is also able to offer support in-kind to local initiatives. This may
lude the provision of places on in-house training programmes; the

nation of surplus computer equipment and furniture;and offering the free
e of meeting rooms and premises.

lls-Royee is also a member of Business in the Community and actively
pports Common Purpose programmes across the UK These two
ganisations aim to promote greater business awareness and involvement
wider community issues and encourage greater employee participation.

yment to suppliers

e Company is guided by the Supply Chain Relationships in Aercspace
RIA) initiative. It seeks the best possible terms from suppliers and when
tering inte binding purchasing contracts, gives consicieration to quality,
wary, price and the terms of payment.in the event of disputes, efforts are
ade to resolve thern quickly.

e Company had the equivalent of 52 days purchases outstanding at

ring the year.
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Going concern

After making enquivies, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseaable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concemn
basis in preparing the financial statements,

Share capital
The following have a notifiable interest in the Company’s ordinary shares at
March 3,2003:

% of issued
share capital
BMWAS 37
Franklin Rescurces, Inc, 1416

Auditors

A resciution to reappoint the auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, and to authorise the
directors to determine their remuneration, will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting.

By order of the Board
A, b

Charles Blundell, Cormpany Secretary
March 3,2003

cember 31,2002, based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers
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This report provides the information required by the Directors' Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 (the Regulations) which apply to the Company for
the first time this year it also describes how the principles of the Combined
Code in relation 1o executive directors remuneration are applied by the

Company.The Company confirms that it complies with the requirements
of the Combined Code.

Rolis-Royce operates in a highly competitive, international market. Its business
is complex, technologically advanced and has long time horizons.The Group
is cornmitted to achieving sustained improvements in performance and this
depends crucially on the individual contributicns made by the executive
team and by employees at alt levels The Board therefore believes that an
effective remuneration strategy plays an essential part in the future success

of the Group by providing incentives which create a dlose identity of interest
with shareholdears.

A resalution will be put to Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
May 28,2003 inviting them to consider and approve this Report.

The remuneration commitiee

The remuneration committee (the committee) has responsitility for making
recommendations 1o the Board on the Group's policy towards executive
remuneration. The committee meets regularly ard determines, on the Board's

behalf, the specific remuneration packages of the executive directors and a
number of senior executives.

The committee consists exclusively of independent, non-executive directors,
Itis chaired by Mr C G Symon and its other members are Mr P J Byrom,
Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, Sir Robin Nicholson and Sir John Weston.

In 2002 Sir Ralph Robins (who was Chairman of the Company thraughout the
year) and the Chief Executive attended meetings by invitation but were not
present during any discussion of their own emoluments. Mr D E Baird, who
became Chairman on February 1,2003,and the Chief Executive will attend
meetings by invitation during 2003 on the same basis asin 2002,

Advice to the remuneration committee

The commiittee appaints its own consultant to provide L with independent
advice. During 2002 the comimittee’s consultant was Mrs N Demby who was
a partner at Andersen before joining Emnst & Youngon August 1,2002. From
January 1,2003 the committee’s consultant has been Mr S Patterson of

Mercer Human Resource Consulting (Mercer). Support is also received from
other employees of these companies.

The committee may also call for information and advice from other advisors
inside and outside the Company. In 2002, the then Chairman and the

Chief Executive made recommendations to the committee relating to the
performance of their direct reports and on the appropriateness of particular
remuneration proposals 1o the Company’s needs.Intemnal support was
provided primarily by the Director — Human Resources, Mr J R Rivers, advised
by Mr R McNeil who was a partner at Andersen before joining Deloitte &
Touche on August 1,2002. The Company Secretary,Mr C E Blundell, also
provided support to the committee. Ad hoc advice has been provided by

employees from Human Resources, Finance and Business Development
when required.

During 2002, Andersen provided consulting advice to the Company on
taxation matters for expatriates, transfer pricing and all employee share plans.
Deloitie & Touche advised the Company on corporate tax transfer pricing,
customs dutles, pension matters and risk managemenit. Ernst & Young
provided advice on financial accounting for overseas offices and Mercer

pravided support on insurance matters and compensation and pensions
inthe US.
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Remuneration policy

The policy framework
The Board has adopted,on the recommendation of the committee,a

remuneration pelicy reflecting the following broad principles, which it wil
continue to apply in 2003:

i) the remuneration of executive directors and other senior execlitives
should reflect their responsibilities and contain incentives to deliver the
Group’s performance objectives; it must also be capable of attracting and
retaining the individuals nacessary for business success;

a significant preportion of total remuneration should be based on Group
and individual performance. both in the short and long term; and

il the system of remuneration should establish a close identity of interest
between senior executives and shareholders through measures such as

encouraging the acquisition of a significant shareholding inthe
Campany.

=

The policy takes into account pay and employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group,

The committee regularly reviews both the competitiveness of the Group's
remuneration structure and its effectiveness in incentivising executives to
enhance value for shareholders over the longer term. It considers that a
successful remuneration policy needs to be sufficiently flexible to take
account of future changes in the Company’s business ernvironment and in
remuneration practice The effectiveness of the Group's long-term incentive
arrangements is currently being reviewed by the commitiee It is not

envisaged that any changes to these arrangements will be introduced
before 2004.

The main components of remuneration

The main components of remuneration currently comprise:base salary,
annual inceritive arrangerments, long-term share basad incentives and
pension and life assurance benefits. Executive directors and senior executives
are also entitied to a company car or car allowance, private medical insurance,
finandatl counselling and, in the case of Mr J M Guyetta, a hausing allowance,

in determining the relative importance of these elerments ¢f rermuneration,
the committee believes that base salaries should be set at levels reguired to
recrult and retain high quality senior executives. it also considers that there
should be a continuing and increasing ernphasis on those elements of
remuneration, such as annual and long-term incentives, which directly
inflLence the performance of senicr executives.

The comrittee believes that base salaries should be setwith reference 1o the
median-level of the relevant marketplace. Performance-related incentive
plans should provide the opportunity of increasing total eamings to the
upper quartile of the marketplace if performance justifies it. For executive
directors, no less than 44 per cent of their total annual cash remuneration
opportunity is performance related, either through linkage to annual
performance or to longer term performance targets and the share price. Al
salary increases are required to be justified on the basis of performance and

are not automatic, Other benefits would generally be at the median of
market practice.
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entives and rewards linked to annual performance

cutive directors and senior executives participate in the Annual
formance Related Award plan (APRA).Under APRA as operated in 2002,
y were eligible for awards of up to 60 per cent of base salary on the
ievernent of predetermined targets. APRA awards do not form part of
1sicnable earnings. Following reviews of APRA's competitiveness in 2002
1 2003, the committee decided that the maximum award should be

reased in respect of 2003 to 80 per cent of base salary and, in the case of
» Chief Executive, to 100 per cent.

> APRA performance targets set by the committee are based onthe

Jup's annual operating plans.For 2002, the measures for executive directors
luded earnings per share, average cash balance and personal

rformance.In the case of MrC H Green, the award also reflected the
rformance of the specific business sector for which he is responsible,
asured by profit after a levy for capital employed.

- 2003, the performance targets for APRA will relate to underlying profit
fore tax, average cash balances, cash flow and the achievement of personal
jectives. For most executive directors, the financial measures will relate to
arall corporate performance, but for Mr C HGreen it will be partly
pendent o the performance against these same measures of the

siness sector for which he is responsible.

ere 5 a long-term incentive element in APRA as one third of the value is
livered in the form of a deferred share award over Rolis-Royce shares. A
ricipant who is granted a deferred share award under APRA must
-rmally continue to hold these shares and remain an empioyee of the
S for a period of two years from the date of the award in order 1o retain
= full number of shares, although shares will be released early in certain
—urmistances including redundancy. The value of any deferted share awards
erived from the annual bonus criteria and is therefore dependent on
porate performance;the release of deferred share awards is not
pendent on the achievement of any further performance conditions. This
erred share element was operated for 2002, resuiting in the share awards
scriped on page 35.The committee will continue to operate a deferred
re scheme inrespect of 2003 and future years.This arrangement provides
rong link between performance and remuneration, promotes a culture of
re ownership amongst the Group's senior management and encourages
isions in the long-term interest of shareholders.

owing a review of the competitiveness of remuneration in 2002, the
mmittee concluded that for certain key executives, the current annual
entive arrangements did not achieve retention and shareholder
nment objectives sufficiently strongly. A deferred share incentive plan
IP) was intreduced for 2002 which was restricted to a small number of key
cutives, including the executive directors. Under DSIP awards of shares
h a value of up 1o 40 per cent of salary may be made.The performance

gets applicable to DSIP awards are identical to those usad in the Company
ment of APRA,

ceipt of the shares awarded under the DSIP is defarred for three years.

ards are forfeited on leaving the Company except at the discretion of the

mmittee. As with the APRA element of the annual incentive arangerments,
release of the deferred share awards is not dependent on the satisfaction

further performance conditions, No awards will be made under the DSIP in

pect of 2003 and its rofe is being reviewed as part of the committee’s

geing consideration of share-based and long-term reruneration.

ng-term incentives

e committee Is aware that market practice forlong-term incentives is
ject to change. It therefore continues to review market practice and 1o

velop plans appropriate 1o the nature of the business which witt

courage improved performance to the benefit of shareholders.
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Executive share option plan

Depending on performance, executives are eligible to receive executive share
options on an annual basis. The normal practice is to grant options annually in
March following the announcement of the Company's resuits.

I line with the committee’s view that a significant proportion of
remuneration should be performance related, the exercise of options s
subject 1o a performance condition that the Group's growth in eamings per
share (EPS), as defined by Financial Reporting Standard 14, must exceed the
UK retail price index oy an average of three per cent per annurm over a roling
three-year period. These performance conditions apply to all the executive
directors.The commitiee continues 1o believe that an EPS measure on this
basis is an effective one as it demands that there should be a real and
stretching improvement in the Company’s performance before any
executive can benefit from an increase in the share price. Achieverment of the
EPS target is reviewed annually by the committee.

In 2001 the committee cencluded that in order to heip meet a series of
demanding challenges facing the business at that time, key members of the
executive tearn, many of whom had recently been appointed, should receive
more significant incentives under the executive share option plan. As a major
employer in the US, the Company also had a need to provide rewards for
strong performance, which were more in fine with US practice.

Accordingly, as described in the 2001 annual report, the Company made a
special award of options in March 2001 1o key executives, including the
exacutive directors {see pages 36 and 38), but with more demanding
performance criteria and personal share ownership requirements (see
page 38).

Long-term incentive plan

The Company has in place a long-term incentive plan which was approved
by shareholders in 1997, There are no grants outstanding under this plan.

All employee share plans

The committee believes that share-based plans make a significant
contribution to the close involverment and interest of all employees in the
Groups performance. Brecutive directors are eligible to participate inthe
Company’s all-employee share schemes on the same terms as other
employees, There are three main elements 1o these arrangements:

i) the Sharesave Scheme - a savings-related share option scheme available
to all employees. This scherne operates within specific tax legislation
(including a requirement to finance the exercise of the option using the
proceeds of a monthly savings contract). The exercise of the apticn is not
subject to the achievement of a performance target;

==

the Free Share' element of the Share Incentive Plan, under which UK
employees recelve shares equivalent to one weel's pay as part of the
Company compeanent of any bonus paid for 2002;and

the 'Partnership Share'element of the Share Incentive Flan under which UK
employees may make regular purchases of shares from pre-tax income.

The effect of corporate restructuring on share plans

At the Annual General Meeting in May 2003, shareholder approval will be
sought for a revised corporate structure for the Group involving the creation
of a new holding company (see page 25). The commities has considered the
impilications of this proposal for the Company's share plans and has
concluded that the introduction of the new helding company shoutd not
provide any advantages or disadvantages to participants in any of the current
share plans. Accordingty, the committee has exercised its powers under the
relevant rules to prevent any helders of executive share options from being
able to exercise their options on an accelerated basis as a result of the
restructuring. Participants will also have to agree that all existing performance
conditions wilt continue to apply if they do not wish their existing options to
lapse.In the case of the Sharesave Scheme, participants will have a statutory

i
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right to exercise their options early 10 the extent of their savings. However,if
they decide to adopt this course, they will be prevented from being able to
complete their savings contract and they will lose the ability to exercise in full.
For all other share plans, participants will be able to exchange their rights over

Rolls-Royce ple shares for rights of an equivalent value over the shares of the
new holding company.

Se that future grants under existing share ptans can be delivered inthe
shares of the new holding company, shareholders will be asked at the
Annual General Meeting to approve a series of minor technical amendmenits
to the existing plans. These amendments will replace all references to the
Cormpany with references 1o the new holding company and wili make cther
minor changes, The new holding company will then be able to grant opticns
and awards under these plans for the remaindar of each plan’s original
ten-year life.

Service contracts

In the light of the Combined Code, the commiittee has a policy that new
appointees to the Board are offered notice periods of one year The
committee recognises that in the case of appointments to the Board from
outside the Company, it may be necessary to offer a longer initial notice
pericd, which would subsequently reduce to 12 months after that

initial peried.

The committee has a defined policy on compensation and mitigation to be
appiied in the event of a UK director’s contract being prematurely terminated,
in these circumstances, steps are taken to ensure that poor performance is
not rewarcied When calculating termination payments, the committee takes
into account a range of factors such as age length of service contract and the
directer’s obligation to mitigate his own loss,

Sir Ralph Robins, whao retired as Chairman of the Company on January 31,
2003, had a service agreement with Rolls-Royce plc dated February 25,1959,
terminable by 12 months written notice by either party.He worked for the
Company at the equivalent rate of three days a week He was entitled to
participate in the Company’s performance related bonus arrangement with a
maximum bonus payable of 60 per cent of his basic salary.One third of the
value of any bonus was payable in the form of Rolls-Royce plc shares.

Sir Ralph Robins was also eligible to participate in the Rolls-Rayce plc
executive share option plan. Sir Ralph Robins was provided with a company
car (the Company bearing the maintenance and running costs) and cover
under the Company's private health scheme (for himself and his wife). No

Sir John Rose and Mr C H Green have service agreements with

Rolis-Royce plc dated December 4,1992 and March 1,1991 respectively.
These agreements are terminable by 24 months'written notice by the
Cornpany and six months' written natice by the executive and were entered
into prior to the introduction of the policy described above, Alternatively, the
Company has the discretion 10 terminate the service agreement by paying
salary and the vajue of all other contractual benefits in lieu of notice or pro

the notice required to be given by the Company will reduce from 24 months
10 12 months.In the event of the executives'contracts being terminated after

they wili be entitled to receive 3 fiquidated sum calculated as 12 months'
salary and benefits. Performance related payments are not covered in this
arrangernent though an annual bonus may be paid if the executive i in post
at the end of the year. The executives are entitled to participate inthe
Company's performance related benus arrangement with a maximum
bonus of 100 per cent of basic salary in the case of Sir John Rose and 80 per
cent of basic salary in the case of Mr CH Green.One third of the value of any
bonus is paid in the form of Rolls-Royce plc shares. The executives are also
eligible to participate in the Rolls-Royce plc executive share option scheme

33 RolisRoyce plic A+

compensation for loss of office was paid to Sir Ralph Robins on his retirement.

rata in lieu of any unexpired period of notice With effect from January 1,2004,

that date by the Company other than in accordance with the contracts'terms

and are entitled to membership of an appropriate Roils-Royce pension
scheme and life assurance benefits.They are provided with a company car
(the Company bearing maintenance and running costs) or a moenthly car
allowance and cover under the Company’s private health scheme (for the
axacutive, his wife and dependant children} and financial counselling.

Mr J P Cheffins has a service agreerment with the Company dated May 4, 2001
terminable by 12 mmonths written notice by the Cornpany and six months’
written notice by Mr J P Cheffins. Eligibility for performance related bonus
arrangernents, executive share options, pensions and benafits are identical to
those described above for Mr CH Green.

Mr J M Guyette has a contract, dated September 27,1997, with Rolls-Royce
North America Inc, crawn up under the laws of the State of Virginia. It is for an
indefinite term and provides that on termination without cause he is entitied
to one year's severance pay without mitigation and in addition aporopriate
relocation costs.He is entitled to participate in the Company performance
related bonus arrangement with a maximum bonus of 80 per cent of

his salary. Gne third of the value of any bonus is paid in the form of
Rolls-Royce pic shares, He is also eligible to participate in the Rolls-Royce
executive share option scheme and is entitled to membership of an
appropriate Rolls-Royee North America pension scheme. Mr Guyette is
provided with a company car (the Company bearing the maintenance and
running costs),or a menthly car allowance, housing allowance and
appropriate club membership fees and cover,under Rolls-Royce North
America’s private heaith scheme (for himself, his wife and dependant
children) and financial counseliing.

Nr P Heiden, who resigned as a director of the Company on

December 31,2002, had a service agreement with the Company dated
November 5,1897.Mr RT Turner, whao retired as a director of the Company on
May 30,2002, had a service agreement dated April 1,1994.Both agreements
wera terminable by 24 months writien notice by the Company and six
months’written notice by the executive. All other provisicns of these
agreements were identical to those described for My C H Green above except
that the maximum bonus was 60 per cent of basic salary.No compensation
for loss of office was pald to either Mr Heiden or M Tutner on their
resignation and retirement respectively from the Board.

Dr MG JW Howse has a service agreement with the Company dated
Cctober 12,2001 terminable by 12 months'written notice by the Company
and 12 months written notice by Dr M G JW Howse. Bligibility for
performance related bonus arrangements, executive share options, pensions
and benefits are identical to those described for Mr CH Green above.

The non-executive directors do not have service contracts.No compensation
is payable to any non-executive director if their appointment is teminated
early. The following table sets out the tetms of appolntment for the
non-executive directors:

Appcintrnent date Expiry date
of current of current
3 year term 3 year term

MrDEBairg® . November1,2062  January 31,2005

..................................... Noverber 72,2002 November 21,2005
""" January 15,2001 January 14,2004
" lanuary 1,2001  December 31,2003

June1,2002  May 31,2005

October 1,2001 __ September 30,2004

SirRobinNicholson " T
MCGSymon
Sir Jahn Weston

T Mr D E Baird served as a non-executive director of the Company from November 1, 2002
to January 31,2003 before his abpointment 2s non-executive Chalrman on
February 1, 2003
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n-executive directors'fees

 fees pald to non-executive directors (see page 35) are determined by
Board who are informed by independent market surveys.Each
executive director receives an annual fee and a fee in relation to
nmittee work. Non-executive directors do not participate in any of the
mnpany’s share schemes, performance pay arrangerents or pension
emes.

003, the Board will be reviewing the non-executive directors' fees and their
scture inthe light of the conclusions of the Higgs report.

rformance graphs

der the Regulations, the report is required to contain a graph showing the
mipany's total shareholder return’(TSR) performance over the previous

> years compared to a broad equity market index The graph below shows
> performance of Rells-Royce compared to the FTSE 100.The FTSE 100

s been chosen as the comparator index because it represents the most
=ctive measure of performance of other leading companies listed

“he UK.

e strategic intent of Rolls-Reyce is to develop a broadly-based business
th leading market positions based on its unique gas turbine technology.
< graphs opposite underline the significant progress made by the
rnpany despite the industry-wide impact of the tragic events of
ptember 11,2001.

tal shareholder return (index)

—  Rolls-Royce total return (rebased to 100)  —  FTSE 100 total return (rebased to 100}

Rolls-Royce plc e

Crder book~firm and announced £bn

Underlying EPS pence

Group tumover—per empioyee £'000

Underlying pre-tax returr: on average
capital employed %

Installed base - civil jet engine units
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Individual directors’emoluments and compensation
The individua! directors' emolurments are analysed as follows:

002 2003

Bonus in deferred shares

Aggregate Aggregate
f ! emoluments emoiuments
Board and Total excluding exciuding
Basle committee Cash Deferrad - Deferred - deferred SERS Taxable pensions pensions
salaries foes bonus two yaars ' three years? shares payments 2 benefits  contributions*  contributions ™
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000

SirRalph Rooins® 404 o= N8 8B e1s 848
SirjohnRese 605 Y8 % RO 035 -~ . ..oMm o ane 952
MriPChefins . 378 .. 58 o1 1’ T 22708 601
MCHGreen 383 o= ....wro6A M3 87T ....2 . 694 480
MrlMGuyettes 45 — . . Y 6 14 23 0~ 3 770 668
MrPheiden? 378 T YT T . .. 363 8 ®e8 679
DrMGIWHowse 272 092 88T T A s e
MrPCRefies® e T - T - LT e
MrRTTumer® 129 o, 22 = .22 179 : .38 520
D Bl I T T e e T e e T T AT
MR IBYIOM e T BT T R T e e T BT
Lord Moore of Lower Marshy - = 48 e T T T S
SirRobin Nicholsons  — . A0 e T T T T 40 A
Sir John Weston — — — — — 30 30

2,925 189 939 412 604 1,016 542 157 5,768 5337
* Shares forming part of the bonus under APRA have been valued at date of award.
2 Shares forming part of the bonus under DSIP have been valued at date of award.

* Payments made to Mr P Heiden and Mr RT Turner in connection with their participation in the Rofls-Rayce 1994 Senior Executive Retirement Scheme (SERS) (see page 38},

enabling them o discharge the income tax liability incured by them on the contributions made by the Company into the 5ERS. 2001 aggregate emciumenis for
Mr Heider and Mr Turner have been restated te enable a comparison on a simitar basis,

* Details of the directors’ pensicns are set out on pages 38 and 39.

% 40% of Sir Ralph Robins'taxable benefits for 2002 was reimbursed by Cable & Wireless plc, In respect of his position as former non-executive Chairman of that Company.
& Mr J M Guyette was paid in US dollars transtated at $1.50= £1.

7 Mr P Heiden resigned as a ditector with effect from December 31,2002,

& Mr P C Ruffles retired as a director with effect from October 18,2001,

# Mr RT Turner retired as a director with effect from May 30, 2002.

(e D E Baird was appointed to the Board with effect from November 1,2002.

Thetable of long-term incentive awards on page 38 indicates that the deferred shares releaseable in 2003 were placed in trust at a value of £2.148 per share,

Non-executive directors’ fees

Each non-executive director receives an annual fee of £25,000.1n addition, fees of £5,000 per annum are paid to members of the audit and remuneration

committees, with the chairmen of these committees recelving a further £2,500 per annum. Non-executive directors do not participate in any of the
Company’s share schemes, performance pay arrangements or pension schemes.

Lord Micore of Lower Marsh is Chairman of the Trustees of the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund and receives an annual fee of £10,000 for performing this role.
Sir Robin Nichalsan is Chairman of the Cotmpany’s Environmental Advisory Board and recelves an annual fee of £5000 for perianming this role,

The annual fee for Mr D E Baird, who was appointed non-executive Chairman of Rolls-Royce ple with effect from February 1,2003,is £257,400, In addition,

the Company makes available an apartment for Mr Baird's use. The annualised cost of this 1o the Company is £67,600.The Company also pays the expenses
relating to the apartment.

Mr D E Baird is not entitled 1o participate in any of the Company’s share schemes, performance pay arrangements or pension schemaes. No compensation is
payable in the event of his appaintrnent being terminated,

Payments made to former directors of the Company

Following their retirement from the Board on May 30,2002 and October 18,2001 respectively, Mr RT Turner and Mr P C Ruffles continued to be employed
by the Company on a part-time basis. The Board considered it to be in the interests of the Company to retain Mr RT Turners expertise in marketing and
Mr P C Ruffies’ expertise in engineering. Mr RTTurner has been employed for a fixed-term until June 2003.Mr P C Ruffies employment is terminable on

six months notice. During the year they received respectively salaries of £81,000 and £204,000,and taxable benefits of £8,000 and £128,000 In respect of
their employment,

Fallowing his retirerent on January 31,2003,5ir Ralph Robins has been retained on a consultancy contract to give his support to the planning and

preparation of the centenary celebrations for Rolls-Royce plc and for the centennial of powered flight. For these services he will ba paid an annual fee
of £25,0G0.This arrangement will end on December 31,2004.

35 Rolls-Royce plc A
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Brectors’ share interests

me: directors,including their imrmediate families, at December 31,2002, had beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company,as shown in the
lowing tables:

January 1, Changes in Decernber 31,

2002 * 2002 20025

Raiph Ropins L 103607 46893 150300
JohnRose 153824 LB2072  2158%
JP Cheffns L. 88000 43945 109945
CHGreen 104632 . 24466 129008
IMGuyette 75466 azeds 1a7an
PHeiden® JA273e 3132974068
MGJWHowse L 1BMs U37aa3 T Usseng
RTTumer? (39249 28965 68218
DEBard T 254800 254500
"dMoore of Lower Marsh T . L3860 21823 60543
RobinNichoson o CLA7O3e = 17036
CGSymon ' o o L8500 ans s
John Weston 3,208 160 3,368

1 date of appointment if later,
~r date of retirernent if earller.

" P Heiden resigned as a director with effect from December 31,2002,
=r RT Turner retired as a director with effect from May 30, 2002.

Ralph Robins, Mr C H Green, Mr J M Guyette, Dr M G J W Howse, Mr P J By

181,839,175 and 103 shares respectively instead of cash dividends in January 2003,
John Rose and Mr C H Green both purchased 108 and 134 shares cach

rom, Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, MrC G S

respectively on January 17,2003 and February 10,2003 under the Inland Revenue approved
-are [ncentive Pan.

Iherwise there have been no other changes in the directors’interests between December 31,2002 and March 3, 2003.

addition the directors are for Compan
“iployee Share Trust and the 1,589,466

aares held in trust

les Act purposes technically interested in the 401,283 Rolls-
Ralls-Royce plc shares held in the Rolls-Royce Employee Sh

ymon and Sir John Weston took 4,875:4,194; 3 362: 1,540;

Royce pic shares held by the Rolls-Royce Qualifying
are Trust.

Shares held in trust under the annual profit sharing share scheme ! Shares held in trust under the share incentive plan 2

January 1, Vested during  Granted during December 33, January 1, Vested during  Granted during Decernber 31,

2002 2002 2002 2002 § 2002 2002 2002 2002

Raloh Robins 4086 ode o= =
John Rose 7332 e A260 1S9 192 192
APChefins T 3830 8104 T . B B
CHGeen oo 5409 3575 8984 - 182 192
I MGuyerre . ‘ T T - - - =
PHeiden® - = - T B30 8335 - - = -
MGIWHowse L Tams T e T 2054 4968 T = - -
RT Turner 4,357 — 2,860 7217 — —_ — —

or date of retirement if earlier,

Jnder the profit sharing share scheme, shares vest after three years,
Jnder the share incentive plan, shares vest on the fifth anniversary of each monthly purchase.
-ir P Heiden resigned as a director with effect fram Decernber 31 ,2002.

=ir RT Turner retired as a director with effect from May 30,2002,

= Pollis-Royce plc
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The directors, at December 31,2002, held the following options under the Rolis-
Share Option Plan and the Rolls-Royce International Share Save Plan,

Share options

Royce plc Executive Share Option Scheme, the Rolls-Royce 1599 Executive

Market price Aggregate Aggregate
January 1, Granted Lapsed Exercised December 31, Exercise at date gaing 2002 gains 2001 Exercisable
2002 in 2002 in 2002 in 2002 2002 §" price exercised £060 £000 dates
Sir Ralph Robins L leasy

i VOKIBT 194 ....2003-2010

L 1Tneser LA 2 .., 2004-20% 1

| p8sge . 685 A 200420m1
4,398 )

4358 iggp 2005
1025618 1025518 212p*

Sir John Rose ~ 118750 116,750 B

B3I g Llgp ,
| 254630 oep T
piss1er o q1ep
7662°  iogp

~ 1998-2005
. 2003-2010
.4004-2017
. 2004-2011
. ...2007
2005-2012

...234830
CHOTBSE
LIes

1,680,702 638,298 2,319,000 203p*

MrJ P Cheffins 72250
LA
173612

L 72250% T izep
B 1 R
L1805 eap U mem
, , comen2 o 206 04260
L 6saaas LASAASE 28 T g
O (- 2005
— 398,936 398,936 188p 2005-2012

1,078,554 398,936 1477430 204p*

19982005
20032010
20032010

Mr CH Green L. Bl2se L br2s0%  176p

LAIS6 47563 20 T
O a5 e
..... e L 1sAaa o 1%4p T
O 162038 gy
LBIBYED e eag1aeY T 1
- L A 1
— 279,255 279,255 188p
1,041,238 279,225 1,320463 205p*

1998-2005
o 2005
2007

... 2003-2010
... 2004201
.2004-2011
L 2007
2005-2012

Mr J M Guyetie ALY
187799

R L N
- -~ - S =
_ e Ler7ee wap e 2003-2010
CIBASL T se T e | 20042017
Y 4 -~ LS - S 2004-20i 1
8 43083 gy 2005
—_ 450,140 450,140 188p 2005-2012
1,185,301 450,140 2,721 1,632,720 209p*

20022005

Mr P Heiden 5 . 653750 Lgeasor L 176p.

lexte3 oo B L - -
L 173612 173612 | 216p -

esdms T Cgsaasst e
1862 e 10023 .. 108p,

1,104,632 398,936 1,503,568

37 Rolls-Royce ple




rectors remuneration report

'

are options continued
Market price Aggregate Aggregate
January °, Granted Lapsed Exercised Decernber 31, Exercise at date gains 2002 gains 2001 Exercisable
2007 in 2002 in 2002 in 2002 200787 nrice exercised £000 £000 dates
MGIWHowse 200 e 7 N Vi — ... 1998-2005
AR L (SRR W98 . 20032010
........ A8 e B392 XD . 2003-2010
e 3B 3308 A e 2003
A e, e G9A45 28R ... 2004-20C1
1B Lolsseer o wep . 20040u
AT MAOTE L OBD L 2005
— 199468 199468 188p 2005-2012
318,222 199,468 517,690 199p*
‘RT Turner ¢ e MOS0 TTOR 1998-2005
: B ‘ 717,6971’7 B : ]7974pm ) S - 2003
00T e 120879 NS 2003-2010
LS 0 4 B2 L - S 20042011
BB L AB1AB2E 216p 2004-2011
2820 29203 188p 2005
833,199 833,199 207p

oF date of retirernent if earlier,
Performance target achieved, Option capable of exercise. All other executive share options listed above are subject to stringent targets which have yet to be achieved.

niess otherwise indicated all the above options wete granted under the executive share option scheme and are subject 10 the achievernent of performance targets (see page 32).
Al options granted under the executive share option scheme were granted at the market value on the date of issue and no discount was applied. No options were varied during
“he year and no consideration was paid for the grant of options. The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares ranged between 95.25p and 203.5p during 2002. The closing

rice on December 31, 2002 was 107p,

Supplementary options - vesting of these options is subject to the attainment of significant persenal share hclding targets and the requirement that growth in EPS exceeds an
Sverage of 6% year on year as well as exceeding the UK RPI by 3% per annum over a rolling three year period. The increases are measured from the year 2000 or the base year

Of the rolling three year period, whichever is the more stringent.
Sharesave schemes.

eighted average exercise price of December 31,2002 balance.

r P Heiden's share options tapsed when he resigned as a director with effect from December 31,2002,
LAr R T Turner retired as a director with effect from May 30,2002

bng-term incentive awards
e directors as at December 31, 2002 had the following share awards in the Annual Performance Related Award Scheme:

Shares hedd in trust under the annual performance iedated award scherme !

January 1, vested during  Granted during

Decemnber 31,

2002 2002 2002 002§
RPN RObINS 30807 (73 43740 57534
CohnRose L aso06 (25A0D 65610 G114
P Cnefins ... 334 (15883) 41007 58948
~CHGreen S g ss (16043 19137 30880
- M Guyeltle 3w (7430 46270 60697
P Heldent o wmee (1524 41007 53682
MG WHowse 8473 (8952) 21948 31176
- R T Turner 22260 (12,567) 30618 40311

o date of retirement if earlier.

nder the annual performance related award scheme, shares vest after two years see page 32.Shares went in to Trust in 2000, 2001 and 2002 at prices of £1.869, £2.148 and

1.829 respectively. At the date of this report, the amounts stated in the ernoluments table on page 35 representing APRA and DSIP entitiernents had not yet been appiied
y the Trustee ta purchase shares. An investment is expected to be made by March 31,2003 when the Trustee will procure the acquisition of the required number of shares

t the prevaifing market price.

1 P Heiden's rights to these shares lapsed when he resigned as a director with effect frem December 31,2002,
r RT Turner retired as a director with effect from May 30,2002,

nsions
1 J M Guyette participates in pension plans sponsored by Rolls-Royce North America inc.

| other executive directors under their normal retirement age are members of the Group's UK pension schemes. These schemes are funded and approved

al salary pension schemes providing, at retirement,a pension of up to two thirds of final remuneration, subject to Inland Revenue limits.

e Company also operates the Rofis-Royce 1994 Senior Executive Retirement Scheme (SERS). The purpose of the SERS is to fund pension provision above the
nsionable earnings cap which was imposed on approved pension schernes under the 1989 Finance Act.The scheme provides a lump sum payment on
tirement in lieu of the additional pension which would have been pravided under the approved schemes had the earnings cap not been introduced.
ernbership of the scherne is restricted 1o executive directors and to a limfted nurmiber of serior executives. The scherne is adrninistered by three trustees,

Rolis-Royce ple 4
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under the Chairmanship of Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, none of whorm has a benefidial interest in the scherne The members of the scheme include

Mr P Heiden and Mr RT Turner. They joined the Group after the introduction of the earnings cap and their terms and conditions on joining the Group included
a commitment to provide pension and life cover based on total salary, in line with other directors and senior executives. The cormmittee believes that for these
executive directors, a funded arrangement is in the best interests of shareholders and avoids the build up of unfunded liabilities for the future,

In 2002 the payments detailed on page 35 were made to Mr P Heiden and Mr RT Tumner in connection with their participation in the SERS, enabling them to
discharge the income tax fiability incurred by themn on the contributions made by the Company into the SERS.

During the year,the Company did not make any pension contributions in respect of Sir Ralph Robins, who reached normal retirement age in June 1994,
Details of the pension benefits, which accrued over the year in the Groug's approved UK pension schemes, are given belows,

Increase in
Increasg in Totat accrued Transfer vatue as transfer valug
accrued pension penston Transter value at Dec 31,2000 aver 2002
during the entitlernent at of accrued of acerued net of the
year ended the year ended Pension as at pension mernber’s cwn
Dec 31,2002 Dec31,2002®  Dec 31,2002 atthatdate®  contributions §
£000pa £000pa £000 £O00 £000
SedohnRose 50 e 2945268 4570 662 (784)
MrlPChefins e e e e e e 63 69 B5 A48 L3p93 768 (1017)
MrCHGreen B VA A LA A2 4351 (140) (208)
M e den s 2D LA se - 4
DrM G W Howse B Lee 2919 2088 815 (796)
Mr RT Turner 2 (2) 18 310 279 20 (18
Cetails of the retirement banefits, which accrued over the year in the SERS and the plans sponsored by Rells-Royce North America Inc, are given below.
Increase in accrued Fotal accrued Transfer valug as Increase in
retirement. retirertent Trans(er value at Dec 31,2007 transfer valug
lurnp sum lurrp sum of accrued of accrued over 2002
during the entitiement at  retirement lump retirernent net of the
yearended  the year ended UM @s at furng sum member’s own
Dec31,2002'  Dec 3120027 Dec3t,2002° atthatdate®  consributions !
£000pa £000pa £000 £000 000
Uy e e INY ) V20V 84D 67 169 {6)
OO - 00 £ 2 SO V247 IS sge 129 77
MrRT Turner 91 77 913 862 746 e 73

! The figure in brackets is the increase in pension/retirement lump sum during the year ended December 31,2002 but in this case excluding the effect of inflation.

2 The pensicn entitlement shown is that which would be paid annually on redrement, based on service to the end of the year.

* The transfer values stated represent liabilities of the Rolls-Royce sponsored pension schemes and not sumns paid to the individuals. The transfer values have been calculated on the
basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11. Actuarial Guidance Note GN11 covers individual transfer calculations and the above figures have been
calculated using assumptions certified by the Actuaries as belng consistent with GN11.These transfer values are calculated in accordance with the reguirements of the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002. Under these regulations the transfer value of the pension accsued prior to the start of the year must be calculated taking account of the
executive’s age and market conditions at the end of 2001, The transfer value of the pension accrued to the end of December 31, 2002 must take account of the executive’s age and
market conditions on that date. Therefore, the difference between the transfer values calculated at the beginning and the end of the year is only partly attributable to the additional
pension accrued during the year and is also partly attibutable 1o differences in market conditions on the respective calculation dates and to the executive having aged by ore vear,

* The figure in brackets, which is consistent with the approach used in previcus years in order to comply with the stock exchange listing requirements, is the transfer value of the
increase in pension/retirement ump sum during the year ended December 31,2002 excluding the effect of inflation, and net of the member’s own contributions. The transfer value

has been calculated taking account of market conditions and the executive’s age on December 31,2002,
$ Benefits are translated at US$1.50 =£1.00.

€ Members of the schemes have the option 10 pay Additional Voluntary Contributions. Neither the contributions nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table,

? The lump sum entitlement shown is that which would be paid on retirement based on service 1o the end of the year.
® Thee transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice,

? Mr J M Guyette is a member of two defined benefit plans in the USA, one qualified and one non-gualified. He is alse a member of an unfunded non-qualified plan in the USA He
accrues a retirement lump sum benefit in all three plans. The aggregate value of the three plans is shown in the second table, In addition, Mr Guyette is a member of two 401(K}
Savings Plans in the USA, one qualified and one non-qualified, to which his employer, Rolls-Royce North Ametica Inc, contributes, During 2062 the employer’s contributions

amounted to £29.876,

Approval of the directors’ remuneration report
Thedi s’ remuneration repe T above was approved by the Board of directors on March 3,2003

airrnan of the Remuneration Committee
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-roup proﬁt and Ioss account

Continuing
operations
before
exceptional Exceptional Total Total
items items’ 2002 2001
Notes £m £m £m tm
Brover: Group and share of joint ventures 6,072 - 68072 6,680
mles [0 joint ventures e ) 948 R — __94.8“ ) 87!
-ss share ofpmt ventures turnover ' ' 1,232y L {1,232) (1.223)
woup turnover 2 ... s = 5788 6328
o5t of sales (4 846) {69) {4 915) (5 400)
woss profit 982 (69) 873 T o
=her operating income e O O T 158 3
smmerdial, marketing and product support costs _‘ R o ' ' i85 20 (287) {288
=neral and admrnlstratrve costs f275) {4) - _(__2”79)7 ) 28N
=search and deveiopment (net) {297) — {297) (358)
woup operating profit 243 (75) 168 234
nare of operating DfOﬁtOfJOIHWEF’ Uf@S e e 6 - .86 &
55 on sale or ermination ofbuswnesses o o (22) ‘ e 22y an
=fit on sale of fixed assets — — — 6
-oﬁt on ordlnary activities before interest (75) B -t
- BLLE) B ()
- joint ventures — (35) {42)
ofit on ordinary activities before taxation s es T g
=xation 21 (52) (86}
wofit on ordinary activities after taxation e {54} 53 108
Suity minority interests in subs:dlary undertakmgs o ) — —
wofit attributable to ordinary shareholders .53 1os
Gvidends ' 5 (123) (132}
—~ansferred from reserves % (80) {26}
Sesearch and cevelopment (gross) 1590) . (6365
arnings per or;!gr_l_aryshare' 7 e
Tderying A0 2020p
sic . 32%  667p
utedbasic T 3260 656p

~Excepticnal items are analysed in note 3.1n 2001 exceptional items amounted to £230m.

= permitted by the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account for the Com
- the Group profit attributable t© ordinary shareholders, a profit of £19m (2001 £63m)

nere have been no material acquisitions or material discontinued operations in 2002 or 2001,

) Rolls-Royce plc /

pany has not been included in these financial statements,
has been dealt with in the profit and Joss account of the Company.




Company

2002
£m

200

Fixedassets =~~~ —
Intangiole assets o
Tangibie assers
irwve_st{_nents —..gqt_:;s_fqiary u.r_\_ci_e_z_tgal.;ings
. ololntventures
. Share of gross assets
share of gross llabilies oo
ogoodwil T . ‘ |
~ other

LA

B +:co S
1,487
AN

m

S

860
1,759
51

Current assets
Stocks e e et
Debtors - amounts falling due within one year —~ " | |

- amounts falling due after oneyear T —

Short-term deposits and investments

Cash at bank and in hand

.
319

67
1769

478

2,710

677
BN
. 365

..203

203

Creditors - amounts falling due within oneyear

Borrowings B
Other creditors

JAa2so

¢ N

(2,727)

L3286

LB

(2,593)

2989
L3

(2,240)

Net current assets

1,287

622

516

Total assets less current liabilitles

Creditors - amounts falling due after oneyear
Borrowings
Othercreditors.

Provisions for Habilities and charges n

LA

4297

nosg
s

{772}

L3214

L say
B2

(176}

3326

{693)
(364)

2,037

1,919

(260)
2,009

Capitalandreserves
ga!ledjup.sha_r_e‘c.apital‘ o '

share premium account
Revaluationreserve

Otherreserves
Profit and loss account

26

L
T S
e e - e i ieeie e 26 Peeeieiaiinaas

oo
195

g3

-
634

93

167
702

789

Equity shareholders'funds

Equity minority interests in subsidiary undertakings

L2085

SAgme

L2008

2,037

1,919

2,009

The financial statements on pages 40 to 73 were approved by the Board on March 3, 2003 and signed on its behalf by:

Euan Baird Chairman, Andrew Shilston Finance Director,

AT

41 Rolls-Royce plc




roup cash flow statement

2002 2001
£m im

=t cash inflow from Opesating activitles A 61t 418
-wdends rece\ved from  joint ventures o - 12 15
=turns on investments and servicing ofﬁnance & (84) R
ation paid e e l ‘41) R (24,)
=(5ita) expendlture and ﬁnanoa% wnvestmem ‘ o C2: ) N A )
—quisitions and dlsposa!s R o} 200 79
Ruity dividends pald {109) (84)
=25h {outfriow)/inflow before use of liquid resources and financing L L I
=nagement ofllqusd resources o E 217 o _(?62)
~ancing B F R Cm
crease in cash 124 120

=congiliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds o -
Srease in cash. e 124 120
=sh unﬂow)/outﬂow from (decrease)/:ncrease ln hquld resources L ' o o @17 162
uh outfiow/(inflow) from decrease/{increase) in borrowmgs 82 (95)
nange In net funds resulting from casn flows an 187
Drrowings of businesses acquired o 52 -
nance lease addmons e (32) —
=10-coupon bonds 005/2007 (0% interest accretion] 7T v 5 9
change adJustments 6 5

VIS NS e (o4 s
mt debt at January 1 {501} (G90)
mt debt at December 31 {595} (501}
At Other At

January 1, Acgjuired Exchange non-cash  December 31,

2002 Cash flow businesses adjustments changes 2002

malysis of net debt £m £m £m £m £m £m
=sh at bank and in hand _ 5718 T s2 T 634
rerdafts B8 a2 1. = a3)
~ort-term deposns and |nvestments e 301 21 T = T &4
=her borowings duewitinoneyear T e (198) = 85 LAy s ooy e
Srowings due after one year . (1,034) (103) a2y 23 ass (e61)
—ance leases (92) 30 —_ 3 (32) (91}
{501) {(171) {52) 6 (3N {595)
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Group cash ﬂow statement

?‘f‘v' v
R A

2002 2001
£m Em

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows e

Operatlng proﬁt TSSO .

Amortisation of:ntangﬁbte assets (no 9)

Deprecnanon of tangible ﬁxed assets (note 3) e

(Decrease)/mcrease in provisions for hablimes and charges

Decrease/(mcrease) Instocks

Decrease/(mcrease) in debtors

18 oy
L
36 o
Q28 w0
e s

O - A
Increase in creditors 212 187
A__Net cash inflow from operating activities 611 418

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Lnterest recewed

Jnterest pa’d e e e e e e
Interest element of f finance fease payments

BB
o @3
(6) (&)

8 Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance (84) {54)

Capital expenditure and financial investment i e e e e e e e e
Additions to unfisted investments T o . B
Additions to Lntangable assets o LB s
Purchases of tangible ﬁxed asset«

, . e LT R o1})
Disposais of tangible fixed assets T T ‘ R
Other investments — 2
£ _Net cash outfiow for capital expenditure and financial investment (381) (179)

Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions of busmesses (r:ote 31)
Disposals of bus:nesses (note 32) B 1
Investments in joint ventures. B L R 2
Loan repayments from joint ventures

o 2
D _Net cash (outflow)/inflow for acquisitions and disposals (20) 78

R D

_Decrease/(mcrease) in short- term dé;ﬂbﬁté """""""""" """""""""""""""""""""""""" 218 (159)
Increase in government securities and corporate bonds m 3)
E_Netcash inflow/{outflow} from management of liuid resources 217 {162)
Financing

Borrowings due wwthm one year repayment ofloans L
Bo_rrp_vyings.d_ue_a_ftgrlone'.yea_r_ ‘ repaymem of \oans e

Capltal element of finance Iease Dayments

(30) (11
et casn (outflowyinflow from (decrease)/increase i borowings T S 82 L%
Issue of ordinary shares 1 16
F__Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing (81) 111
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oup statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

2002
£m
ofit attributable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royceple . a3
-harge adjustments on foreign cusrency net investments 15
tal recognised gains for the year 68
roup h|stoncal cost proﬁts and losses
erober 31,2007
2002
£m
rofit on ordinary activities before taxation .. - T
“fference between the historical cost depreclation charge and the actual depreaanon charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount | 3
mstorical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 108
mstorical cost transfer from reserves (77} 21
:econcxhat\ons of movements in shareholders funds
3! 1, 2007
Graup Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £rn £m £m
[t January ) O L2068 2040 2009 2020
Dtal recogmsed gams for the year o 68 95 19 63
rdmary dividends {net of scnpdw'.dend ad)ustmems) e RS T £ 1 S - )
ew ordmary sh_?arre capatal issued {net of expenses) . L I
odwdl transferred to the proﬁt and loss account in respect of dlsposals of busmesses 8 7 — —
Decernber 31 2,035 2,068 1,919 2,009
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards on the historical <ost basis, modified to include the revaluation of land and
buildings.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financiat statements include the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiary undertakings made up 1o December 31, together with the Group’s share
of the results up 1o Decemnber 31 of:

i) Jointventures

A joint venture is an entity in which the Group holds 2 long-term interest and which is
jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other venturers under a contractual

arrangement. The results of joint ventures are accounted for using the gross equity
method of accounting.

ii) Joint arrangements that are not entities
The Group has certain contractual arrangerments with other particinants o engage in
joint activities that do not create an entity carrying on a trade or business of its awn.
The Group includes its share of assets, liabilities and cash flows in such joint
arrangements, measured in accordance with the terms of each arrangement, which is
usually pro-rata to the Group’s risk interest in the joint arrangement.

Any subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and joint arrangements that are not entities,

sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of change of
control.

Some small adjustments have been made 1o comparative figures to put themon a
consistent basis with the current year,

Purchased goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for shares

in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures over the fair value to the Group of the net
assets acquired.

i} ToDecember 31, 1997: Goodwill was writien off 1o reserves in the year of acquisition,
The profit or loss on the disposal of a business acquired before December 31,1997

takes into account the attributable value of purchased goodwill relating to that
business.

fi)y From January 1, 1998: Goodwill has been recognised within fixed assets in the year in
which it arises and amartised on a straight line basis over its useful econamic life,up
16 & maximum of 20 years.

Turnover

Turnover, excluding value added tax and discounts, comprises sales to outside customers,
and the Group's percentage interest in sales of joint ventures. Long-term contracts are
included in turnover on the basis of the sales value of work performed during the year by
reference to the total sales value and stage of completion of these contracts.

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships

From time to time the Group enters into arrangements with partners who,in return for a
share In future programme turnover or profits, make cash or other payments in kind
which are not expected 1o be refundable. Sums received are credited © other operating
income and payments to partners are charged to cost of sales.

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development
expenditure incurred In the year, exciugding known recoverable costs on contracts,
contributions 1o shared engineering prograrmmes and application engineering.
Apglication engineering expend:ture, incurred in the adaptation of existing technology to
new products,is capitalised and amortised over the programme life, up to a maximum of

ten years, where both the technical and commercial risks are considered to be sufficiently
low.
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Foreign currencies
Assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign currencies are transfated into sterling at the
rate ruling at the year end or, where applicable, at the estimated sterling equivalent, raking
account of future foreign exchange and similar contracts. The trading results of overseas
undertakings are translated at the average exchange rates for the year or, where
applicable, at the estimated sterling equivalent, taking account of future foreign exchange
and similar contracts. Exchange adjustrnents arising from the retranslation of the opening
net investments, and from the translation of the profits or losses at average rates, are
taken to reserves. Other exchange differences, Including those arising from currency

conversicns in the usual course of trading, are taken into account in determining profit on
ordinary activities before taxation.

Treasury instruments
The accounting treatment of the key instruments used by the Group is as follows:

i) Gains or losses arising on forward exchange contracts are taken to the profit and loss
account in the same perled as the underiying transaction.

i} Net interest arising on interest rate agreements is taken to the profit and loss account.

it} Premiums paid or received on currency options are taken to the profit and loss
account when the option expires or matures.

Gains or iosses arising on jet fuel swaps are taken to the profit and loss account in the
same pericd as the undertying transaction.

if the underlying transaction to a hedge ceases to exist, the hedge s terminated and the
profits and losses on termination are recogrised in the profit and foss account
immediately. If the hedge transaction is terminated, the profits and losses on termination

are held in the balance sheet and amortised over the life of the original underiying
transactions.

Post-retirement benefits

Contributions 1o Group defined penefit pension schemes are charged to the profit and
loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions at a substantially level percentage of
payroll costs over employees’ service lives,

The cost of providing post-retirement benefits other than pensions is charged to the
profit and loss account over the service lives of the relevant employses,

Certification costs

Costs incurred in respect of meeting requlatory certification requirements for new civit
enging/aircraft comiinations, including those paid o zirframe manufacturers, are caried
forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales
and are charged to the profit and loss account over the prograrnme life, up to a
maximum of ten years.

Interest

interest payable is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred, except where the
borrowing finances tangible fixed assets in the course of construction relating to power
development projects. Such interest is capitalised until the asset is complete and income
producing and is then written off by way of depreciation of the relevant asset,

Interest receivable is credited to the profit and loss account as earned.
Taxation

Provision for taxation is made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the
projected raie on alt iming differences which have originated, but not reversed at the
balance sheet date.

Scrip dividends

The amounts of dividends taken as shares instead of cash under the scrip dividend
scheme have been added back to reserves. The nominal value of shares issued under the
scheme has been funded out of the share premium account.
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Accounting policies continued

nek, contract provisions and long-term contracts

ek and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Full
wision is made for any estimated losses to cornpleticn of cantracts having regard to

2 overalt substance of the arrangements including, if appropriate, related commitments
d undertakings given by custormers. Provided that the cutcorne of long-terrn contracts
n be assessed with reasonable certainty, such contracts are valued at cost plus
ributable profit earned 1o date.

Dgress payments received, when greater than recorded turnover, are deducted from the
tue of work in progress except 1o the extent that payments on account exceed the

fue of work in progress on any contract where the excess is included in creditors. The
nount by which recorded turmover of long-term contracts is in excess of payments on

count is classified as‘amounts recoverable on contracts’and Is separately disclosed
thin debtors.

ccounting for leases
As Lessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements which give rights agproximating to ownership
(finance leases) have been capitaiised at amounts equal to the original cost of the
assets to the lessors and depreciation provided on the basis of the Group depreciation
policy. The capital elements of future obfigations under finance leases are included as
liabilities in the balance sheet and the curent year's interest element, having been
aliocated to accounting perfods to give a constant periodic rate of charge on the
outstanding balance, is charged to the profit and |oss account.

The annual payments under ali other lease arrangements, known as operating leases,
are charged to the profit and loss account an an accruals basis,
As Lessor

Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under debtors and represent
the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less unearned income. Finance
lease income, having been allocated to accounting periods to give a constant pericdic
rate of return on the net cash investment, is included in turnover.

Rentals receivable under operating ieases are included in wurnover on an accruals
basis.

Rolls-Royce plc -

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
arty provision for impairments in value,

Depreciation is provided on the following basls:

i)

ii)

li)

_E_;

Land and buildings

Depreciation is provided on the original cost of purchases since 1996 and on the
valuation of properties adopted at December 31, 1996 and is calculated on the
straight fine basis at rates sufficient to reduce them to their estimated residual value.
Estimated lives, as advised by the Group's professional valuers, are:

a) Freehold buildings - five to 45 years {average 24 years).

b} Leasehold land and buildings - lower of valuers estimates of period of lease.

No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land,

Plant and eguipment

Depreciation is provided on the originat cost of plant and equipment and is
calculated on a straight line basis at rates sufficient to reduce them to thelr estimated
residual value, Estimated lives are in the range five to 25 years (average 16 years).
Aircraft and engines

Depreciation is provided on the original cost of aircraft and engines and is calculated
on a straight line basis at rates sufficient to reduce them to their estimated residual
value, Estimated lives are in the range five to 20 years (average 18 years}.

In course of construction

No depreciation Is provided on assets in the course of construction.




Notes 1o the finandial statements

2 Segmental analysis

Group turnover Profit before interest Net assets’
2002 2001 2002 200t 2002 2001
£m £m im £ £m fm
Analysis by business: T

.. vl aerospace

- - B ¥ < N LR 3 E B AP
LDefence 1376 14t BREC T SR
Marine L3RBT s Ty s
Energy U O 1 AL - " B 1}
Financial services 2 50 50 62 490 374
5,788 6,328 311 2,632 2,571

Geographical analysisby origin: T T R

Other 160 174 ,462 1,296
212 311 2,632 2,571

Geographical analysis by destination; e
_United Kingdom
_Restof Europe
”Canada e e
Asia
- Afnca
) _Australa5|a

Other
Exports from United Kingdom
Sales to overseas sub5|d|ar|es L
Sa\es by overseas subsmﬂ;anes ___________________________________________________________________________
Sales by overseas joint arrangement
Total overseas
! Net assets exclude net debt of £595m (2001 net debt of £501 m).
?The turnover of financial services businesses inchuding share of joint ventures is £122m (20071 £149m),
The analysis of underlying profit befora interest, the profit and loss account exceptional items and the reconciliation to underlying profit before taxation are as follows:
2002 2601

Underlying Other Underlying Other
profit before Exceptional non-trading Profit before profit before Exceptional nan-trading Prafit before
interest Items tems interest interest iterns items interest
£m £m £m im fm im fm im

Cvil aerospace SRR SR C 1) SRR ¢ -+ BRI - S U AL S () B |-

Defence 18 Ay e s ey U ) Y -4

Marine LB LR s Ay T Ty .3

Energy ) L e ey T ey T e Ty gy g

Financial services {12) {2} (6) {20} 63 — (1 62

262 {75)1 {75) 212 594 (230)? (53)2 ElL

Interest (107} (119)

Underlying profit before taxation 255 475

! Rationalisation costs see note 3.
2 Comprising amortisation of goodwill £52m {2001 £45m), 10ss on sale of businesses £22m (
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2001 £111m) and foss on sale of fixed assets £1m (200% profit of £3m),
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Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2002
£m
tercrediting
,k and revenue sharmg partnersh\ps - recelpts (credited to other ¢ operatmg income) o 158 239
(139}
t impact of risk and revenue sharing partnerships 19
3:9@?.'r19,"€e5__e FEBISIECONADIE et e e 3B
ceptaonal ntems - ratlonahsatton costs‘ ' '. ) ' ' 75
nomsataon ofgoodwm ) ) - o 52
nortisation of cer‘tﬁcanon costs e 22
=preciation ofowned tangubte ﬁxecl assets L 212 1
2preciation of tangt ble fixed assers hetq g_s_r_!de: ﬁnance leases : 24
Derating lease remals pa_y_a_b!e —hlre of plant and eqmpment e e 60
Shieofotherassets 21
aditors'fees were as follows during the vear: ' i ‘ ‘
Audit 2002 - Group £3.2m (2007 £3.0m) including Company £0.7m (2001 £0.6rm)
Other 2002 - United Kingdom  £0.8m (2001 £3.1m)
- Rest of World £0.8m {2007 £0.9m)
IR ationalisation costs relate to termination of employment, site decommissioning and relocation and related disruption to operations, Including
accelerated depreciation of plant and machinery. At December 31,2002 £52m (2001 £144m) was included in provisions {see note 22).
Including appropriate amounts charged to stocks.
Net interest payable — Group
2002 2007
£m im
terest payable on: e e e e e e e e e e e e e e - -
Bank lcans and overdrafts R 26} B
_Cther borrowings 62} L2
Ananceleases © ©
terest cap|ta1|sed — 2
e o4 L en
terest receivable 2 24
{72) {77
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Notes to the financial statements

5 Taxation

UK Overseas Total
2002 2001 2002 200t 2002 2001
Current tax

£m £m £m m im im

Current tax charge/(credit) for the period AL S 54 .. 46 .38 5
Less double tax relief {1) — — {1) )
(17) 46 .2 A -
S A SR .. S

Joint venitures

e L R
(%
o+

Deferredtax

Deferred 1ax charge/(credlt) for the penod
Adjustments in respect of prior penods

B 1 BN N - S
{7} — 1 — (6) -
3 24 49 62 52 86

Tax recenciliation !

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Meminal tax charge at UK corporation faxrate 30% (200130%)
Goodwﬂl not deduct ble fortax purposes
Unreheved overseas losses ‘
Fixed asset tlmmg d:fferences

........... LY T BT
UKR&D taxcred't L . - -
Other iterns

* For the purpose of this reconciliation the tax on the profits of joint ventures has been assumed © be entirely current,

Analysis of taxation charge: L
Tradmg activities

Non underiymg itemns (note 7) {24} 8
52 36

6 Dividends - ordinary shares

2002 200+
£m £
Interim 3.18p (2001 3. 18p) per share

51 51
Final proposed 5.00p (2001 500p) per share 7 - ' 82 81

133 132
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Earnings per ordinary share

sic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary sharehoiders of £53m (2001 £106m) by 1,612 million (2001 1,589 million) ordinary
ares, being the average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding own shares held under trust (note 13) which have been treated as if they had been cancelied.
derlying earnings per ordinary share have been calculated as follows:

2002 2001

Pance £m Pence Em

ofitatiributable to ordinary shareholders 32888887 108
dade: T e U U
Exceptional rationafisation costs e L 85 T5 L MA47 230

Losy/(profi) on sale of fixed assets (excluding lease engines and arcraft sold by financial services companiesl " 006 b oo L@

Amortlsanon ofgoodwﬁl e 3,23 ' L 52 o283 45

Netlossonsale of businesses T g g e

Related tax effect - ' 149 (24 427) G

derlying earnings per ordinary share 11.10 179 20.20 321

luted basic eamnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of £53m (2001 £105m) by 1,624 million (2001 1,616 million)
dinary shares, being 1,612 million (2001 1,589 million) as above adjusted by the honus element of existing share opticns of 12 million (2001 27 million).

Employee information

2002 2001
Number Number
werage weekly number of Group employees during the year R e e R
nited Kingdom e e e e . 3380027300
R e . 15300 e 000
39,200 43,300
vilaerospace . ‘ O R _..2,800 24300
fence e e e e e e . 800 7200
B 6500 6600
oy : R - PSSP e i ) - : . .4800. T
o serines T S 00
39,200 43300
£m £m

oupemploymentcosts® e e e SO e e e e e e .
Pcial security costs N . S 128
Ensions and other post retirement benefits {note 30) 83 89
1,504 1,647

[Directors remuneration is shown on page 35.
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e

Y
Fe

9 Intangible fixed assets

Group Company
Certification Application Certification
Goodwill costs engineering Tetal costs

£m £m £m £m £m

L Atlanuaryl2002
LAdditions e . SO - ST - R A * SR
Disposals {4) — s {4) —_
At Decernber 37,2002 937 144 37 1,118 144

B8 LML T T e
O T 68

Accumulated amortisation
. Adanuary 12002
Bxchange adjustments 0 B = 8. =
Provided during theyear T - S - SR 7 SR
Disposals (1} - — (1) —
At December 31,2002 151 99 —_ 250 99
Net book value at Decerber 31,2002

786 45 37 868 45
Net book value at Decernber 31,2001 769 34 20 823 34

2T T e
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J Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plant and Alreraft and In course of
buildings equipmaent engines construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
woup ST

Dt or valuation:

..... LA7aazse Uaza T e 600
SUONE. SN -1 SN | ) NN () S 7.
Lo e 126 o1 344
A8 = = o
: , e M == 13
Disposals/write-offs (1) {65} {5) (13) (84)
At December 31,2002 511 1,911 279 198 2,899
—eumulated deprecation: o T T O
AtJanuary 1,2002 | B L7838 = mes
Exchange adjustrments N O ) S - B ¢
Provideddurngyear® S V8 198 e — 136
ondseosasofbusinesses DL gy T | )
Disposals/write-offs ‘ ' ‘ e - (58) {5) — (63}
At Decernber 31,2002 77 874 72 — 1,023
=t book value at December 31,2007

434 1,037 207 198 1,876
=1 book value at Decemnber 31,2001 414 1,005 118 185 1,732

Addiions atcost
On acquisitions of businesses
_Ondispesals of businesses

Smpany
Atlanuary1,2002 T .54 1,403
Additions at cost ' L7883 4 o1s
Reclassifications o e B 32 e T 38—
Disposals/write-offs o T o ' ) — (2) (70}
At December 31,2002 23 61 1,551
—cumuiated depreciation:
Atlenvary 120
_ Provided during year
Disposals/write-offs
At Decernber 31,2002
=1 book vaiue at Decemnber 31, 2002
mt Dook value at December 31,2001

= sa3
=y
= — {53)
—_ — 587
93 61 964
— 54 860

(3
54
218
238

Includes impairment charges as follows:

Aircraft and engines - £17m relatirg to the write-down of aircraft to values provided by independent aircraft appraisers.
Piant and equipment - £30m relating to the write-down of certain Rolls-Royce Power Ventures' industrial Trent power projects 1o thelr recoverable amount based on value in use,
using a pre-tax discount rate of 10%,

2 Rolis-Royce plc #»
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10 Tangible fixed assets continued

Group Company
2002 200! 2002 2001
Tangibie fixed assets include: £m £m £m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets 115 112 52 27
Assetsheld foruse in operating leases: USROS
LSt e B e e 259 .13 93—
Depreciation T (-5§-) -------- (44) o = o
Net book value 200 109 93 —
Non-depreciable land 79 30 58 58
Land and buildings at cost o valuation comprise: | e e e oot e e
St ... .2 8 8 8
. Valuation at December 31,1985 ' ' o o0 7 T LT
Valuation at De‘cemb'ér 31,‘15‘96‘ o o . 225 225 ' 192 ‘ 201
511 474 272 284
Land angd buildings at net book value comprise:

HERNOI ... 404 383 o211 230
Ctenglesseheld VS Tk
Short jeasehold ' N ' ' ' o ' N 13 ' 12 — —
434 414 218 238

On 2 historical cost basis the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows: B
O e e e e LAss 498 . 254 266
Depreciation ' {161) (147) (129) (123)
334 311 125 141
Capitalised Interest included in net book value of assets in course of construction 2 5 — —
Capital expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 68 95 28 30

The Group has followed the transitional provisions of FRS 15 'Tangible fixed assets;, to retain the book value of land and buildings, certaln of which were revaiued in 1996 (see * below).
' Group properties were revalued at Decemier 31, 19956 as foliows:

i} Specialised properties, including certain of the Group’s major manufacturing sites, were revalued on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
i) Nen-specialised properties were revalued by reference to their existing use value.

ity Properties surplus to the Group's requirements were revalued on an open market value basis.

In the United Kingdorn the revaluation was carried out by Gerzld Eve, Chartered Surveyors, Fuller Peiser, Chartered Surveyors and Storey Sons & Parker, Chartered Surveyors, in
accordance with the appraisal and valuation manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Overseas properties were valued principally by independent local valuers.
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Investments - subsidiary undertakings

Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
D DY e
Atlanuary 1,002 dA72 87 1759
Additions/(repayments) 15 (287) (272}
At December 31, 2002 1,487 — 1,487
e principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on pages 70 and 71.
2 Investments - joint ventures
Share of post
Shares acquisition
at ¢cost reserves Loans Tntal
£m £m £m £m
D s R e e
january 12002 LAz A7 s 208
change adjustments B < I . ®
ddidons S Y= 8
sposalsandrepayments be e @ D
~are of retained profit ‘ ) - " 10 — 10
- Decernber 31,2002 126 64 5 1951
Smpany . .
Slanuety 12002 e B AT 51
Aditions ' R T T .2
sposals and repayments (2} o {4) {6}
December 31,2002 47 — — 47
e principal joint ventures are listed on pages 72 and 73.
nvestments in joint ventures are represented by:
2002 2001
£m £m
Hare of aggregate assets: T ..
Foed AL 856
 Curent o . 450 485
Careofaggeqate liabiftes: B
Due within one year e o {3’y 31
Dueafieroneyea e (580)  713)
Eoodwill 6 7
195 204
Includes DorOWings OF e, s1e) 78D

Rolls-Royce plc A7
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13 Investments - other

Unlisted Own shares
Investments held under
at cost trust!
£m £m
G OUD e -
At sancary 13003 e . 24
Netadgditons e 44
Amortisation and utilisaon " T T _
At December 31,2002 68
Company . e e e e e -
Atlanuary 12002 e 8.8
O G OIS e e e e e e AT LG
Amortisation and utilisation —_ (3}
At December 21,2002 a6 3

1 Ordinary shares in the Company are held in two trusts:

i) As part of the long-term incentive plan (LTIP), the Rolls-Royce 1999 executive share option pian and other employee share schemes
(see Directors remuneration report on pages 31 to 39).

The shares held by this independently managed trust were purchased on the open market:

March 26,1995 ll4AéatfzSdpershare
Jne30.1999 | 1475000ztf273 pershare

At December 31,2002, these shares had a market value of £1.7m.In accordance with UITF 17 ‘Employee share schemes; the Company is required to amortise the cost of
llkely awards over each separate performance measurement period and to include this charge as part of the cost of 'wages and salaries:The UITF is a committee of the
Accounting Standards Board.

In respect of a Qualifying Employee Share Trust (QUEST), which provides employees with shares under Infand Revenue approved Save As You Earn (SAYE)} share schemes

As permitted by UITF 17, no amortisation charge has been made. At December 31,2002, a total of 401,283 of these shares had stil not been allocated to option holders, l
their market value being £0.4m.These outstanding allocations are expected to occur in 2003,

ii)

Both trusts have waived dividends and voting rights, and their costs of administration have been charged to the Company’s profit and loss account.

14 Stocks

Company
2002 2001
£m im
Raw materials

A N 87 ... ....Ae .2@ 52
WOMKINDIOGIESS e e e 385 O I
tong-term contracts work in progress Loe A
Payments on account ) ) ' ' ' '

46 20

OSSPy et Lo AaINS e e
o lengrerm convactsworkinprogress L way on o @n
Other stocks ? {(179) {249} (86) (11}
1,158 1,222 o667 577

!} Includes payments received fram joint veniures (18) 23 (18) @:
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Debtors - amounts falling due within one year

Group Cotmpany

2002 2001 2002 200t
£m fm £m £m
de debtors N - - ) B ) ) - - ) o - 961 45 a2
nounts recoverable oncontracts el 4 e
nounts owed by ~ subsidiary undertakings 1010 e2]
. .. Tjointventures 72 195 185 156
o maton 72 1es 185 1S
ferred tax assets (note 23)
2payments and accrued income

........ e AU IS =T
175 178 130 126
1,487 1,640 1,769 1331

> Debtors - amounts falling due after one year

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001

£ Trn £m £
adedebtors L e SO, L SOOI .- SOOI .- SO/
Mounts recoverable on contracts ' ' o ' ' B 450 274 343 L 24
g s e 8 s S e Z8 LA

e e e e e e e T T YO0
B Ut NS -1 SRR SR
=ferred tax assets (note 23}

.epa|d pens! On cont nbutg Ons .............................................................................................................................

W Short-term deposits and investments

Group Company
2002 200 2002 2001

£m £m £m im
orttermdeposits L 84262 30
VESITNENTS — government securities and corporate bonds

84 301 13 203

Borrowings — amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m Em £m

verdrafts
Bnk loans
ther foans S S
oigatons under finance feases 1
/2% Notes 2003 1 ' ' - ' B

B S A

6
276 31 113

he Group has borrowed US $300m through a subsidiary, Rolls-Royee Capital Inc, in order to provide a loan for general Group purposes. This has been translated into sterling
after taking account of future contracts. The loan is guaranteed by the Company. These notes are the subject of interest swap agreements under which counterparties have
undertaken te pay amounts at fixed rates of interest in consideration for amounts payable by the Group at variable rates of interest,

Rolls-Royce plc 5 nrr E
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19 Other creditors - amounts falling due within one year

Company

2002

200%

Payments received onaccount T
Trade creditors o e '
Amounts owed to - subsidiary undertakings
. Tlointventures
Corporate taxation
Other taxation and social security
cher creditors '

£m

172 .

228
%05
98

8

LAass
464

51

rn

22

269

G
158

100

22
460

e

sl
a1

! Includes payments received from jointventures e

2,593

.80

2,240

20 Borrowings - amounts falling due after one year

Group

Company

2002 2001

2002
£m

W00
£m

£m fm
Unsecured =~ .
7Y% MNotes2003'
47%Notes 20052 o
oY% Notes 20072~ T '
Tk Notes20t6 T T
Other loan 2005 (interest rate i)
Secured '
Obligations under finance leases payable:>
. Betweenoneandtwoyears U
. Beweenmoandfiveyeas e ) ,
Zero-coupon bonds 2005/2007 (including 9.0% interest accretion) *

LT s T

LA
L3100
200

77
310

1,038 1,104

794

Repayable = =~~~
Between one and two years - by instalments
Between two and five years - byinstalments
S ..~ otherwise

After five years - by instalments

- otherwise

y 'Eh-stélmems T P PR TOROR - . e e T AT

Y

510

683

! See note 18.

2 The Company has borrowed  756m in order to provide a loan for
counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of j

general Group purposes, These notes are the subject of currency swap agreements under which

nterest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable by the Company at variable rates of
interest and at fixed exchange rates.

? Obligations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets,
* Secured on aircraft financed by joint arrangements. Repayment of the zero-coupon bends is also guaranteed by the Comparw.
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Other creditors - amounts falling due after ane year

Group Company

2002 2001 2002 2001

£m fm £m £in

yrments receved onaccount s s Ars e

nounts owed to - subsidiary undettakings — 5 L9

L oTiointventwes - =
rporate taxation

cruals and deferred income 175 112 72 25
45Q 288 325 364
ncludes payments received fromjointyentures EE 35 26
2 Provisions for liabilities and charges

At Acquisition/ Unused Charged to At
January 1, Exchange disposal of amounts profit and December 31,
2002 adjustments Businesses reversed loss account Utilised 2002
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

roup e e e ST
ost-employment, pensions and other post-retirement benefits 4 29 L B4 158
Sfered aXation e VA, 2 27 T 179
arranty/guarantees LR 70 R - B . 182
ONFRCLIOSS L 35 .. @ e
Ustomer finanding - - - - . 3 L ta9) 64
=structuring and rationalisation Jse T ™ L4 16 L Lesy 54
xher 38 {1 — (5) 18 (22) 28
882 (10} 3 (33) 229 {299) 772
MPANY
ferred taxation 69 - - (3 ~ = ... 86
aanty/quarantees 37 - T Gl .. “woo s .
pnact loss 3 - — - b LA 2
Lstomer financing. 30 T = R 15 o) 38
Estructuring and rationalisation 14 — - 1 88) 27
Cier R AR . e - — - o &) -
260 — e 6) 31 {109) 176

Rolls-Royce ple

Dst-ernployment, pensions and other post-retiremant provisions are long term in nature and the timing of their utifisation is unceriain,

"arranty provisions primarily relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years.
ovisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utilised within one year.

| istomer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as described in note 28.Timing of utilisation is uncertain.
surance provisions relate o the Group’s captive insurance business with timing of utilisation being uncertain.

Fther provistons comprise a number of liabilities with varying expected ulilisation rates.
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23 Deferred taxation

Group Company
£m £m
Atlanuary 1,2002 LB te9)
Amount charged to profit and loss account DO T
On acquisitions of businesses N BN L S
Exchange movements &
Transfers m -
At Decembar 31,2002 (74) 66
There are other deferred tax assets totalling £35m (2001 £27m) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future ecenomic benefit is uncertain,
The undistributed profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures may be liable to overseas taxes and/or United Kingdom tax (after allowing for double tax relief}
if remitted as dividends to the UK. No deferred tax has been provided as there are cutrently na commitments to pay such dividends.
The analysis of the deferred tax position is as follows:
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m
FiedassetUming diferences . ey o o 109) S
Other timing differences S = 46 8
Advance éorporation tax 56 54 37 35
(74} 2 (66) {69)
Included in: e, OO PPON et e
Provisions e e e e e e e e e (179) .. (48) 66 o 69)
Debtos 105 97 — —
(74} (52} {66} (69)

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might arise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated in the Group's balance sheet.
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Financial instruments

tails of the Group's policies on the use of financial instruments are given in the Finance Director’s review on pages 18 to 23 and in the accounting policies on pages 45 to 46

e foliowing disclosures provide additional information regarding the effect of these instruments on the financial assets and liabilities of the Group, excluding short-term debtors
d creditors where permitted by FRS 13,

nding and interest rates

2002
Sterling Us Dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m
‘anc{al aSSEtS e e e e e e e e eaiaaa e e e e aaie s e e aeaan B R ] - PR EREEE
Cashatbankandinhand® o iw@0 292 83 79
Shortterm deposits? e e e B B T2
Government securit] es and corporate bor\dsa 3=
Unlisted fixed asset investments * a6 N 2B
Debtors - amounts falimg due after one yea{ “ 65 39 — 20
345 347 85 133

nancial liabilities ® L
Floatlng rate borrowmgs Ly
_.F\xedvrate borrowwngs

L e sl

B s _{166)  {1,150)
Borrowmgsonwhlchno merest\spald’ ) e e O (. ) IO
_Othercredﬁors—amountsfallmgdueafteroneyear" ey By =y (88
Provisions * ) B T I R —_ —

(930} {289) {9) {173) {1,401)
200
Sterling Us Dollar Euro Other Totat
£m £m £rn fm £m

—Rncial assets ) N B o S
Cashatbankandinhand® T T T T e ale T ss s 578
Shartterm deposits ? e Lowyo B = e
Government securities ; and corporate bonds ) o . a 38 ) . 1 . - =
_Unlisted fixed asset mvestments" ) e e 3 e 4
Debtors—amountsfallmg due af'LEf oneyear“ ‘ o ‘ ”86 o 10 17 20‘ 133

386 471 73 106 1,036

-]anC!al Ilabtl]tless B LT L LI T R U I L L LT L L R T T I T L L T H T R L EE L T L R E T - eeaa. B C R T - - .
eatingrateborowings® ey ) 00 ey e
[Fixed-rate borrowings e 20w — ke B3
.BOVTOW‘”QSO“W"“C“ nomteresttspaad’ . e e e e e e T T S ieer- IO 1) SO
Other creditors - amounts falling due affer oneyeard LBn e B e
Provisions * — (6) — — (6}

(1,021) {203) {10) {219) {1,453)

tes
RCash at bank and in hand comprises bank balances and deposits placed on meney markets overnight.
FShort-term deposits are deposits placed on money markets for petiods ranging from two nights up to ene month.

nterast on the securities and bonds are at fixed rates. The weighted average interest rate on the sterling securities is 5,1% (2001 6.4%) and the weighted average

nterest rate on the US Dollar securities is 5.0% (2001 5.0%). The weighted average time for these securities is 2.3 years (2001 2.6 years).
ese amaounts do not incur or accrue interest,

Financial llabilities are stated after taking into account the various Interest rate and currency swaps entered into by the Group.

Floating-rate financial fiabilities comprise bank borrowings bearing interest at rates fixed in advance for periods ranging from one to six months based on the
prlicable LIBOR rate.

he weighted average period for borrowings on which no interest is paid Ts seven years (2001 eight years).

Rolls-Royce plc /
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24 Financial instruments continued

The analysis of fixed-rate borrowings is as follows:

2002 2001

Weighted Weighted Weightec Weighted

average average average average

interestrate period for interest rate period for

at which which rate atwhich which rate

Total fixed Is fixed Total fixed is fixed

£m % Months £m % Months

Currency o
Losterding B
U5 Doliar A7
Other &0

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabitities is as follows:

2002 2001

£m £m

O e Or oSS O O O AN e e e e 28278

Inmore than one year but not more thantwoyears Y94 250
In more than two years but not more than five years

SN2 38
I more than five years 220 562

1,401 1453

Borrowing facilities
The Group has various borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at Decernber 31, 2002 were as follows:

2002 2601

£m £m
Expiring within cne year VRPN e 88 398
Expifing inonetotwoyeass - .. SO 2
Expiring thereafter |

825 500
1,389 974

Exchange risk management

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures at December 31,2002 on currency transactions that give rise 1o the net currency gains and losses recoghised in the
profit and loss account. Such exposures comprise the net monetary assets and liabilities of the Group at December 31,2002 that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the operating campany involved. The exposures are stated after taking into account the effects of currancy swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts.

2002 2001

Net foraign currency monatary assets/(liabilities) Net foreign currency monetaty assets/{liabilities)

. Sterling US Dollar Euro Other Starling US Dollar Euro Other
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
sering e e B M 2 T L ]
USDollar - n e T e T T
Other 2 1 — — 2 1 3 (
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Financial instruments continued

ir values of financial assets and financial liabilities
e estimated fair value of the Group's finandial instruments are summarised below:

2002 200
Book value Fair valua Boak value Fait vatue
£m £m £m £rn
listed fixed asset INVESTMENtS | e 68 . ... S S .
shat bankand snhand . o S - - ) 634 634 578 578
ottermdsposits and investments . BA 87 301 0l
orttermdebt L AaTS) 1280 27e) 74
ngtermdebt S e e B B (o038 Qaza adeq (0133
her creditors - amountsfall lige dueafter oneyear ] S (B8 (88)  BT) %
brors - amounts falling due afieroneyear | e 12819 [T )
ovisions — — (6) (%)
2rivatives used to hedge the interest, currency and commodity exposure of the business:
Jet fuel swaps S S S e 2 =G
S - B FRRN "~ S
Currency options ) ) ) ) ) ) N ) - ) - o = - (3
meardforelgm,unencycomfacts o i T — ‘ 1.51 . w (550)
Forward purchase of shares to meet share opnon commltments ) ) — {59} — (21}
here available, market values have been used to determine current values, Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected
ture cash flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates.
3sh at bank and in hand, short-term deposits and short-term borrowings:
The book value approximates to fair value either due to the short-term maturity of the Instruments or because the interest rate of investments is reset after periods not
greater than six menths,

=rivatives:

The fair value of derivatives is the estimated amount, based on current market rates, which the Group would expect to pay of receive were it to terminate the derivatives
at the balance sheet date.

dges of future transactions

described in the Finance Director's review on pages 18 to 23 the Group's policy is to hedge the following exposures:
Interest rate tisk - using interest swaps

Currency exposures on future forecast sales - using forward foreign currency contracts, currency swaps and currency options
Commuaodity price risk - using jet fuel swaps

Eiins and losses on instruments used for hedging are dealt with as outlined in the accounting policies on pages 44 and 45,

Mrecognised gains and insses on instruments used for hedging, and the moverents therein, are as foliows:

2002 2001
Total net Total net

Gains {Losses] gains{{losses) Gains Losses) qains/flosces)

£m £m £m £m £m im

recognised gains and fosses on hedges at January 1,2002 L I8 1) ey %6 B8 (293)
Bins and losses arising in previous year that were recognised in 2002 (46) 209 163 (44) 90 46
Eins and losses arising in previous year that were notrecognised in2002 32 . oy 7o) 2 e 4an)
Eiins and losses arising in 2002 that were not recognised in 2002 358 171 529 26 412 (388)
Fvecognised gains and losses on hedges at December 31, 2002 of which: 390 {331) 59 78 (711} {633)
_Gains and losses expected to be recognisedin2002 163 {143 20 33 (7 (194
Gamsand Iossesexpecred to be recognised thereafter X7 (8B 39 45 (484 {439
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25 Share capital

Non-equity

Equity Nominal
spacial ordinary shares valua
share of £1 of 20p each £m
AtJanuary 1 and December 31,2002 1 2,000,000,000 400
Issued and fully paid R S
Atdanuary 12002 1,601,143,713 320
Exercise of share options e e e 859,267 S
In fieu of paying dividends in cash — 15,193,090 3
At Decemnber 31,2002 1 1,616,996,070 323
Certaln special rights, set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, attach to the special rights redeemable preference share (special share) issued to
HM Government. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, the special share ray be redeemed by the Treasury Sclicitor at par at any time.
The special share confers ne rights to dividends or to vote at general meetings but in the event of a winding-up it shall be repaid at its nominal value in
priority 1 any other shares.
At December 31,2002, the following ordinary shares were subject to options:
Date of Exercise Exercisable
grant Number price dales
Becutive share option scheme T T 990 1342250 176p . 2003-2005
o ' 598 75.600 238p 2003-2006
Bxecutve share optionplan o T o oo — 1999 1252095 2e%p 2003-2009
' 199 | 2548% 216p . 2003-2009
2000 6A61373 194 2003-2010
.................... 1955501 L% 2003-20%0
L2000 3emos 163p, 20032010
L2000 ons T e . 20032010
e M3 W0 ..., 2003-2010
2001 L0676l e ... 2004-2011
200 0142844 aiep 5004201
L2001 17071364 216D ... 2004-20m
001 ' 218p_ 20022011
.............. 28p 2004201
......................................................................................................................... 880 0053012
188p. . 2005-2012
216p 2005-2012
Sharesave schemes L 327808 NS0 2003
R CBraroas L 20Sp T 2003/2008
_______ Clges o 1s04es  t07p T aom
L1999 Bel2zm o edp T 2003/2008/2007
2001 40,738,085 108p 2005/2007/2009

Under the terms of the executive share o
were outstanding at December 31,2002

Under the terms of the sharesave schemes, the Board may grant options to

plion scheme and the executive share option plan, options granted to 529 directors and senior executives

purchase ordinary shares in the Company each year to those employees

who enter into an Inland Revenue approved Save As You Zarn (SAYE) contract for a period of either three, five of seven years,

Employees in 28 countries participate in sharesave schemes through arrangements broadly comparable to the UK scheme.

*Relates to options granted under the Vickers pic sharesave schemes which, following the acquisition of Vickers
fnfand Revenue Rules for options cver Rolls-Royce plc ordinary shares.
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» Resorves

Non-distributable
Share Revaluation Other Profit and
premium raserve reserves less account
£m £m £m £m
TOUP e, [P
January 1,2002 636 103 189 820
change adjustrents . - . W15
fip dividend adjustmert = - - 3
“cinary shares issued relating toscrip dividend T B - = =
wite-back of purchased goodwll relating to disposals " " Bl - .8 =
ising on share issues [net of expenses) - N L — - —
Snsfers between reserves - . @ s
=tained lcss for the year — — — {80}
Decernber 31,2002 634 100 195 783
PMmpany . T - L L
January 1,200 636 97 167 789
rp dividend adjustment T T - 23
“dinary shares relating to scrip divicend T T B - —
Ising on share issues (net of expenses) - . 7 S = LT f
ansfers between reserves — B 4
=talned loss for the year — — _ {114)
~ December 31, 2002 634 93 167 702
e Curnulative amount of goodwill, arising on the acquisition of undertakings still in the Group at December 31,2002, written off against other reserves armounts
£372m (2001 £380m). The continuance of this basis, in respect of pre-1998 acquisitions, is permitted under the transitional arrangements of FRS 10,
¥ Operating lease annual commitments
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m
=ases of land and buildings which expire: e _—
within oreyear TSSO L2 2 - “
Betweenoneandfveyears T 5. 8. L2 2
Aterfiveyears T 6. 6. 4 3
wher leases which expire: """ B
Withinoneyear ISR S O S e o
_ Betweenoneand freyears T e 5 6
After five vears o ' 52 52 o —
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28 Contingent liabilities

In connection with the sale of its products, on some occasions the Group and Company enter into individually and coflectively significant long-term contingant obligations. These
can involve, inter alia, guaranteeing financing for customers, guaranteeing a proportion of the values of both engine and airframe, entering into leasing transactions, commitrents

to purchase aircraft and in certain circumistances could involve the Group and Cornpany assuming certain of its customers' entitlernents and related borrowing or cash flow
obligations untii the value of the security can be realised,

At the date these accounts are approved, the directors regard the possibility that there wilf be any significant loss arising from these contingencles, which cover a number
of customers over a long period of time, as remote. In determining this, and the values above, the directors have taken account of advice, principally from Alsclaims Limited,

professional aircraft appraisers, who base thelr calculations on a current and future fair market value basis assuming an arms-length transaction between a willing seller
and a willing buyer.

At December 31,2002, the total gross contingent liabititles relating to financing arrangements on all delivered aircraft less insurance arrangements and refevant provisions
amounted to £1,093m (2001 £857m), of which £35m (2001 £78m) related to sales finance support 1o jeint ventures, Taking Into account the net realisable value of the relevant
security, the net contingent liabilities in respect of financing arrangements on all delivered alrcraft amounted to £186m (2001 £206m). Sensitivity calculations are complex, but,
for example, if the value of the relevant security was reduced by 20%, a net contingent liability of approximately £251m (2001 £283m) would result. There are also net contingent

liabilities in espect of undelivered aircraft but it is not considered practicable to estimate these as deliveries can be many years in the future and the relatad financing will only
be put in place at the appropriate time.

Contingent labilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and refiability. The Company and
some of its subsidiary undertakings have, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade cbligations
and minor miscellaneous iterns. Various Group undertakings are parties to legal actions and claims which arise in the ordinary course of husiness, some of which are for substantial
armounts, As a consequence of the insolvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Group is no longer fully insured against known and potential claims from employees who
worked for certain of the Group's UK based businesses for a period prior t the acquisition of those businesses by the Group. While the cutcome of some of these matters cannot

precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, fegal actions of claims, after allowing for provisions already made, to result in significant loss 1o the
Greup or Company.

ir addition 1o the guarantees referfed 1o in note 20 and above at December 31,2002, there were other Company guarantees in respect of financlal obligations of subsidiary
undertakings £125m (2001 £156my), and in respect of joint ventures £17m (2001 £51m).

29 Related party transactions

Joint ventures

in the course of normal operations, the Group has contracted on an arms-length basis with joint ventures. The aggregated transactions which are considered to be material
and which have not been disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised below:

2002 2001

£m £m

T OO e 20 18
Purchases of goods and secvices from jointventures e a8y (333
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ytes to the financial statements

Post-retirement benefits

nsions
e Group's pension schernes are mainly of the defined benefit type and the assets of the schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds.

e pension cost relating to the UK schemes is assessed in accordance with SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs, based on the advice of independent qualified actuaries using the
sjected unit method. The latest actuarial valuations of the principal schemes were as at March 31,2001 (for the Vickers Group Pension Scheme), April 5, 2001 (for the Rolls-Royce
oup Pension Scheme}, and March 31,2000 {for The Rolis-Royce Pension Fund). The principal assumptions used were that in the long tarm the average returns on investments

uld be between 2.0% and 2.25% per annurm higher than the average increase in pay and between 3.5% and 4.0% per annum higher than the average increase in pensions. Assets
re valued on a market related basis.

2 pension cost relating to overseas schemes is calculated in accordance with ocal best practice and reguiations.
e total pension cost for the Group was £64m (2001 £72m) of which £21m (2001 £17m) relates to overseas schemes,

e aggregate of the market values of the UK schemes at the dates of the latest actuarial valuations was £4,933m.The actuarial value of the assets of the principal schemes
oresented respectively 10056 {for The Rolls-Royce Pension Fund), 129% (for the Vickers Group Pension Scheme) and 126% (for the Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme) of the
iue of the projected accrued liabilities.

e difference between the value of the assets and the value of the projected accrued liabilities {after allowing for expected future increases in earnings and discretionary pension
“reases) is being amortised over periods of between 85 and 13 years, being the average expected remaining service lives of the pengionable employees.

2payments of £204m (2001 £181m) are included in debrors and accruals of £30m (20071 £33m) are included In provisions for llabilities and charges, being the differences between
e accumulated amounts paid into the pension funds and the accumulated pension costs.

ast-retirement benefits other than pensions
the USA, and to a lesser extent in some other countries, the Group's employment practices include the provision of healthcare and life insurance benefits for retired employees.
the USA, 330 retired employees cusrently benefit from these provisions and it is estimated that 4,900 current employees will be eligible on retirement.

ee cost of post-retirernent benefits other than pensions for the Group was £19m (2001 £17m). Provisions for the benefit obligations at December 31, 2002 amounted
£120m (2001 £118m) and are included In provisions for Dzbilities and charges. There were no plan assets at either December 31,2002 or December 31,2001, The future costs
benefits are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries and are based on a weighted average discount rate of 6.75% and a weighted average
sumed healthcare costs trend rate of 10.0% grading down to 5.0% over eight years.
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Notes to the financial statements

30 Post-retirement henefits continued

FRS 17 disclosures

The fult implementaticn of FRS17 ‘Retirernent Benefits' has been deferred, however certain disclosures are required which are included below,

The valuations with respect to UK schemes have been based on the most recent actuarial vaiUation (as noted above) and updated by the scheme actuary to

December 31,2002 taking account of the reguirements of FRS 17.Far the material overseas defined benefit schemes the last formal actuarial valuations have been
updated to December 31,2002 by a qualified actuary taking account of the requirements of FRS 17.

The principal actuarial assurptions were as follows;

2002 2007
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schames schemes schemes schernes
%1 %‘I
Rate of increase in salaries 38 28 40 43
Rateofmcrease ofpensrons in paymentahd deferment ”2 i 04 25 0 04
Dlscount rate. o 55 66 80 70
Infiaticn assumpt\on 2.3 2.9 25 3.0
' Weighted average percentage.
The assets in the principal schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, 2002 were as follows:
2002 Group 2002 Company
UK schemas Qversaas schemes
Expected Expected Expected
long-term long-term long-term
rate of return Market vaiue rate of return Market value rate of return Market value
£m £m £m
Equiies e e e e e et oo et 80 . 2528 ki SR B SR B0 1,794
Soversigndedt A4 644 — — 44 404
Corporate bonds .50 492 85 La5 30 37
Other 5.9 144 6.5 9 6.2 125
Total market value of assets S e SN 3,804 Tl LAY T 0
Present value of scheme liahillties - {5,400) — (360) — (4,127
Deficitin the schemes e e T (1,596) b (2437 - (1,433
Relatad deferced tax asset — 479 — 85 — 430
Net pension liability —_ (1,117) —_ {158) — {1,003]
2000 Group 01 Company
UK schemes Oveiseas schames
Expected Expected Expectad
long-term fong-term lang-term
rate of return Market value rate of return Market value rate of retuin Marker vaiue
% £m % frn % Eidl
B e B4 3Msee A0 B 2070
Sovereigndent e seess == B0 390
Comparate bonds e 60 . 49 70 e 80 379
Other 7.2 301 7.2 11 75 277
Total market vaiue of assets o — 4580 — 130 — 3216
Presem alue of scheme |ab'.htie; — '{4986) — {304) e (3 782
Deficitinthe schemes T T T Mee T~ (742 - (56
Related deferrad tax asset — 123 — 61 — 17
Net pension liabifity — {284) — {113) — {35¢

2 Provisions of £158m (2001 £157m) exist for overseas post-employment benefits and pensions (see note 22).
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tes to the financial statements

Post-retirement benefits continued

rounts charged to profit and loss account

Group Company
UK Overseas
schemes schemes
£m £m £m
erating profit o P e B
Current service charge 73 19 61
Expected retum on pEﬂSIOﬂ scheme assets e (344) Ay (244)
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 294 22 224
(50} 11 {20}
tal charge 23 30 a3
ovement in scheme deficits during the year
Group Company
UK Overseas
schemes schemes
£m £m £m
Aty 1 2002 e o eos) T4y _588)
=hange adjustments — a7 o
Errent service cost (737 {18} (61}
:rmnbutlons - 67 2T 67
TARCRINCOME e e 50 an 20
“uarial loss {1,234} (77} (893}
December 31,2002 (1,596) {243} {1,433}
story of experience gains and losses and amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses
Group Company
UK Overseas
schemaes schemas
£im £m £m
erence between the expected and actual retum onscheme assets | e B
Amourt e esy 28y (856
.P?FE‘?U@Q‘? f?f 5‘?.'.“?.'.71?.99??5 ................................................................................................................................................................. (2s%)  (24%) (.2‘.‘."./.")
perience gains and losses on scherne liabifitles e . L o
O e e e oo oA R R RS e e e e LLL S 26) . 100
Percentage of the presentvalue of scheme Ilabilmes % (7%) 2%
-ect of changes__l_n_.assumptlo_r_\slgnderlymg the present va!ue of scheme Iaab||1t|es ____________________________________________________________________________________
Amount (394) 23 (337)
Percentage of the present value of scheme fiabiliies | | e 7% (7% {8%)
change adjustments — 17 —
=tai amount recognised in the statement of Yotal recognised gains and losses

Amount R
Percentage of the pfesent value of scherne abilities

e e

{23%) 7% (22%)
t assels

he above net pensions liabilities had been recognised in the financial statements, the net assets and profit and loss reserve would be as follows:
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2007
£m fm £m £m
t assels per balance sheet 2,037 2070 1,919 2,008
L O £ -2 S 39 o3 (396)
nsion prepayment ! (143) a2n o) {5)
vistons for pensrons and other po:t retirement benefits 2 101 102 — —
tal FRS 17 pension adjustment (1,317} {422} {1,009} (4qt
t assets under FRS 17 720 1,648 910 1,608

ension prepayment currently recorded: Group £204m (2001 £181m) less related deferred tax liability of £6Tm (2001 £54m); Company £9m {2001 £7m)

ess related deferred tax liability of £3m (2001 £2m).

rovisions currently recorded £158m (2001 £157m) less related deferred tax asset of £57m (2001 £55m),
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30 Post-retirement benefits continuad

Profit and loss reserve

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m £ £m im
Profit and loss reserve 783 820 702 789
Total FRS 17 pension adjustment {1,317) (422) (1,009) (401}
Profit and loss reserve under FRS 17 {534) 393 {307) 388
31 Acquisition of businesses
During the year the Group acquired interests in a number of small businesses as summarised below:
Total
£m
Deotors - | ) L2
Provisions for lfabilitles and charges B (9)
Netassets o .. 86
Less borrowings on acquired business (52)
34
Goodwill arising 6
.40
Less transfer from joint vertures {20)
e oo , , 20
Deferred consideration from previous years T 8
Net cash outflow per cash flow statement 28
32 Disposal or termination of businesses
During the year the Group disposed of its interests in Vickers Defence Systems and in a number of other small businesses, as summarised below:
Vickers Defence Other
Systems businesses TFotal
£m £m £m
Tangible fed assers R 2o = e
Debtors B - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges (6} = (6]
NOTaSSers e SR, SN, S
Loss on sale or termination of businesses ‘ (10} {12) (22]
Disposal proceeds lesscosts T e 1 - 1
Net payments deferred at December 31,2002 T L N =
Accrued costs ' — 4 4
Net cash inflow per cash flow staterment 13 1 14




*|nC|pa| submdsary undertakmgs

—orporated within the UK

/il aerospace
sEL Turbofans leated

Aftermarket support services

e e e j‘,F-’44 engme support ser\nces/holdmg company o
als-Royce Total Care Services Limited

arlne systems

IIs~Royce Marme Power Operataoms Li'nlted:. 7 - o N |

—kers Engmeerlng pic!

Marine systems/holding company

Nudlear submarine propulsion systerns

ergy e
llis-Royce Fuel Cell Systerns Limited

_ Development of fuel cell systems

mancial services and corporate
iOverseas Holdangs Limited 2

Bls- Royce Aircraft Ma nagement Llrmted
alS Royce Capitai Limited ?

:.[s-Royce \ntematlonai Limitgd
EIs-Royce Leasmg L\mited

=ls-Royce Overseas Investments L:n’lted <
dls-Royce Power Engmeermg plc

llls-Royce Power Ventures L\mlted

—kers plc

| Heldingcopany T
. Sales finance and other finan
_Sales ﬁnam.e and otherﬁnancaal services e
) ”Intematlonat supportand commeraal mformat\on serwces L
o Engineleasing e
.. Helding company N
... Hoiding company e
o Powergeneratlon and manne systems e
. Provision of prmectdeve\opment capabclltnes .

Holding company

“he interest is held by Vickers plc,

“he interest is held by Rolls-Reyce Power Engineering plc.
“his subsidiary acts as an agent of Rells-Royce ple.

“he interest is held by Rolls-Royee {(reland).

= above companies aperate principally in the UK and the effective Group interest is 100%.
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Principal srubsid‘iarry undertaking§

{ o

Incorporated overseas

Brazi
France
Germany
laly
Usa
USA

USA

.. RollsRoyce Deutschland Lid & Cokg2 ~ "
_Europea Microfusioni Aerospaziali SPA

. RollsRoyce Corporation®
Rolls-Royce Engine Services - QaklandInc ¢~ 7 7

. RolisRoyce Brasi Limiada

RollsRoyce Technical Suoport SARLY

Rolls-Royce Gear Systems Inc.*

~ Reparandovernay| T e e
LoPlectsupport R
. BR7QO series engine development and manufacture

. Manufacture of castings
. Design, development and manufacture of gas turbine engines

.. Repair and overhaul

Design and manufacture of accessory gearbox systerns

Mar.i.ng_sys.tems _

Finland
Norway
Norway

Rolls Royce OV ABS " " T

_ Rolls-Royce Maf,inE_':A:SH‘:_' S
Ulstein Holding As®

. Manufacture of winches and propeller systems
.. Design and manufacture of ship equipment

ingAse .. Holding comgany T )
Sweden . KamewaHolding AB® L Hedingcompany
sweden ~ RollsRoyceps? - on oo - Manufacture of propelier systems
VSA ... . RollsRoyce Commerdial Marinelnct T T e Metmarket supportservices T T
UsA Rolls-Royce Naval Marine Inc.¢ ..Designand manufacture of ship propellers
USA Synerolift Inc, 4 Shiplift systems
Canada . Rolis-Royce Canada Limited 8

Canada
India
Singapore

USA

. Rolls-Royce Foidings Canadainc. 77T e

Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Indiia Private Limited 7~
. RollsRoyce Ple Limited®
Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc.*

Turbine generator packages

.. Industrial gas turbines and aero engine sales, service and overhaul

Holding compary
.Project management and customer support
. Engine and turbine compression systems, spares

Financial services and corporate

Eire

Guemsey  Nighiingale Insursnce Limited” T . Insurance services T
LSA  Rolls-Royce North America (USA) Holdings Co.® "7 Holding COMPANY
USA RollsRoyce North America Holdings Inc e © 7 . Holding company

USA Rolls-Royce Capital lnc. ™

Rolis-Royce (elang)®

... Holding company

Financial services

! The interests are held by Rolls-Royee Overseas Holdings Limited.

2 The interest is held as foilows: 49.5% Rolis-Ro

* The interest is held by Rolis-Royce Asset Management inc.

yee Erste Betelligungs GmbH, 50.5% Rolls-Royee Zweite Beteiligungs GmbH.

* The interests are held by Rolls-Rayce North America Ventuses | Inc.

* The interests are held by Vickers International Limited.

® The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Marine AS.

? The interest is held by Kamewa Holding AB.

® The interest is held by Relis-Royce Hoeldings Canada Inc.

® The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Overseas Investments Limited,
1°The Interest is held by Rells-Royce North America (USA) Holdings Co.
"'"The interest is held by Rolls-Royce North America Vantures Il ine.

With the exception of Rolls-Royce {Irsfand), which operates in the UK, the above companies operate principally in the country of their incorporation.
The effective Group interest is 1009, other than Europea Microfusioni Aerospaziali SPA which is 51%.

Alist of alf subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company's annual return to Companies House,
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ncnpal ;omt ventures

orporated within the UK

Class

%% of class
held by
Rolls-Royce plo

% of wial
equity hald by
Rolls-Rovee plc

il aerospace

e e e . 'A”bf'd:nary e w} . "
bine blade repair services B Ordinary 100 )
bine Surface Technologies Limited A Ordinary — } .
‘oine surface coatings 8 Ordinary 100 *0
.fence e E T T T TR T T L T Ry
tanker Holdmgs Lirnited Ordinary 20 20
lding company R , .
ls-Royce Srecma Limited (UK & France) AShates R } <
gine collaboration _ BShares 00 . ‘
|5 Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK& France) A Shares — ]I 0
our and RIM322 engines colleboraion _ BShares 100§ -
bo-Union Limited (UK, Germany & [taly) ' : N ‘ : ' ) Ordinary 40 } 40
199 engine collaboration A Shares 375
ergy . . ) . . . . . .
s Wood Group (Repair and Overhauls) Umited A Ordinary 100"} . '
. ) 50
pozir and overhaul 8 Ordinary —
nancial services and corporate e
—ha Partners Leasing Limited A Ordinary 100 } <0
gine leasing B Ordinary —
xorporated overseas
% of class % of totai
held by equity held by
Class Rolis-Rayce ple Rolls-Rayce phe
Al O P aCE e e e e e B o .
ina Xian XR Aero Components Co Limited Ordinary 49 49
... Manufacturing facility for zerc-engineparts e L .
ng Kong Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited * Ordinary 45 45
... . Repairand overhaul SO UO O TOU OO SO o
el Techlet Aerofoils Limited T A Ordinary 50 }
. 50
. Manufacture of compressor agrofoils e, BOrdmary S0 ) .
ch Arabia tiddle East Propuision Company Limnited 2 Ordinary 16.7 16.7
TR Repalr and overbaul SOOI R :
gapore International Engine Component Overhaul Pte Lirnited ¥ Common 50 50
o .. .. Repairand overhaui e e e e e e e e .
gapore Singapore Aero Englne Services Private Limited 1 (effectwe interest 39%) Ordinary 30 30
... ... .  Repairandoverraul e e e e e e e et e e -
ain Industria de Turbo Propulsores SA Ordinary 46,9 4569
.. ... Manufacture and maintenance of aerc engines e e e e L
itzerland IAE International Aere Engmes AG (UK, Germany,Japan&USA) A Shares 100
V2500 series engine collaboration B Shares — 125
C Shares —

A Daa Systems&So(uttons e

Advanced controls and predictive data managerment

' o Texas Aero Engine Services, LLC *
_ PRepairandoverhaul R
A Williams Rolls Inc. 3 (UK & North Amenca)

F}44 engine collaboratiol

.. D shares

N/A 50530 Partnership

5056 Partpership '

18
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Principal joint ventures

Incorporated overseas continued

% of class % of total
held by equity hetd by
Class Rolts-Royce ple Rolls-Royce pic
Defence T
Germany ERI Europrop International GmbH (Germany) Ordinary 28 28
Germany EUROIET Turbo GmbH (UK, Germany, Italy & Spain) (effective interest 30%) Ordinary 33 33
... E200enginecollaboration e
Germany MTU, Turbomeca, Rofls-Royce GmibH (UK, France & Germany) Ordinary 333 33,
MTR390 engine collaboration
Financial services and corporate e e
Isle of Man Pembroke Group Limited & (Eire) Ordinary 50 50
e A g e e e _
USA Alpha Leasing (US) LLC T N/A 50:50 Partnership
. ... . FEngineleasing OOV
Usa Alpha Leasing (US) (No. 2y LLC? N/A 5Q:50 Partnership
L EmgImeeasing e e
USA Exostar L1C# N/A 17.6 Partnership
 B2Bexchange
USA Rolis-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC?

NA 5050 Partnership
Engine leasing

Unincorporated overseas

Civilaerospace e e e B
USA Light Helicopter Turbine Engine Company (LHTEC)
Rolls-Raoyce Corporation has a 50% interast in this unincorporated partnership which was formed to jointly develop and market the T800 engine.

! The interests are held by Rells-Royce Overseas Heldings Limited.
2 The interest is held by Middle East Equity Partners Limited.

* The partner is Rolis-Royce Control Systems Heldings Co.

* The partrer is Rolis-Royce Engine Services Holdings Co.

% The interest is held by Rolls £ Turbofans Limited.

¢ The interest is held by Larten Umited.

7 The partner is Rolls-Royce Finance Holdings Co.

# The partner is Rolls-Royce Investment Co.

The countries of principal operations are stated In brackets after the name of the company.

Jointarrangements that are not entities

% of class % of tota

hefd by equity held by

Class Rolis-Rovce plc Rolls-Rayce pl

Jersey RS Leasing Limited ? A Crdinary 1001 .
Alrcraft leasing B Ordinary —

T The interest is held by Rolis-Royce Leasing Limited,
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rectors' responsibilities

Rep

ortof the i

Fran

mpany law requires the directors to prepare financial statermnents for each financial year

ich give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Compary and of the Group
1 of the profit or loss for that period.

preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable accountng standards have been foliowed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

prepare the financial staternents on the going cohcern basis unless it Is Inappropriate
to presume that the Company and the Group will continue in business.

e directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disciose with
3s0nable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable
2 1o ensure that the fimandcial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They
ve general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to

feqguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
=guilarities.

Rolls-Royce plc

We have audited the finandal staterments on pages 40 1o 73. We have also audited the

information in the directors’ remuneration report that is described as having been
audited.

This report is made sclely 1o the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor's report and for no other purpose.To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
net accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the Company and the

Company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the directors’
remuneration report. As described on this page, this includes responsibility for preparing
the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards. Our responsibllities, as independent auditors, are established inthe
United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority, and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report 1o you our opinion as to whether the financial staternents give a true and fair
view and whether the financial statements and the part of the directors' remuneration
report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985.We also repert to you if,in our opinion, the directors report is not consistant
with the financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if

information specified by law regarding directors' remuneration and transactions with the
group is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on page 25 reflects the Company's compiiance with
the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules,
and we report if it does not. We are not required 1o consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the

effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures of its risk and control
procedures.

We read the other information contained in the annual report, including the corporate
governance statement and the unaudited part of the directors' remuneration report, and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements.We considler the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board, An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclesures in the financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited, It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Ainancial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and perforrned our audit 5o as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the directors’
rermuneration report 1o be audited are free from rnaterial rpisstaternent, whether caused
by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming cur opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statemants and the part of
the directors Temuneration 1eport 1o be audited.

Opinion

in our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at Decemnber 31,2002 and of the profit of the Group for
the year then ended; and the financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration repott 1o be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 1985,
ihbie, 105 At /i

KPMG Audit Plc

Chartered Accountants, Registered Auditor
London

March 3,2003




Group five year review

oy
2002 2001 2000 1996 1998
Profit and loss account £m £m £m £m £m
Group turnover* 5,788 6,328 5,864 4,634 4471
Operating profit before exceptional items and net ‘research and development o 540 .. 806 713 626
Operating exceptional items " T B N o R (1 A — -
Research and development (net* {207) CoEse TEED sy 3109
Group operating profit e o Jdes 24 /0 3 316
share of operating profit of oint ventures T $6 .8 gl Tt 7
Nor-operating exceptional ftems e ) (22 (5)' '_ o (7?) . : 6 9
Net interest payabie T(107) e Ay T sy (17)
Profit on ordmary activmes bef‘o_lj_e_‘upterest ................... e e il 192 166 360 325
Taxatlon """"""""""""""""""""" T (52)” (86)‘” T (87) o (123) (76}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation R 53 106 s 237 249
Equxty minority interests in subsrdlary undertaklngs T — - — @ (2
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders S e BB 106 7e ey 247
Dividends T _ (133) 39 (126) TR (59}
Transferred {from)/to reserves {80) (26) {47) 123 148
“Research and development fgrosg) .. (590} BECED R 17 B (625} (658)
! Group turnover TV O RSO BT ST e o
C0|1t1numg operanons i L ' S - I ‘ 5,788 6328 -5,864_ 4634 430
‘ Dls.commued__opera.twons .' o o T - . — e — ‘ o 170
? Group operating profitilloss) USSR R
. Continuing cperatiens 68 B4 om0 s 326
. Discontinued operations N — - - I (107
Eamings per ordinary share: e
Underling LA10p 20200 1938p  1647p 1618
Basic 32% 6870 SO7p  1560p 1651
Dividends perordinary share (818 818 800p 725 6.55¢
2002 2001 2000 1999 1993
Balance sheet £m £m £m £m fm
F\xed assets 3,010 o 2?89‘ 2856 . 2839 - 1,408
Current assets 4,289 4551 4,000 3974 3408
e L7299 7340 . 6856 L BBI3 4814
Liabilities and provisions B {5,262) (5.270) (4.815) {4,833) {3,070)
2,037 2070 2,041 1,980 1,744
sharecapital e e 323 3034308 30
Reserves ' 1,712 1748 1726 1558 1431
Fauity sharehelders'funds T 2035 L2068 a0 vge7 1T
Minority interests in sub5|d\ary undertakmgs """ 2 2 1 13 12
2,037 2070 2,041 1,980 1,744
2002 2000 200 1930 1908
Cash flow £m £m £m fm m
Cash inflow from operating activites ... en 4. 479 39 309
Interest, dividends and taxation 222 T e cAe sy (e
Capital expendlture and ﬁnanoal mvestment L o ‘ ,,.(?',.81) . by o 253 9y (333)
Acquisitions andd:sposals (20) g (53) (666) 87
e, e 658) (35}
Cash flow from financing (81) ik (360) 622 113
{Decrease)/increase in cash and liquid resources (93) 282 (349) (36) 78
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reholders’ information

yncial calendar
ividend date for final dividend

CAprit 23,2003
ulatlon penod for scrip dlwdend e Aprl 23-29 2003
llwfying record)date forﬁna!dwldend e ) AprlE 25 2003
date for new scrip dividend instructions May 19,2003

wal General Meeting, The Queen Eiizabeth Il Conference Centre,
d Sanctuary, London SW1,

mentofﬁna[/scrlp dlvsdend ' e
s advertisernent oa’ 2003 in m results o
fvdend do for overm cvidend " Grober 15,2003
-ulanon period for scrap drvadend o ~ October 15- 21 2003
ahfymg (record)date formtenm dl\udend B T October 17 20()3
 date for new scrip d|V|dend !nstructlons o ‘ November 14 2003
ancaal  year end December31 2003
ment Oflntenmlscnp dlwdend L JanuaryS 2004
55 advertzsement of 2003 prellmmary results“ R ' ) February,. 2004

3 Annual Rep_t pubhshed March, 2004

~1am May 29,2003
7 July ,2003

Hte: Preliminary and interim results are notified by press advertisements only.

> new holding company timetable is included in the circular to shareholders expected
oe dated April 11,2003

alysis of ordinary shareholders at December 31,2002

Nurnber of % of total % of total

nber of shares holdings holdings shares
150 116,263 3706 - 054
800 188370 427 248
S10000 451571403 507
01 =100 OOO 1457 045 249
001 - 1,000,000 463 014 §25
:}0 001 and over 166 0.05 79.77
321,876 100.00 10000
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Shareholder enquiries

if you would prefer to receive new shares instead of cash dividends, please ask the

Registrar for a Serip Dividend Mandate. If you have any queries on the following:
i) Transfer of shares

ii} Change of name or address

il Lost share certificates

iv) Lost or out of date dividend chegues

v) Death of a registered hotder of shares

vi) Any other query relating to Rolls-Royce plc shares
please write or telephone the Registrar at the following address:
" Computershare Investar Services PLC

P O Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol, BS99 7NH

Helnline: 0874 702 0111

The Company operates a free-of-charge service for consolidating the individual
shareholdings of immediate members of a family. Please ask the Registrar for
details if you are interested.

Low cost share dealing

Details of special ow cost dealing services in the Company's shares may be obtained
from Hoare Govett Limited (telephone 020 7678 8000) and from NatWest Stockbrokers
Limited {020 7895 5029). Both are members of the Securities and Futures Authority and
NatWest Stockbrokers is a rnember of the London Stock Exchange.

You can obtain the current market price of the Company's shares by viewing teletext or
simnilar services.
Internet

The annual report, Company announcements and other information are avallable on the
Company website www.rolis-royce.com.
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